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CHANGING THE WAY THE
WORLD CONNECTS.

THEWORLD IS GOING
WIRELESS -~ AND CSR
ISHELPING LEAD THE
WAY TO MAKE IT HAPPEN

WE ARE WORLD LEADERS

IN BLUETOOTH TECHNOLOGY
IN THE CELLULAR MARKET
OF MOBILE HANDSETS AND
HEADSETS. WE BELIEVE THAT
THE CONNECTIVITY MARKETS
ARE FULL OF OPPORTUNITY
AND WE WILL CONTINUE

TO EVOLVE, ADDING NEW
CAPABILITIES SUCH AS GPS
ANDWI-FITOSTRENGTHEN
OUR POSITION. WEWILL
ALSO INCREASE FOCUS ON
NON CELLULARSECTORS -
INCLUDING MP3 PLAYERS,
AUTOMOTIVE, GAMES
CONSOLESAND PCs.
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REVENUE +20% 10

$849 MILLION

GROSS MARGIN 46.77%
OPERATING PROFIT +14%
TO $172 MILLION
OPERATING MARGIN' 20%
UNDERLYING DILUTED EPS
+13% TO $094 PER SHARE
DILUTED EPS +1% TO

$0.83 PER SHARE

Undertying ures exchiding the impact of mortisaton of acquyred niangible assets and tha patent dispute sattlomont
Stawmlrmne tatement fonn&uon gve onpage&ﬂoﬂhafmalmmmoms




DIRECTORS REPORT - GROUP AT A GLANCE

CSR IS ALEADING PROVIDER OF WIRELESS CONNECTIVITY
DURING 2007, WE SHIPPED OVER 50% OF THEWORLD'S
BLUETOOTH CHIPS AND WERE DESIGNED-IN AROUND 60%
OF ALL BLUETOOTH-QUALIFIED PRODUCTS.

WE EMPLOY OVER 1,000 PEOPLE, INCLUDING 700 ENGINEERS
IN 10 COUNTRIES WORLDWIDE

WE WORKWITH THEWORLD'S LEADING BRANDS INCLUDING
DELL, LG, MOTOROLA, NEC, NOKIA, PANASONIC, RIM,
SAMSUNG, SHARP, SONY, TOMTOM AND TOSHIBA.

WE HAVE A GLOBAL REPUTATION FOR COMMERCIALAND
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

IN 2007, WE GREW REVENUES BY 20% AND UNDERLYING
OPERATING PROFITS BY 14%.

WE INVESTED AROUND $141 MILLION ON R&D

WE ACQUIRED NORDNAV TECHNOLOGIES AB AND
CAMBRIDGE POSITIONING SYSTEMS LIMITED,
ADDING TO OUR GPS TECHNOLOGY STRENGTH.

OUR PRODUCT ROADMAP INCLUDES BLUETOQTH, WI-F,
ULTRAWIDEBAND AND GPS PRODUCTS

WE EXPECT TO DELIVER OUR ONE BILLIONTH CRIP
IN SPRING 2008.

WE FACE THE FUTURE WITH GREAT CONFIDENCE.

2 CSR plc Annuat Report and Financial Siatements 2007



HANDSETS

CONSUMER

GPS

AUTOMOTIVE

STEREQO HEADSETS

WI-FI

PCs

MP3 PLAYERS

GAMING

MONO HEADSETS
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DIRECTORS REPORT -
CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN CONVERSATION

WE CURRENTLY
HAVE OVER 50% UNIT
MARKET SHARE IN
BLUETOOTHAND
AROUND 60% OF ALL
DESIGN WINS

Ron Mackintosh, Charrman

{Laft) Joep van Beurden, CEO
and Ron Mackintosh, Charman

& CSR ple Annual Report and Fimancial Slatements 2007



Dunng 2007, we welcomed both a new Charrman and a new
Chuef Executive to CSR Ron Mackintosh (Chairman) and Joep
van Beurden {CEO} came together to reflect on the last 12 months
and to share ther enthusiasm for the months and years ahead

Ron Mackintosh (RM) Joep, | think you'll agree that thus has been
asohd 12 months for CSR The financials show strong growth —
raverue up by 20% with underfying diuted eammgs per share
up by 13% to $0 94 We delivered what we promised

Joep van Beurden (B} It's an imprassive performance, and i's
matched by the strong long-term oppartunities we have identified
1jomed only a few weeks prior to the end of the yaar, but | knew
CSR and had aiways adrmired the way the Company led its sector
Howaver, | hava to admit that | was surpnsed at the extent of that
leadership and the strengths that e behind it

RM F've been & non-executive drector at CSR smce 2004 and
I've seen the busingss strengthen year-on-year We cumently have
over 50% unit market share in Bluetooth and around 80% of all
design wins We work with many of the world's top names, not
only in the callular maskets of handsets and headsets but also in
non celhiar sectors of music players, automotve, PC and gaming

Det, LG, Motorola, Nokia, Samsung, Sony, TomTom and many
more utiise our fechnology ta ncrease the consumer appeal

ol ther products Without CSR, many of the great technological
stndes mnwireless commuricatons that have beenmade inrecent
years simply wouldn't have happened

JVB What really excites me ts that we'na just at the start The world
15 going wireless - where there are wires there are opportunities
forus We're only at the very beginrung of what s a revoluton
CSR has clearty laken leadershup and we have the abiity and
passion to mamtaen that posiion We have a huge opportunity
i front of us, to use cur products, our proven expertise and our
nvestmaent in smergmg technologies n order to help our
customers taka the world wireless

RM What have baen your mitial rpressions of CSR?

JvB Firat, the quakty, commitment and passion of our people
Our R&D teams are without equal Time and trme again, they raise
the technological bar and extend our lead over the cormpatition -
not only In Blugtooth, whers we continue to reduce cost and
power consumphon while adding, for example, GPS capabiry,
but alsc in Wi-F, Ultra Wideband (UWB) and Near Figld
Commumcation (NFC)

CSR plc Annual Report gnd Financial Stalements 2007 5




DIRECTORS REPORT -

CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN CONVERSATION continued

WE ALREADY SUPPLY
THE TOP FIVEHANDSET
MANUFACTURERS AND
OURSUCCESS IN THIS
SPACE IS PULLING
THROUGH SALESIN
HEADSETS.

Joep van Beurden, CED

Revenue $ 000

(2807 848,622
(2008 } 704,695
(205 1486531

233,146

& CSRA ple Annual Report and Financol Statements 2007

Secondly, |'va been very mpressed by our workl-class

and delivery track record We operate at the highest
tevel when it comas to produchon quattty, conswstency and onder
fuliiment Customers hawe huge respect for our technological
lead, but they also know that they can trust us to deliver on
trme and onbudget We expect todetver CSR's one bilonth
Bluetoath chipset n Spring 2008, and that speaks volumes
for our sustaned qualty performance

Most rnportantty, though, we have a phenomenal product
roadmag that will be the engine for the long-term growth of
the business

RM CSH cumently focuses on three elements to deliver that
roadmap and dnve that growth Bluetooth n the cefiular markats
of phons handsets andheadsets, Blugicoth beyond those
markets, innon celiular markets such as MP3 players, automotive
and gaming and beyond Biustooth for example n Wi-Fiand GPS
Do you see that changing in the coming year?

JvB Notin any signicant way Hanxdsats are exirermely mportant
tous We already supply the top five handset manufacturers and
our success in this space 15 puling through salas n headsets
We're also seeing major volumes n MP3 players and gaming
Bluetooth 1s an important wireless conrnecton technology,

and we see sigrificant additrional opportunity i adiacent wreless
technologies such as FMracho, Wi-Fi, GPS, UWB and NFC
These products wil continue to account for the majonty of aur
R&D nvestment Deepening and widening the busmass will be
the key theme for the coming manths and years We'l mamntain
and explot our core strengths in Blustooth adding exciting new
capatulities such as GPS, WrF and UWB

AM 'd hike 1o put on record my thanks to three people who
departed from CSR dunng 2007 John Whybrow was an excellent
Chairman and successfully oversaw an mpressive penod of
growth for CSR following the iPOn 2004 and played an mportant
part m supporting the transition to establishing CSR as a public
company John Scansbrck madea substantial comnbution to
CSR, first as a non-executive director since 2004 and then as
Chief Executve Othcer, and Glenn Colinson a co-founder made
an mnvaluable contnbution to establhsting CSR as a world leader
Cn behali of the Board, | wash tham well for the future



JVB Chns Ladas, our Semicor Vice President of Operations,

was appointed 10 the Board effective 1 January 2008 This
underscores Chns' contnbutton to the Company and emphasises
the importance we ptace on quality and operations Chris has
almost 40 years of semiconductor experience and he and nis
tearn have been responsible for our wortd-class marufactunng
and testing operations snce May 2000

People are hugely important to CSR It's thanks to the energy
and experiise of our R&D experts, commercial organisation,
support teams and managers that we can help our customers
bnng 50 much producivty, eryayment and new expenances
toconsumers across the world

RM It's something of a business cliche, but people wilt always

he our most important assat From Cambndge to Tokyo,
Bangaiore to Shanghal we have over 1,000 people who workexd
trelessly throughout the year to create the momentum that leaves
us very well-positioned to continue to fead developments in
wireless connectons

JVB | betieve we'ra in ong of the most exciing segments of the
technology wodd At CSR, there's a real hunger to make the most
of our opporturities — and | very much lock forward to playing my
part In the next phasas of the Comparny s long-tenm success

AM With the market opportunities, the strengths m our people
and our technology thal we have discussed, the long term autiook
for CSRipoks encouragmng What is your view on the ymmediate
future for 2008, particularly In view of what are evolving global
economiIc 1ssues?

JvB We enter 2008 with strong markat share, aleading position
m all segments and a pipeline of innavative new products such as
MusiCore that are on-track and exciting in thetr potental

We have previously acknowiadged that there woudd be aloss of
market share in one top ter phone QEM which would affect 2008
Wa have already taken steps to address this and expect to recover
this share n 2009 Inall our cthey segments, we are confident of
broadly mamtaining market share dunng ths year Wehave also
mada good progress at another tap tier phane OEMwho we have
not previously supphed

Underlying R&D Expenditure $ 000

(2007 140,932]
[2006 1107252
2005  — 159.42%

(2004 27583

Al of this remforces our confidencea in our long-term cutiook

For the short-term, we are fully aware of the current econemuc
chmate and consumer sentment We are seang a run-down
Incustomer nventory levess, particularly in China, and customer
cauhon on ther own sales outiook For thesa reasons, we believe
the first half revenues for 2008 will be broadly flat aganst last year,
but the wisible pipeline of new product introductions kads us 10
expect modest year-on-year revenue growth in the second hall

of this year

There s no doubt, however, that we face very considerable growth
opportunities in the medum and longer term for our Bluetoath,
Wi-Fi and GPS products Our new product development ppebne
15 strong with exciing products that are renforcing our reputation
for mnovation, our techmical lsad and our ability to defiver
substantial added value t0 our customers

For exampla, we have worlung GPS and Bluetooth silicon back
from the foundry and we have ntroduced our MusiCore 'MiPJ3
chip® End-customars ward ther mobie handsets to be MP3
players, but currently can ordy find phones with short playback
times and mediotre audo qualty MusiCore gives consumers
around 100 hours music playback on a typical mobie handset
wath audio qualty comparable to leading edge MP3 playars

1t cuts the alectronic bl of matenals by about $2 for our customers

Wa have also just taped out our BlueCore? combination chip
which combines Bluetooth, FM transmut, FM recerve, Uttra Low
Powar Blugtooth and GPSRF onasingladie

Our plans for the longer term, spectfically our ambition to grow our
revenue 10 $2 bilkon by 2012 will ba the product of an oparationat
assessment cutently bemng conducted and which will be reported
oninthe spnng

ljoined CSR because the world 1s going wireless —where there are
wires, there are opportunities for CSR With our current product
fine-up, compefing product roadmap and strong design-in
pipeting, | have every confidence that CSR will caprtalise on the
opportunities and maka further substantial progress i the current
financial year and beyond

CSR ple Annual Reporl and Financial Slalements 2007 7




DIRECTORS REPORT ~RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

CSR: ENERGISING
THE FUTURE

JAMES COLLIER
Recogrnised and respected
throughout our industry,
James s a co-founder of CSR
and has been the Company’s
Cheef Technical Officer snce
Apnl 1999 Pnor to founding
CSR, haworked for Cambndge
Consultants Ltd, where he
formed the microgtectronics
group n 1987 Jameshas a
degree in physics from the
Unwvarsity of Oxford
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Last year CSR invested around $141 mifion in R&D, with
approxmately two thirds directed towards existing technologies
such as Bluetooth and Wi-Fi The balance fuefled the pipelne
of the fulure and 15 already generating excting opportunities

Research s our foundation strength We operate at the leading-
edge of scrence and typrcally mvest around 179 of our revenuesn
R3D marder to mamtan and stretch our lead over the compethon

Withun Our sector, we have a reputation as the place where the
bnghtest minds are able to do ther best work Qur 700 engingers
work n small teams to create the tachnology that sets standards
and helps define the way the word connacts It is demancing but
rewarding work, the techrical challenge 13 a key factorn our abdty
to attract the most talented people to CSR

Exploting Bluetooth

Our teams continue to push back the Bluetooth boundanes
BluaCores, our fifth generation of Bluetooth progucts, 1s in
volume production and has mulfipte design wins at top tier phone
onginal equipment manufacturers (OEMs) BlueCore6 has started
wolume production and has the best performance of any Biuetooth
chip on the market delvenng the lowest power consumphon, best
AF capabiity and product support BlugCore? 15 expected to
begin sampting soon With each generation, the functionahty of
our chips moreases white, at the same tme, power consumption
and size decreases We are also relentiessly focused on secunng
further production cost benefits All this debvers important added
value 10 our Cusiomars

The attach rate - tha percentage of handsets sokl which feature

. Bluetooth -8 already at 50% and we balieve it 15 sat 10 Increase

further With costs of basic Bluetooth-only chips neanng the $1
mark, it becomes reabstc for manufacturers toinclude Bluetooth
as standard

Cost s not the only driver for market penetration Legrstaton
worldwide continugs to open up new markets for hands-free
communication, particularly in cars Our own expertse 8'so

adds significant momenturn in the switch to wirgless technology
We are respected ndustry leaders and our assessments and
apions of market opportunities can help shape the mdustry

For exampla, we hava encouraged pecple 1o consider the benefits
aof combining Bluetooth with the audio funclions We are already
sampling a chup branded ‘MusiCore', combeung all audio functions
with Bluetooth and this has been well recenved by our customers
It provides better performance at a significantly lower pnce than
afternative sofutions

Extending Wi-Fi

Although Wi-F1 adoption has been siower than anticipated, UniFi,
our Wi-Fi product, 1s garing good traction UniFnis now n volume
production and products with Wi-Fi mplementations have started
to emerge Using CSA silicon, thera s now a smartphone anda
personal nawgation dewice on the European market, both under

the Mio brand ‘We have also seen growing mnterest from the
smartphone market m Asia Towards the end of the year CSR
launched RadwoPro, a hardware and software sciution based
on UniF for buitding Wi-Fi connected internet radio products

Wi-Fiis different to Bluetooth and 1s more suited to any situation
whera tast transfer of large files between devices « required
Amajor reason for our success s that gur Wi-Fi sotution can
coaxst effectvely alongsida Bluetooth in the same device

For example, consumers can maks calls via Bluetooth whila also
camyng out a Wi-Fi actty such as ugloading music fites at the
same time wthout the performance of erther function being
compronmised Nocompettor can fivat our solution for
coexistance betwegen Wi-Fiand Blustooth

Wa have over 30 active customer projects in this segment,
awarded predornately as a result of CSR's industry leading
co-existence performanca Looking forward, we sea ncreasing
wntegraton of media functionality o handsets as a strong driver
to Wi-Fi due to tha requirements 10 synchronisa fles with a PC

or other meda-store

For 2008, ws anbcpate a mmber of important design-ns
from top ter manufacturers We also expect to see UniFi bemg
mcorporated alongs:ide Bluetcoth m MP3 players and personal
naviganon dewices, wheret wil enabla taster downloads of
media and map data

In 2008, CSR's revenue from Wi-F1 based products s expected
to be cver $20 mihon

Davelcping GPS

InJanuary 2007, we acqured NordNav Technologies AB and
Carnbndge Posttioning Systems Limuted These purchasss,
supported by our R&D experuse, have created amarket-leading
capabilty n GPS and, just a3 we have dane with Bluetooth,
wa intend to make GPS ~ more specifically our GPS solution -
unversal across the market

What 15 50 special about our GPS? First, 1 a fracthon of the cost
of the altemanve sofutions because of the synergy our engineers
have been able to create between CSR's Bluetoath and GPS
Secondly, ours is predomnanily a software solution whereas
others have pursued a hardware approach History supports
this choice every establshed radio standard has been ted by
software and we are confident ihat GPS wall be no different

in performance terms, our solution gves customers clear
advantages |t s more sensiive in “yrban canyons' and
re-acquires a signal more quickly when necessary By mitegrating
GPS postioning technalogy with the catiular-based system
developed by Cambndge Postioning Systerns, we are abléto give
accurata fixes deep mside banickngs  For the first tme, this means
callutar operators can offer a retiabla senece 10 consumers,
anmporiant prerequisite for advanced GPS-based services

We believe that GPS functionality will serve as agateway to bdlable
services offered by mobils operators For example, our ‘push to
fix’ serwce can identfy the nearest restaurant, fuel station or any
other locaton — using only 10% of tha energy requirad for a
hardware-driven soluhon and costing the equivalent of less than

a second of talk time

in the US, legislation demands that afl mobile phones are able
10 report thar postions to emergency servcas Currently, mobide
operators don't have the systems and technology to comply
effsctvely Qur GPS solution will delver an inexpensva location
sarvice which will help phone users n need of emergency
assistance and keep operators within the law

e oo ollis]
Ciuet Techucal Officer \ / W/
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DIRECTORS REPORT - QUALITY PRODUCTS

WE ARE CHANGING

THE WAY THE WORLD
CONNECTS BY DEVELOPING
PRODUCTS FOR LEADING

MAN
TWO

UJFACTURERS IN
DISTINCT MARKETS:

CELLULAR HANDSETS

AND
NON

HEADSETS; AND
CELLULAR SUCH AS

GAMES, AUTOMOTIVE AND
MP3 PLAYERS.

H
'



DIRECTORS REPORT - QUALITY PRODUCTS continued

QUALITY

PRODUCTS

CSRHASATRACKRECORD INALL KEYMARKET AREAS,
DRIVEN BY PROVEN TECHNICAL ADVANTAGES

HIGHLIGHTS

 INDUSTRY-LEADING
PERFORMANCE

e ATTACH RATE FOR
BLUETOOTH IN CELLULAR
HANDSETS NOW 50%
ANDRISING

e LEADING THE CELLULAR
HEADSET MARKET

e OVER 50% GROWTH IN NON
CELLULAR REVENUES

12 CSR plc Annual Report and Financial Slatements 2007

Qur chups deliver many major technical advantages Seeand
cost are cntical commergial battlegrounds, parucularly with
handsets andheadsets We are able to put more capability into

a smaflar area of sibcon, so our customers can ofter more powerful
yet smalier products Tha size of chip 1s also the biggest factor in
cost So by desigring smalier we reduce overali Costs

Power consumptonts a vital consideration Manufacturers

heve to stnke & balance between the size of battery and the
capability of the device Our chups typically require 20% to 50%
less power than our competitors so customers can specify smaller
and lghter battenes

We also prondeimproved coexistence Customers and
consumers want multipie technokogies n the same product
Wa canovercoma the technical challenges of coexistence and
meorporate both Bluetooth and Wi-F in the same device

interoperability 1s a key CSR advantage Our customers trustus
to provide connections between marny different sorts of products,
from cellutar harwisets and headsets to MP3 players

ltis aiso easy to design CSA chips into products We supply chips
and software together, $0 customers can design with confidence

Fnally, we lead the mdustry n terms of functionalty Wa contmue
to add funcbonality to our connectvity products, such as FM
transmit, FM recesva, Utira Low Power Bluetooth and GPS




Callular - Handsets
Half of all handsats soid now Incorporate Bluetooth technology

In 2007, we bekeve that the attach rata for Blugtooth in handsets
was between 45% and 50%, it was just 14% n 2004 Weexpect
that figure will continus to nse n 2008 ta between 55% and 60%
as Bluetooth penetrates further down the phone ters into less
expensive handsets

CSR manianed a strong postion n this growing segment through
2007 and we expect 2008 to be another strong year for CSR,
despite the foss of some market share at a top tier phone OEM,
(share we expect to racover n 2009}

Dunng 2007, we made substanbal shipments to the top motule
phone manuiacturers, agam demonstrating the cuality of our
products and the reputation we hold with the most demanding
customers Wemade good prograss on design wins in the Korean
markst with mportant successes with both Samsung and LG
Wa afso recorded strong shipmenisinto China

Wa have always been strong in GSM handsets, but in 2007 we
compiemented this with sigreficant design wins in the COMA
phone market, which includes the US and much of tha Far East
For example, inJapan we shipped to Sanyo, Toshiba and —for
the first time — Sony Encsson

Cellular —Headsets
2007 saw us relan leadership of the headsel markst, with a
market share of around 80%

The majonty of our business (s N mono headsets, worlang in
tandem with a phone handset for hands-fres actmty Demand
for sterec headsets s cumently relatvely small, but we believe
this 1s sat to nserapwdly Wa believe that the pull-through rate of
headsels to Bluetooth handsets will ncrease from the high teens
Jevel seen today Underpinning this confidence of increased
pull-through 1s our view that 2008 will be charactensed by growth
at the ligh end, building on the success of the Jawbone headset,
an ncrease In stereo headsel markels — as many new phones now
ncorporate stereo profies, interestng new headset approaches
for adoption, &5 well as the continued development of the low end
hoadset segment

Non celiutar
Our non celular segment saw over 50% revenue growth in 2007
to aver $180 mdlion and now compnsas over 22% of lotal revenue

In the medium term a substantal proportion of all Bluetooth
units are expected to be for applicatons and products beyond
the celiular market Chips into the non cellular markst are generally
of higher specfication with mora value add to our customers
and consequently in some apphcatons have a higher average
selting pnce (ASP)

Wireless connectivity 1s now a clear cifferentiator in the music
segment and many leading Personal Media Players (including
MP3 players) ncomporate CSR's Bluatooth technology. inchuding
Sony’s new ‘Rolly’ player and Panasonic’s 'D-Snap’ Our new
“BluaCore Player has tha industry’s lowest bl of matenals and
aliows manufacturers to have a low cost wirgless MP3 player on
the market within woeks

Jowards the end of the year we launched RadioPro, aradical
new hardware and software solution for mtemet racio products,
which give consurers a chorce of over 12,000 different channels
RadioPro allows our customers to budd a soluton with

abill of matenals of fass than $15

QUALITYIS THE CORNERSTONE
OF CSR'SSUCCESS TO DATE
AND THE FOUNDATION FOR
THE COMPANY'S FUTURE
WORLDWIDE MAJOR
CUSTOMERS TRUSTCSR'S
HIGH QUALITYTECHNOLOGY TO
GENERATE CONSUMER APPEAL

James Collier

In automotive, Bluatooth penetration has ncreased to 10% and
continues to grow Our technology 1s at the heart of Ford Sync.
Ford's fully integrated, voce-aciivated In-car communications
and entertainment systerm Ona of our BlueCore5 vanants,
BlueCore5 Multimedia, 15 now also beingncorporated m new
buid cars, with Toyota using the chip for therr newty released
G-BOOK mtegrated telematics and navigahon systems We also
continue to lead the industry n aftermarket car-kit solutions

UWE mcreases the speed of data transmission and s ncreasmgly
incorporated inta PCs and laptops We areon track to provide a
low power UWB solution designed specifically for mobile phanes
and other portable devices m 2008

Ingaming, the category leader, Sony, specified CSRior the
PlayStation 3 Blustooth means that controliers no longer
require wires, adding to the gaming expenence CSRremans
very well placed in the gaming segmenit and expecis tosee
strong growth in 2008

1 NO TOWIRES, YES TOFREEDCM

2 LEADING AUTOMOTIVE PRODUCTS
RELYON OUR TECHNOLOGY

3CSRMAKES GAMING MORE FUN
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DIRECTORS' REPORT - QUALITY OPPORTUNITIES

WHEREVER THERE
ARE WIRES, THERE
ARE OPPORTUNITIES

FOR OUR TECHNOLOGY TO
TRANSFORM CONSUMERS
LIVES. WE ARE AN
ESTABLISHED PLAYER IN
THE MARKET, WITH AN R&D
PIPELINE THAT IS GEARED
TO LONG-TERM SUCCESS.
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DIRECTORS REPORT - QUALITY OPPORTUNITIES continued

QUALITY
OPPORTUNITIES

THE MOVE AWAY FROM WIRES AND TOWARDS WIRELESS
SOLUTIONS IS GAINING MOMENTUM HUGE OPPORTUNITIES

ARE EMERGING OPPORTUNITIES FORWHICHWEAREWELL
POSITIONED TO TAKE ADVANTAGE.

« POSITIONED FORGROWTH e
« HUGE OPPORTUNITIESIN XLt NEWHARKE TPLACES
CELLULARHANDSETS
AND HEADSETSAND NON
CELLULAR MARKETS
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NOBODY LIKES
WIRES. THERE ARE
TREMENDOQOUS
OPPORTUNITIES FOR
US IN CUR TRADITIONAL
MARKETS BUTALSO
IN NEW AREAS,
PARTICULARLY IN
NON CELLULAR
PRODUCTS WHERE
WE ANTICIPATE RAPID
EXPANSION

Joepvan Beurden

CSRisn astrong postion Wa have the Ra.D experuse,

tha manufactunng capabiity and the estabhished refationships
with key manutacturers to explott the sigrificant opportunries
which he ahead

Towards a wretess world

Our growth will be pushed by the new posstiliias engneered
by ourselves and our partners and puiled by consumer demand
for wareless solutions 1 will also be dnven by other factors,

such as safety legislation which promotes hands-free devices

Raling out the recadmap

Our GPS solution has already attracted significant interest from
leadhng customers We officially launched our GPS technology
nearly 2008

At the same tme, we contnue to develop our Blustooth products
called BlueCore The next generahon willintegrate Bluetooth,
FM transrrit, FM recenve, Uttra Low Power Bluetooth and GPS and
s expected to win extensve business in domestic and industnal
products as well as in the medical markatplace

Capitalising on our markst opportunitias

The market for CSR's products, the connectivity market,

1s deemed by industry analysts to be the fastest growing wrreless
market over the next five years From mobile handsets to digital
televisions, our total acdressable market for products that
require wireless connection s estmated to be over five billon
uruts by 2012
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DIRECTORS' REPORT - QUALITY DIRECTION

WE WILL ENSURE

-

0
C

THAT WE EXPLOIT THE
ENORMOUS OPPORTUNITIES
NOW OPENING UP TO US.

WE WILL CONTINUE TO
NVEST IN OUR TECHNICAL

EADERSHIP, OUR PEOPLE,
UR OPERATIONAL
APABILITIES AND OUR

SALES AND MARKETING
RESOURCES
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DIRECTORS REPORT - QUALITY DIRECTION contnued

QUALITY S
e MAINTAINING LEADERSHIP
DIRECTION . peeeeancane
» DEEPENING AND

WIDENING INTO NEW,
THERE IS SIGNIFICANT PROMISING AREAS
DEMANDFORCSRPRODUCTS. |~ \TINUING TO ENHANCE
WEWILLCONTINUETOBUILD

AWORLD-LEADING
ON OUR TECHNICALAND

OPERATIONAL, SALESAND
OPERATIONAL STRENGTHS MARKETING CAPABILITY
IN ORDER TO RETAIN OUR
POSITIONASWORLD LEADERS
IN WIRELESS CONNECTIVITY.

We will strive to mantain leadership n Bluetooth, and develop
Bluatooth tn areas beyond the handset and headset markets
Deepering and widening will continue to be 8 major theme
over the commng years as we establsh ourseives m new areas,
nctuding GPS and Wi-Fi

Maintain our leadership in the Bluetooth callutar markats

of handssts and headsels

In our exsting markets, wa will continue (o meet the toughest
requirements from our custorners Woe are strong inboth the
handset and headset markets

Deepen the penetration of Bluetoath beyond

hardsets and headsets

There are many opportunities to proliferate Bluetooth and to
deepen our bustnass beyond handsels and headsets Thenon
cellular sectors meiuding Personal Media Players, automotive,
gamas consoles and PCs and penpherals are all areas with
substantal promise

Widen nto adjacent wireless markets

Our GPS solution wall provide customers with the lowest cost and
the bast performance Our GPS roadmap supports our amixbon
to take a loading position i mobie phone location technolegy
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1THEEXPERTISE TOCREATE NEW
FUNCTIONALITY

2WEENABLE THE BRIGHTEST
PEOPLE T0 00 THEIR BEST WORK

With UWB, we are targeting early and sustaned leaderstup,
wile the market for embedded Wi-Fiis growing, with strong

design activity

Supporting our people

Technicat keadership 1s only possibie by attracting and retaining
the best engmeers in the ndustry CSR s already an employer
of choice for the most talented ndvichuats and we will contire
to ensure we offer the opportunities to mamtain our leadership

Investing n operational excellence

We have a raputation for tugh quality producis Manutaciurers
choase to work with CSR not only for our technological edge, but
alsofor rehable supply, proven quality and excelient cost advantages

CSR 3 a 'fabless’ semiconductor company Altwatfer fabncabon,
assembly, testmg and shipping s subcontracied to Tawan
Serniconductor Manutactunng Company (TSMC) and Advanced
Semiconductor Engineenng {ASE) TSMC s the targest wafer
manufacturer in the world offenng the leading technolcgies m
waler fabncaton

ASE 1s thelangest packaging and testing company in the woed with
signficantly greater capabiiity and capacity than any other supplier

CUSTOMERS
UNDERSTAND THAT
WE ARE TAKING

THE INDUSTRY INTO
NEW AND EXCITING
DIRECTIONS AND
THEYWANT TO

BE PART OF THAT
JOURNEY. WE ARE
NOT ONLY CHANGING
THE WAY THE WORLD
CONNECTS, BUT THE
WAY IT WORKS, PLAYS
AND ENJOYSITS
LEISURE TIME

Joepvan Beurden

In 2007, we continued o buid on the strong relatonships with
both of these world-leadmg companies - ensunng that our
cusiomers benefil from an operatonal capability focused on
unmatched quality tn 2008 we will expand our manufactunng
base by qualfying ASE's manufactunng site in Shanghay, Ghuna for
assermbly of low cost packages for our BlueCore product fanviies
In additon, we will qualfy a swth TSMC wafer fabncauon stta for
both 130nm and 90nm products The continued expansion of
CSA's manufactunng base provides better access to addmonal
capacty In response toncreases n demand .

Enhancing a wortd-class sales and marketing organisation
CSRs acustomer-led company We help our customers create
products that enhance thelves of therr customers, and we
succeed through a commercial capabirty that is as well-respected
as our technical expertise

Our sales and marketing teams are at the heart of our dnve

to buid and maintan close working relationships with top tier
manufacturers n all our product areas, from handsets and
headsats to MP3 players, intemet radios and satellte nawgation
systems for vahicles Those relatonships are built on trust, servce
and the knowledge that CSR, more than any other company, can
help customers continue to energse the wireless revolution
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DIRECTORS REPORT - QUALITY LOCATIONS

THEWORLD'S LEADING
PROVIDER OF BLUETOOTH
TECHNOLOGY, WE HAVE
OVER 1,000 SKILLED
PROFESSIONALS OPERATING
OUT OF TEN COUNTRIES

Empioyee figures as at 28 Decomber 2007

22 CSR ple Annual Report and Financial Stalements 2007

DALLAS, USA

EMPLOYEES 54

BANGALORE, INDIA
EMPLOYEES 113

AALBORG, BENMARK
EMPLOYEES43

SEQUL & GUMI, SOUTH KOREA
EMPLOYEES 30



DETROIT, USA o CAMBRIDGE, EDINBURGH &

EMPLOYEES 31 LINCOLN, UKEMPLOYEES 659
SHANGHAI, CHINA TAIPE| & CHUNGLI, TAIWAN
EMPLOYEES 13 EMPLOYEES 26

TOKYO, JAPAN SOPHIAANTIPOLIS, FRANCE
EMPLOYEES 18 EMPLOYEES 17

STOCKHOLM & LUND, SWEDEN
EMPLOYEES 58
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DIRECTORS REPORT - BUSINESS REVIEW

Paul Goodndge
Finance Director

‘¥
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2007 was another strong year for CSR with revenue up 20%
to $848 6 mflon in 2007

CSR pic 1s the holding company of an ntermational group

of companies with s headquarters in Cambndge, inthe UK
CSR pke Iistad on the London Stock Exchange n March 2004
and 15 a constituant of the FTSE 250 Index

Prncipal Actvities

We design and supply singla chip wireless dewmces Through
our BlueCore range of products, we are the market leader nthe
supply of singte chip solutions for Bluatoath wireless voice and
data communications, provicing low cost, hgh performance
integrated arcutts {iCs or sficon chips} to manufacturers ofa
wids range of electronic devices These inchude mobie phones,
headsets, laptop PCs., PC penpherals, games consoles, sterec
headphonas, MP3 players and automotive based systems

We supply over 450 end customers including Dell, LG, Motorola,
Noksa, NEC, Panasone, RIM, Samsung, Sharp, Sony, TormiTom
and Toshiba We are extending beyond Biustoothtobnng a
broader range of short-range wireless technologies to market,
namely Wi-Fi, GPS, FM radio, UWB (Uttra Wideband) and Ultra
Low Power Bluetooth

We are organised around our research and development team
of 714 staff as at the year end (2006 609) Thamajonty of these
are basad m Cambridge in the UK, with teams n Aalborgn
Denmark, Stockholm and Lund m Sweden, Dallas and Datroit
in the US, Sophia Antipolis n France and Bangalora in India

Our sales and marketing function s centred n Gambndge in

the UK with sales haison offices in Dallas and Detrotin the US,
Taiper m Tamvan, Seousand Gumim South Korea, Tokyo nJapan
and Shanghai in China

CSR s a 'fabless' semiconductor company All wafer fabncation,
assembly and test, and stupping 15 subcontracted 1o Tawan
Semiconductor Manufactunng Cornpany (TSMC) and Advanced
Semiconductor Engineerng (ASE) in Tawan Currently, the
majonty of manufactunng s located n Taman to minimise
production cycle tme and mventory, smplify logistics and 1o take
advartage of a common language and culture We usea number
of TSMC wafer fabneaton sites, four different sites m Tarwan and
a fifth in the US, in addrbon 1o two test sites wath ASE wath a thurd
being addedin 2008 By increasing sourcing options, we are
better placed to deal wath any unplanned interruptions at any
singla locaton, as well as havng access to addimonal capacity

10 respond 1o ncreasas ndemand

Our partnerships with TSMC and ASE prowde us with leading-
edge manufactunng techinoiogy and strong support in sahsfying
capacity requirements and controling costs Using thus producton
process has enabled us to successfilly ship nearly one bilton
Bluetocth sngle chip devices lifetime to date, wiilst aggressive
cost management has mantained mangins as sefing pnces come
down This quatty of produchon process encourages adophon of
ourtechnology in the products of cument and potental customers



We markat to Cnginal Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs)

and Onginal Design Manufacturers (COMs), principatly through our
own drect sales force and, n North Amenca, through sales
representatves We also market our chips through a network

of disinbutors

Our marketing efforts are supported by ateam of apphcations
enginears who prowvide techrucal support and assistance to
eusting and potential customers i desigring, testing and
qualifying systems that ncerporate our products

This support is generally provkied without charge to customers
who have the potential to purchase targe volumes of products
An mportant part of our marksting effort involves providing
techmical support to product developers to ancourage them
to desgn products using cur chps For this purpose, we pronde
arange of deveicpment kits and tocls

Strategy

Our abjective 15 to ba the supplier of choice of sngls chip
solutions for wireless vaice and data communications
The key elements inciude

Blustooth in Cellular Apphcations
Our core strength s m mobile handsets and headsets and
our strategys to strengthen our postion in this market

Blustoath n Non Celutar Apphcations

The second element of our strategy 15 10 take the products

and technologias we have developed for handsets and headsets
and develop danvatives for tha PC, automatve and consumer
markatplaces amaongst others

Bayond Bluetoothn Cafiular and Non Cellular Applicatons

Woa wid contnue to add value beyond Biuetooth, in both the celular
and non celiular markets by ntegrating GPS, Wi-F and other
wirgless technologies

REVENUE INCREASED
FORTHE SEVENTH
CONSECUTIVEYEAR
TO $848.6 MILLION
AND REPRESENTED
A 20% INCREASE ON
2006 REVENUE OF
$704.7 MILLION.

Paul Goodridge

Markets

The markets m which we operate are mtensely compettve and
are charactensed by rapd technological change, evolving ndustry
standards and declmng costs Our pnmary compelibon includes
Broadcom and Texas Instruments

Wa provide our custormers with industry-leading solutions,
including a wide range of benefits which are discussed in more
detad onpagas9to 21

Operating review
The Blustooth market contnued to grow strongly n 2007 n both
celiylar and non cellutar apphcatons

Wa have maintained our leading positon in the Bluetooth

market with a strong designwin record Dunng 2007, the
Bluetooth SIG (Special Interest Group) changed the basis on
which it reported the successful suppher of Bluetooth for Bluetooth
product qualihcations, hence it is no longsr possible to provnide
mdependently venfiable design win market share data Howéver,
we do mantain mternal records of our own design wns Asanule,
thase design wins will be anindicator of future revenue although
some design wins are for products such as mobile phones
whech sellin morg votume than others, whilst some product
qualifications never go to production

Revenue ncreased for the seventh consecutive year to $848 6
midkon and represented a 20% Increase on 2006 revenue
($704 7 milon)

In 2007, we reorganised into two reportabla segments, Cellular,
which ncludes mobie phonas and headsets and Non Celuiar,
whichmnciudes applications beyond the mobia phone inciuding
PC, automotive and consumer applications

Wa have identiied business segments based on thentemnal
reporting within the Group and have chosen 1o aggregate those
business segments which meet tha aggregation crteria speciled
in Internatonal Financiat Reporting Standard B for disclosure as
reportable segments

Cellular Segment
We believe that the attach rate for Bluetooth m handsets
was between 45% and 50% m 2007

Dunng the year, we achiaved significant design wans including
impontantly, successas in Korea, China and Japan for both
GSM and COMA handsets which are expected to generate
revenues in 2008
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DIRECTORS REPORT - BUSINESS REVIEW continved

Our BlueCored4-ROM chipis the biggast seling Bluetooth chipin
history and remained very papular in 2007 BlueCore5-FM began
10 be designed mnto products and went into volumea production in
2007, while BlueCoreb 15 In mass production with sigmificant
design-m actvity and BlueCore? taped out on schedule

Swgnificant long term growth is forecast n the global wireless
headset market Due to a supenar product ofienng, weenoya
teadership position across all sectors of the headset market and
our market share was estimated ta be around 80% for 2007

Our leading positien n the mono headset sector contnued
The darmand for stereo headsets 1s bemng dnven by the growmng
number of mobile phones designed to support Blustooth stereo
augio streaming, and other products such as MP3 players,
PCs and games consoles

The market for embedded Wi-Fi has been slower to grow

than antcipated With demand concentrated on a ralatively
small number of high-and phones, evenues from Wi-Fi solutions
have been modest in 2007

Non Celutar Segment

Sigruhicant Bluetooth growthis happering in the non cellular
gagment, where we are the wreless connactmty prowder of
choice and achieve the majonty ol alt product qualfications
In 2007, the increasing trend of mcomorating Biuetocth into
applicatons beyond cellutar continued

Revenue from non cellular applcations has increased by over
50% from 2006 and now compnses over 22% of revenues

Revenues from the games console sector more than doubled
n 2007 and we continue to target new customers in the gaming
market where low latency s a kay differentator

Wirelass connectmty ts now widely demanded in the consumer
sactor We beheve that wireless connectivity will be a major
differentiator n MP3 players in 2008 We launched BlueCore
Prayern 2007, a singie-chp example reference design for wireless
MP3 players which offars OEMs and ODMs a radically new
approach to amusic player design a solution that is compatible
with standard Biuetooth wireless sterec headphaones and
implementad in a sngle chip, replacing as many as six of more
n some current designs

Ounrig 2007, we continued (o drive wireless connectivity Into
HIFi systems with Blustooth design-ins at Sony and Philips
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The automotve market continues to provide sigrificant growth
opportunities as Bluetooth connectty Isbeng ncorporated nio
a growing ranga of new build cars We expenenced a strong level
of design wins in 2007, cementing our marksl leadng postion in
this area The Bluetooth attach rate n new buld cars has
increased to around 10% and is expscted to continue growing
Afterrnarket car-kit solutions remain a growth market due to
tougher legislationinthe UK and the US|
Revenuss for the supply of Bluetoath m PC's incraased in 2007
We continue to add new funchonalmes to our Vista Features Pack
which works with Microsoft's Vista Bluetooth software, inchucing
the abiity to ntegrate Skypa with cur audho dnvers so that a user
can, for example, answer an nicormng Skype call by pressing a
button on thair Blugtooth headset

Production process and supply chan

We continue to mmvest in advanced production processes and
hava strong retationships with our major subcontractor partners,
TSMC and ASE Wa use five of TSMC’s waler fabncaton plants,
including one in the US and one which 1s specifically for 300mm
waters, allowing us 1o achigve dual sourcing objectwes, along with
gaeographical separation of manufactunng stes Simdarly, we now
dusal source assermbly and test operations between ASE Chung-L1
and ASE Kaohsung in Teswan with plans to add a thurd qualtied
site In 2008

Wae extended our IC test strategy duning 2007, with & further three
Teradyne Flex Testers consigned to ASE production sites in
Tarwan This strategy has been effective n reducing production
costs and avoiding capacity 1ssues

GPS Acquisitions

On 12 January 2007, we complated the acquishions of the entire
issued share capital of NordNav Technologies AB (NordNav'}
and Cambndge Postioning Systems Limited ({CPS’) NordNav,
based in Sweden, was acqurred for an swial cash consideration
of $40 muhon Afurther cash consideraton of up 10 $35 mdion1s
payable subject ta future performance objectives baing met by
NordNav with $7 9 mithon of this beng paid n 2007 CPS, based
n Cambnage, UK, was acquired for a total cash constderation
of $35 milkon

The development of our software based GPS solubon 1500
schedule See page 8 fordetals




Research and Development

We devote substantial effort to R&D, which underpins and
sustams our success We are conscious of the need to ensure
adequate financial and hurnan resources are avallable for R&D,
and thesaisstes and future planning are considered &t an
operational level and at each Board meeting 10 2007, underlying
RRD costs were $140 9 milion {2006 $107 3 mulion) representing
16 6% {2006 15 2%, of tumover

Patents

As aresult of our R&D effort and recent acquisitions, we have
nearly 200 granted patents and a sigruficant number of further
apphcations n Process

Dunng 2007, we reached an agreement with the Washington
Research Foundation (WRF) to settle the patentinfnngement suit
issued against 12 of our customers We remained of the view that
WRF's infrngement suit against our Blustooth chips was wathout
ment Notwithstandig this, we believed that an early resolution
of tha claim was both in our and our customers’ bestinterests
and accordingly a payment of $15 mion was made m Apnl 2007

We oblamed an undertaking from WRF not to sue us, our
supphiers, customers or end users for the aleged infrngement
by our products of the patents asserted in the sutt

Koy Performance Measures
Wae use a ranga of financia) parformance measures, reported on
apenodic bass, 1o assess the Group's performance over ime

To measure growth of the business

Revenue representing sales of single chip radio dewces to
customers, salss of serwices to customers and royalty ncome
from products sold under a royalty eaming kcence net of any
estimated provisions for credit notes and returns

To meastre performance of the busmess

Underng earmngs per divted share s used asameasure of the
rterest each potentally déutve share has in the performance of
the business Underlying earmings per diluted share is calculated
as nat profit for the penod before the impact of amortisation of
acquired intangible assets and the patent dispute settlement n
2007, {referred to under ‘Patenis’} dwded by the number of
potentially dilutive shares outstanding

To measure working capilal management

Inventory tums s used as ameasure of the management of
inventory levals in the business and represents the number of
tmes inventory turns-over n a penod based on the previous three
months cost of sales

Days sales outstanding (DO} s a measure of the avarage
number of days that it takes us to collect revenue after a sale
has been made We cakulate DSO by talung the balance of trade
recevablas outstanding at the end of a penod, dividing by the
revenue for the penod and then multiplymg by the number of

days in the pencd

Frae cash flow 15 used to represent the cash that we are abla to
generate ater cash outilows on capital expenditure We calculate
freo cash flow as cash generated by operations less expenditure
on tangible and intangible assets n the financial penod

2004 2005 206 2007
Revenue Sm) 2531 486 5 704 7 8486
Underlyng diluted eamings per share (5) 048 063 __o83 094
nventory tums (tums) 57 50 35 63
Days sales oulstanding (days) 40 42 45 37
Free cash fow (Sm) 286 84 6 78 2229
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DIRECTORS REPOQORT - BUSINESS REVIEW continued

Financtal Review including criical accounting policies

The table below summanses certain fnancial statistes for the
52 week penod ended 28 Decemnber 2007 Underlying results
exclude the amortisation of acquired mtangible assets and,

n 2007, the patent dispute settlement explained on page 27
A statutory format ncome staternent 18 on page 60 of the
financial stataments

Financial perforrmance

2007 2008 Change 0647

S Mdion $ Miton

Ravenue 8486 7047 +20%
Gross Profit 3983 3287 . 2%
Gross Margin 46 7% 46 6% +01%
“Underfying R&D 1409 1073 +31%
% of revenue _ 166% 152% +14%
*Undertying SGBA 836 704 +19%
% of evanue 99% 100% -0 1%
"Undarlying operating
profit mzq 1511 +14%
% of revenue 202% 214% -12%
Cperating profit 1501 1490 +19%
% of ravenue 177% 211% -3 4%
"Undarlying samings ’
per share($) (Duuted) 094 083 +13%
Earungs per share($)

083 o8z +1%

{Dnluted) :
- rumbars exchude the amorusation of acqustad mangibis asssts and
n 2007 the patant drsputa settement

Revenue increased for the seventh consecutive year to
$848 6 mullon and represented a 20% increase on 2008
revenue {2006 $704 7 melhon}

Though wafer cost and other product cost reductions,
we have contimued to maintan gross margn at aver 46%
of revenue in 2007

Operating expenses

Conpnued investment n R&D, ndluding costs assocated with
the acquired GPS technology, andinvestment in current and
future wireless solutions projects led undertying R&D costs to
mncrease by 31% when compared to 2006 (2006 increase over
2005 55%) Investment in apphcations engineers and sales
people contnued dunng 2007 and general and admmnistration
costs have increasead to support the growing levels of business

Undertying operating profit was $171 7 miion at 20 2% margin
compared to $151 1 mullion n 2008, (21 4% margin} Operatng
profitin 2007 mcreased to $150 1 mdion comparad to $149 0
rmidbon m 2006
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invastiment incomea

Imvastment ncoms increassd to $7 9 milkon i 2007 compared
to $5 1 milkon n 2006 as aresult of ncreased levels of cash and
cash equivalents and treasury deposis

Taxaton

The tax charge for the penod was $42 8 million (2006 $43 2
milkiony gving an effectve tax rate for the penod of 27 5% (2006

28 0%) Thisis below the statutory rate of 30 0%6 principally due to
the avalabibty of enhanced tax rehef on R&D expenditure and also
dus to the change in the carmyng amount of defermed tax assets
and habdities as a result of the reduchon in the UK statutory rate
from 30% to 28% from Apnl 2008 that has now been fully enacted

Earmings per share

Undertyng dilited earmings per share was $0 94 anincrease of
13% compared to $0 83N 2006 Diluted sarmings per share was
$0 83 for 2007, compared to $0 82 for 2006 Bastc eamings per
share was $0 86 compared to 80 86 for 2006

Cash Flow
2007 2008

$ Mitson $Mion
Operating profit 1501 1490
Non-cash tems 424 284
Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital 1925 1774
Working capital 599 (939
Taxation . _ (298 (78
Interast pad {0 4) 02 .
Net cash from operating actvities 2222 655
Treasury management ; 43 . . 1
AcOuisbons ' . B9 =
Caprtal expenditure 295 457)
Financng ©1) @3 ;
Purchasas of CSR shares by EBT (200) -
Net cash inflow 764 186

Dunng 2007 there has been a cash milow of $76 4 mdlon

(2006 $18 6 mifion} Operating cash flow before movements in
working capital contnbiuted $192 5 milion (2006 $177 4 rmlhor),
with movements in workang capital resulting in a cash mftow of
$59 9 milton (2006 outflow $93 9mikon) This decreasemn
working capiial reflacts management of inventtory holding levels
fromapproximately 15 waeks of hustonc cost of sales at the end
of 2006 down 10 8 weeks at 28 Decemnber 2007 Free cash flow
(dsfined on page 27)has ncreased by $185 1 million from

$37 8 milonin 2006 to $222 9 midonin 2007 as aresutt of our
continued excellent cash generation



Capttal expenditure of $28 5 milllon on tangible assets and
intangble assets, (2006 $45 7 milbon) reftects tha continued
nvestment in test equipment, computer equipment and CAD
software required 1o support current and future RAD projects

as wel as the purchase of prociuction testers to enable more cost
effective IC tosting This expenditure represents 3 5% of revenue
(2006 6 5%) Ourionger term expectation for expendhiure on
tangtble and ntangible assets ts estimated at 4% to 5% of revenus

Net tax pard was $29 8 midhien {2006 $17 8 mdhon) of wiuch
$28 7 mihon was paxd to the UK tax authonties

The cash outflow from financing was $0 1 milion pnncipally due
1o the repayment of obligations under finance leases offsetimg
tha proceeds on Issuas of shares (2006 outflow of $2 3 milion)

Dunng 2007, there was a cash outfiow of $20 0 million for
the purchase of shares n GSA pic by the Trustee of the CSR
Employee Benafit Trust

Caprtal management and treasury policy

Our policy 1s to mantan a strong capital basa so as to mantam
nvestor, creditor and market confidence as well as 1o sustan
future development of the business We intend to rervest cash
balances in the busness erther through higher levels of investment
in working capital and fixed assets or through M & A actmty,

to support the long-term armbrbons of the Group

Thessued share capital at 28 December 2007 was 132,073,576
ordinary shares of 0 1 pence each (2006 130,206,208) As aresult
of the funds raised through the iniitial public offerng in March 2004
and the subsequent positive operating cash flows, we had a total
of $245 4 mulion of treasury deposits, cash and cash equivalents
al 28 December 2007 (2006 $147 5 million)

Neither GSR pic nor any of its subsidianes are subjsct to any
axtamally mposed caprial requrrements

We mantan a prudent pocy in the placement of cash deposts
and nvestments with counterparties such that no mora than
20% of the total cash, cash equrvalents and treasury deposits
balance at any time 1s placed with counterparties with a credt
ratng of less than aat

We have well defined and consistentty appled poticies for the
management of foreign exchange and interest rate exposures
Therg has been no change since the penod end in the majer
financial nsks faced by the Group The Aucht Committes of the
Board reviews and agrees policies for managng foresgn exchange
and mtesest rate exposure nsks The pnncipal nsks and
uncerta:nties of the Group are discussed on pages 34 and 35

Our tinancial instruments compeasae cash and cash deposits

and tems such as trade recewables and creditors which anse

n the normal course of businass Itis our policy not to enterinto
speculative transactions .

Fareign exchange

Substantally all sales and costs of sales are denominated

1N US dollars, our functional currency Approxumately 40%

of operating costs are denommated in Steriing Thrs Sterbng
cumency exposure wauld result in gans or losses with respect
to movements in foresgn exchange rates and the mpact of such
fluctuations could be matertal

Accorthngly, we enter Into hedging transactions pursuant to
which we purchase Sterling under forward purchase contracts
in order to cover the majonty of our Sterkng exposure These
transactions necessanty involve judgements and assumphons
about future expenselevels, and, as a resull, donot entirely
etiminate our exposure tocurrency fluctuations Further, whilst
the hedging transactions provide fixed currency rates for penads
covered by the contracts, the transactions will not protect us from
long term undertying movements mn currency rales The average
US doflar/Sterting rate actveved in 2007 was 183 and 2008
contracts are m place at anaverage of 198

CSR Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)

Frorm tme to time, the Trustees of the CSR Employee Benefil Trust
purchase shares in CSR plc n the open market, the trming of thess ,
purchases depends on market pnces The shares are intended

o be used for issung shares under cur sharg Oplicn programmes,

thereby reducig didution and mantain headroom in respect of ABI !
diuton guidelines

Dunng 2007, the EBT purchased 1,466,767 ordinary shares in
CSRplc The shares held by the EBT are shown as adaduction
n shareholders’ equity m the batance sheet on page 61

1
Dnadsnd Policy I
In accordance with our stated pohcy, we do not nzend to pay

admdend for the foreseeabls future We cumently intend toretain

future eamings to fund the development and growth of the Group

Any payment of futurs dredends will be at the discretion of the

Board, after taking mto account vanous factors, iIncluding the

Group's financial conditon, operating resufts, current and

anticipated cash needs and plans for expansion
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Financtal Position
Net Assets up 25%
$ miltions
(2007 509}
(2006 408
2005 277
28 Dacermbeor 29 Dacambar
2007 2000
$ Mihon $ Mison
Non current assets
Goodwil 1442 520
Other intangible assets 451 37
Property. plant and equipment 529 454
Dealerrod tax asset 71 13
2493 1404
Current assets
nventory 773 1065
Cash flow hedges o7 45
Trade and other recavables 972 1018
Treasury deposits 520 300
Cash and cash equivalents 1933 175
4205 3603
Total assets 669 8 5007
Currant kabiines . (1828 @13
Non current tabdiies 83} 32
Total iabditias {1611) (04 5)
Net assots 5087 408 2

Goodwil arose on the acquisitions of CPS and NordNav in 2007
and Clanty and UbiNetics n 2005 Intangible assets nclude the
net book value of the Group's software licences of $15 8 millon
(2006 $19 3 milion) which support R&D, along withthe $29 3
mibon of in-process R&D and customer contracts purchased as
part of the soquisitions i 2007 and 2005 (2006 $12 4 mion)

Trade recenvables decreased skghtly to $81 6 mulkon

(2006 $87 2 mdhon) Days' sales gutstanding decreasedto
37 days {2006 45 days) dus to a higher concentration of sales
through distnoutors
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Inventory stands at $77 3 million (2006 $106 S muifkon),

which represents 58 irventory days (2006 105 days) The 27%
decrease in nventory represents managed decreases n inventory
holding levels from the tegher levels seen i the second half of
2006 which resutted from lower customer orders than anticipated
at tha tme wafer orders were placed with sub-contractors We aimn
to keep sufficient mventory to meet the often short customer order
jead tmes in thus industry wiich rasults in inventory days between
75 and 95 days

Critcal Accounting Polices

The preparation of these financial statements under IFRS requires
management to make estimates and judgements that affect the
reported amount of assats, habities, tumover and expenses,
and related disclosure of contingent assets and kabves Onan
ongomg basis, we evaluate estrmates, ncluding those related

to uncollectable accournts recanable, nventones, nvestments,
intangible assets, income taxes, financing operations, warranty
obhgatons and contingencies and kiigation Our estmates are
based on histoncal expenence and on vanous assumphons
that we believe 10 be reasonable under the crrcumstances,

the resutts of which form the basis for raking the judgements
about the camying values of assets and habdittes that are not
readily apparent from other sources Bacausa this canvary m
each suaton, actual results may difer from the esimates under
different assumptons and conddons

We beheve the following criical accounting policies are mmportant
nunderstanding our Consohdated Financtal Statements

Inventory valuation

Inventones are stated a1 the lower of cost and ne! realisable value
Provisions for excess or obsolate inventory are recorded based
upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions
if actual market concitions are less favourable than those projected
by management, additional inventory provisions may be recuared

Impairment of non current assets including goodwill

An annual impawrment testis performed in respect of goodwill

In addibon we assess our non cument assets for possible
mpairment if there are events or changes in crcumstances that
ndicate that carmying values of the assets may not be recaverable
Indicators of potential mpairment nclude changss m our busmess
plans, fajure to meet performance projections included w our
forecasts of future operating resutts, and a slowdown in the
worldwide economy or the semiconductor industry

The assessmeani of impaiment entalls companng the camying
value of the non current asset with the recoverable amount of the
asset that 1s the hugher of net realisable value and value in use
Value m use 15 usually determined on the basis of discounted
estimated future net cash fllows Significant management
pdgement s requared in the forecasts of future operating results
thai are used n tha discounted estmated future net cash flows
The estimates we have used are consstent with the plans and
estimates that we use to manage our business



it 1s possible, however, that the plans and esumates used may

be mcorrect If our actual resutts, or the plans and estmates used
n future mpairment analyses, ans lower than the onginal estimales
used to assess the recoverability of these assats, we could incur
additional impairment charges

Provisions and kabidities

Provisions and kabities are recogrused in the penod when it
becomes probable that there will be a future outfiow of funds
resuttmg from past operatons or gvents that canbe reasonably
estmated The timing of recognition requires the appkcation of
judgement 10 existing facts and circumnstances, which can be
subject to change

The camying amount of provisions and kabilties are reviewed
regularly and adyusted to take account of changing facts and
crcumstances Any change in the camying amourt wouid

result n a charge or credit to profit for the penod nwhich the

change ocCurs

Research and Development

Expenciture on research activities undertaken with the
prospect of garring new scientrfic or technical knowledge and
understanding s recogrised n the mcome statement as incurred

Where a product can be identified, ts cost can be measured.

it i tachrically feasible andit 1s probable t will generate future
economic bensfits, development costs are capitalised and
amortsed on a straight-ine basis over the estimated useful ife

of the respective product We believe our curent process for
devetoping products 18 essentally completed when products
have achieved the ‘Transfer to Producton’ status, asitis only then
that techrical feasibdity of the products to be manufactured and
sold to the commercial marketplaces confirmed Accordingly,
development costs mcurred after the estabbshment of techrucal
feasibdity have not been significant and, therefore, no costs have
been capitalised to date Where nointemally-generated intangible
ssset can be recognised, development expenditure s recogrised
as an expensemn the penod in wiuch it 1s incurred

Tanguible assets purchased for R&D purposes are capitalised
and deprecated on a straight-ine basts over ther estmated useful
kfe m bne with Group pohcy '

Share optiong
The share option schemes allow Group employees t0 acquire
sharesn CSR pic

Shars options granted before 7 November 2002 or grarted after
7 Novemnber 2002 and vested before 1 January 2005

No expense s recognised in respect of thess ophons The shares
ara recogrused when the options are exercised and the procesds
recened and allocated between share capital and share premium

Share optons and awards granted after 7 Novernber 2002

and vested after 1 January 2005

IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payments’ is effective in respect of options
and share awards granted after 7 Novernber 2002 and which
had notvested as at 1 January 2005 Wa ssue equity-settled
shars-based payments to certan emplayees Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at the fair value at the
dateofgrant The farr value determned at the grant date of

the equity-settled share-based payments 1S expensed on e
straight-bne basis over the vesting penod, based an our estmate
of the number of share options that will eventually vest The faur
valua of the majonty of ophons granted 1s measured by use of

a Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted For certan
share awards which nclude total shareholder return refated
periormance condions, the far value s estimated thiough the
use of a Monta-Carlo simutation

The amount recogrised as an expense 1s adjusted to reflect the
actual number of shares that vest Non-marke! vesting condiions
are mciuded in assumptions about the number of shares that are
expocted to become exercisable The estimates of the number
of share options and awards that are expected to become
exarcisable are reviewed at each balance sheetdate The mpact
of the revision of ongnal estimates, 1 any, 1s recogrised mthe
ncome statement and a comegponding adjustment to equity
The proceeds recenved net of any directly atinbutable transaction
costs ara credited to share capital {norminal value) and share
premium (the balance) when the option or awards are exercised

Share options and Taxation

Inthe UK and US we are entitied to a tax deduction for amounts
troated as compensation on exercise of cartan employees’ share
options under each junsdiction's tax rules Thisgrvesnsatoa
temporary difference between the accounting and tax bases end
hence a deferred tax assel s recorded This asset s caloulated by
companng the estmated amount of tax deducton to be cbtamed
in the future (based on the share price at the balance shest date)
with the share-based paymeni expense recorded in the ncormne
statement Ifthe amount of estirmated future tax deducton
axcoeeds the cumuiative amount of share-based payment expense
at the statutory rate, the excess 15 recorded directly in equity,
agamnst retaned eamings .

As explamned above, no share-based payment expense 1S
recorded m respect of Optons granted before 7 November 2002
Neverthatess, tax deductions have ansen and will continue to anse
on these opbions The tax effects 1n retation to these options are
recorded directly m equity aganst retained eammngs
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Segmental analysis
We have chosen to early adopt IFRS 8 ‘Cperatng Segments’
for the purposes of the 2007 financal statements

We have identified two reportable segments based on
the mformaton provided mtemally 1o management

Caliular, which includes mobie phones and headsets and
audio-related,

Non Celiular, Beyond the mobile phone including PC,
autornotve and consumer applcations

Employses

Headcount has ncreased from 923 at the end of 2006 to 1,062 at
the end of 2007 This predominantly reflects continued mvestment
n engeeers to support new R&D projects and further recrutment
¥ sales, marketing, applications engineenng and operations to
Support business growth

Our employees play animportant part inour success Weam
to attract and retan people who possess the requisite skills and
knowledge as well as the personal commitment to respond
effectvely to the challenges of workingin a ughty techrucal and
demanging environment Weinvestin providing competitive
benefits packages that support this objective recogrismg that
we compets in a glabal market

Qur remuneration packages are the subject of benchmarkang
aganst companias campeiing m our sector Wa also sesk to offer,
where possible flexble benefits that allow our employses to tador
thewr compensation arangements to suit them In 2007, our UK
HR department won the Professional Pensions award for the
quality of our mteractive website whech explamed options availabia
1o employees for establishing and then assistance n mamtamnng
ther personal pension plan online

We invest in training and career progressien that support the
indwidual in thewr career development, benefrt our customers in

the quahty of service and enable us to remain a world ieading
wireless solutons provider The Company promates and supports
indmduals and teams through bath on-the-job and formal tranmg
In 2007, we nhiated a comprehensive portfolo of learing and
development opportunities avasabia to all employees depending
upon therr needs and career aspiratons Duning 2007, our financial
investment n trainng and developmant grew by 39%

Dunng the past year, employees from two acquisiions were
welcomead mto our oparations, in addition to the successful
recrurtment of a further 200 people, with the resutt that by the
end of the year, we employed 1,062 people
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Wa recognise the need for effectve communication with afl

our employess and considerable focus 1S given 1o ensunng
employees are well informed about the Gompany and matters
that affect them and the organisation This s achweved through
both formal and informal communication methods, including a
regular CEQ newsletter sent wia our ntranet to all statf and team
brafings across all offices worldwide To assess the effectveness
of employee communication and the impact of our investment
n peoplen ts vanous forms, we will dunng 2008 undeniake a
global employee opinion survey This will assist n detsrmining
where current practicas are working and whergimprovements
rmught be made

We also recognise our responsibiidies to ensure far treatment

of all employees in accordance wath national legistation n the
termanes n which we operate Equal opportunimies for appropriate
training, career development and promaotion are avarabie 1o alf
employees, regardiess of any physical disability, gender, rehgion,
race or nationalty In particular, having regard to ther aptrtudes
and abiidies, we give full and fair consideration to applications for
employment received from disabled persons Provisions far
pension are avarlable for all employees etther through participation
n the state pension schemes operated by the country n which the
employes 1s resident or provision of a defined contnbuton pension
schema Such defined contnbution schemes are mamtained in
accordance with legistatve requirements, custom and practice
and Group policy as appropnale

Socal Responsilty

Wa recogrise the importance of social, environmental and

etnical (SEF) matters and dunng 2007, continued to work

towards comphance with the AB| disclosure gudelines onsocial -
responsibikty This ncludes the impact through our operatons

on the envronment, on the safety and wel beng of our employees,
and end users of our products as well as thoss whoconinbute to
the process of the development and manufacture of our products
through our suppliers, distnbutors and customers

We hava a Health, Safety and Environmantal (HSE) Comntige
which meets regularty and 1s chasred by the Facdihes Manager
Qur Heaith and Safaety and Envirgnmental policies are avafabile
to all employses on our ntranet stte as are the minutes of thea
HSE Comrruttes and current HSE tiateves Current intatives
are explained below Dunng 2007, the Board director responsible
for heatth and safety matters was Paul Goodndge. the Finance
DOwector MrGoodndge met reguiarty with those wha manage
our heatth and safety issues ncluging the Char of the HSE
Committee An annual reportis presented to the Board covenng
heafth and safety matters, which includes stabshics onaccidents
and incidents, progress against targets from the previous penod
and obyectives for the next year



it 1s the intention that the existing monitonng and reporting of
health and safety matters will be strengthened dunng 2008
through roll out across gverseas locations of a formal health

and safaty programme Tha project will be co-ordinated from
the UK, drawing on existing persannel in each overseas focation,
for whom appropnate traming will be provided

The Company expects theughest of ethical standards of all ds
employees and its policies and procedures support s stated aam
of acting with ntegnty m all aspects of ks operations

As detated last year, in.fanuary 2007, we actwaved certification
aganst the ntemationally recogrused environmental standard
130 14001 Dunng December 2007, we successfully concluded
survallance vists for both our 1ISC 14001 and OHSAS 18001
registrations, foliowing a combined assessment by Uoyds
Aegister Quality Assurance (LRQA)

Certfiication requires that we have an Ermronmental Management
System (EMS) which defines the environmental policy of the
Group and sets chiectives intended to drive continuous
mmprovements in emaronmental awareness and practices

Qur EMS, which has the support of the Board of Directors,

has been daveloped reflectng our existing low eco-footpant,
wth all employees workng n office based emvironments,

whilst recognising that high standards should be established
and mantamed across all aspects of our operations

Our environmental policy includes commitments to
- employee consultation and tramng

- assessment of our activities and product related emaronmental
impacts to identfy targets for contnuous mprovement and

~legal comphance and due consideratton of other stakeholder
envircnmental requirements

As part of employes consuttahon and traumng, dunng 2607,

we ntroduced a UK based awarengss campagn to encourage
employees to take steps to reduce ensrgy usage Thecampaign
was nroduced to &l stafl by the Chief Executive Officer
Employess are baing encouraged to reduce enengy consumpton
and save on glectncty through a vanety of measures Using
benchmark data denved from work performed in 2007 which for
the first ttme established fossil fuel energy consumption levels,
wea plan to pubhicise mternally data on a quarterly basis showing
actual consumphion with the objective of improving employee
awareness and encouraging all staff 1o take steps to reduce
energy cansumption As a result of rutatves already miroduced,
the Group has been able to reduce its CO2 smissions by 1%
and its Kwh power consumption by 10%

Ve encourage employes ntiatves that will support the
coemmilment to mproved envronmental practices Ag an example
of thus, in January 2008 we msigated a scheme to use recycled
paper as our stationery following employee-based represemations
1o switch suppliers to amore eco-inendly source

An assessment of water consumption conducted intemally end
valdated aganst data from extemal sources across our feasehold
premuses in the UK was also completed This established that
many of our existmg practices were In accordance with UK best
practice, although further measures (0 reduce water usage
ncluding instatiation of water flow dampers on laps across afl UK
sites hava been mplemented Msasures introduced n 2007 have
resutted n a savng of approxmately 30% on water consumplion
viataps Wa are working with contractors and loca! agencies,
mcluding our water supplier to ensure that accurate measures

of water consumption are regulary reported to assistinidentfying
any possible areas for further improvement

As part of our EMS for 2008, we have dentified further targets for
improvement, 5 addiion to those mentioned abave on energy and
watter conservation This includes as part of its foous on recyching,
invastigating opportunities o reduce the genaraton of waste
matenal in the first nstance and encouraging recychng In 2007,
an analysis conducted at CSR's UK locatons determined that
1,845,000 ltres of landfill waste Is created each year

Due to recycling intiatves ntroduced in parallal with this work,
by the end of 2007, we had reduced the amount of waste
consigned to land!dl by 31% Through recycling in cther areas
dunng 2008, the objactve s to turther reduce the waste sent
to landfifl by an esumated 9%

Wa also lock al ways n which we conduct our business and

how we can make changes that benafit the Company and the
environment As part of the mplementaton of improved T
systems, using state of thaart technology we have successfully
reduoedpmermunpbonmmspectafwrrsyslen\smmeUK
by 20% perannum, or the equivalent of over 180 physical servers,
provicing both dmact financial as well as envronmental benefits

Thists part of ongotng NMdiatves 10 assess opporturites 1o save
on power consumption across our [T systems

Anangoing obsective s 10 opbrise the use of greener matenals in
our end products We are committed to developing and supplying
products which meet the highest standards as regards minmising
the use of hazardous substances and meraasing the recyclabdity
of constituent matenals and the firushed preduct
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We have dedicated intemal resource which assists in the
davelopment af all new prodiucts and the review of existing
product ines targeting the use of gresner matenals Part of ther
role 1s 1o monrtor estabished and pencing legisiaton and
standards pubhshad by national and nternationat governments
and agencies and to ensure that we are proactive in going beyond
the minmum requrements m cur compliance with the types and
quantities of materats used In this respect we work closaly with
both customers and supphiers m developng products wiuch
reduce the use of hazardous matenals, and through testing and
certfication ensures ongomg compliance Our standard
integrated cwcutts are fully compliant with existing European
RoHS tegistation as well as in other terntones where equivalent
legistation has been ntroduced

We have processes in place to make sure that customers are
supportad with up 1o date matenals information and tabaratary
analysis to prove environmental complance of our products

We have considered the implications on our products of the
Europsan Waste from Electncal and Electromic Equipment (WEEE)
Drractive which cama into effect in 2007 and we are satished that
for our pnncrpal business of the supply of ntegrated crcuts, the
WEEE Directive does nat dinactly apply Where the Directive does
apply inlimited crrcumstancas 1 n the supply to therd parties of
denvelopment kits and certan modules mtended to support
potential customers mn the development of ther products Whist
this represants a small part of our operations. the impact of the
Directive has been assessed and steps taken to ensure
compliance have baenimplemented

Wa recogruse the importance of ensunng that our key supphers
have appropnate policies and practices on SEE matters Key
manufactunng partners are selected and assessed based on
certification o appropnate globally recogrused standards such
2515014001, OHSAS 18001 and SABQ00 Audits of therr
operations are urkiertaken reguiarly to ensure that appropnate
standards and certification exists

Princpal nsks and uncertainties
There are a number of potenttal nsks and uncertanties which
could adversety impact our long term performance

Fabless Business Model

Wa use indapendent suppliers to manufacture, assamble and
test afl products resutting in aless caprtal mtensive business
model We are tharefore reliant on these ndependent supplers
to provide the required capacty to manufacture, assemble and
test all products and to prowde tugh gualty products on ime
Anyinterruptions in manufactunng or testing at suppher sites
would have an adverse tmpact on the business
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To mitigate this nsk, we maintain an intemal manufactunng
suppert group which directs product supply, helps to ensure
a high lvel of quality and rekabdity and works with the wafer
foundry and production assembler to resolve 1Issues

Proguct Desgn Cycle

The design cycle for our ICs In Blustooth enabled products

can take up to 24 months 1o complete and achieving volurme
production of products using our ICs can take an addiional six
months or more This fengihy design cycle makes it difficuft to
forecast product demand and the timing of orders In addivon,
the defays inharent in lengthy design cycles increase the nsk that
our customers may seek 1o cancel or modify orders

Delays innew products due to complexity

Our products are complax and may contan undetected hardware
and software emors or falures when first miroduced or as new
versions are tesled Tha resolution of these errors could cause
us 1o Invest sigriificant capital and other resources and divert
techrucal staff from other development efforts If we delver
products with emors, defects or bugs, our credibdity and the
markel acceptance and sales of our products could be hammed
Ervors in hardware and software could also result in customer
warranty clams, resulting in addrional costs

Integranon of Bugtooth

The Blustooth standard has evolved dunng s ten year eastence
and more technology and functionality has been added to
Bluetooth chups At the same time our abilty to optimise chip
dasign and industry-wida manufactunng improvements means
the physical stze of sthe Bluetoath-only functien has reduced
There s a poterbal nsk of integration of tha Bluatoath function into
one of the cellular-chups in the phone However, given the high
attach rate of Blustooth in mobile phores and the consumer
demand for more non cellular tachnology n the phone e g FM,
GPS, etc), we believe Bluetooth wil contnue to be used as a
cermire around which to ntegrate other technology

Transmoning to smaller geometry process technologres

To reman competiive, wa expect 1o continue to transition
our sernicanductor.products to ncreasingly smalter ing
width geometnes This transition requinas modifications to the
rmanufactunng processes and the redesign of some standard
cells and other imegrated circuit dasigns that may beused n
multiple products This may result in reduced manufactunng
yields, delays in product defivenes and increased expenses

Product ife cycle, decinng prices

Thelife cycla of our Cs can be relatvely short The average
saling pnces of our ICs will generally fall over the product s e
cycle Our ability toincrease turmover, therefore, depends on
our aluity 1o increase unit volume and to mtroduce new products
that are accepted by customers



Terms of Sale

Sales are made through purchase orders with specific terms

and conditions Industry practice does, however, allow customers
to reschedule and cancel orders on relatvely short notice Asa
result, hacklog may not be an accurate indicator of future tumover
Customar crder canceliabons could resultin a loss of tumover
and excess nventory

Seasonality

Prncipally all of our customer design wins have been in products
with consumer electronic apphcations As & result, we expect our
business to be subject to seasonalty, with increased tumover in
the penod Apni to Novemberwith a slowdown in actvity in
December and into the (irst quarter of the following year

Economic conditions

Our products are predominantly supphed for adoption into
devices intended for the consumer market Inthe eventota
slowing 1 economic growth generally, demand for our customers
and therefore our products may be affected by changesin
consumer spending pattems

Cyclicalty

The semiconductor industry is cycheal and has expenenced
sigrificant downtums, often in connection with matunng products
and dectines in general economic conditions Such penods have
reflacted production overcapacily, excess iventory levels and
accelerated erosion in average seling pnces

New revenue sources

Our future success IS dependent upon our ability to develop new
semiconductor solubons for new and exsting markets, introduce
those praducts in a cost-effective and tmely manner and corvince
leading equipment manufacturers to select those products for
destgn into ther own new producis

Rehanca on success of customers' products

We rely on equipment manutacturers to select our products to be
designed mio therr products Furthermere, even it an equipment
manuiacturer selects our product, wa cannot be assured that thesr
product will be cormmercially successful As aresult, sales of our
products are dependent on the commercial success of our
customers’ producls .

Systemns and infrastructure

We are dependent on the continued avarlabiity and operational
wntagnty of our computer systems Wa continually review our
Informaton Technology mirastructure and develop plans to address
and, where relevans, test and rectify areas of potenhal weakness

inability to protect our inteflectual property

Qur suceass depends on our ability to protect our inteflectual
property and trade secrets Desprte taking prudent steps

10 protect our propretary nghts, third parties may attempt to
copy aspects of our products and seek touse mformation that
we regard as propnetary There 1$ & nsk that our means of
protecting our ntellectual property nghts may not be adequata
and weaknesses or falures m thes area could adversety affect
our business

Infnngemart of third party nteliectua! property nghts

Companies in the sermicanductor ndustry often aggressivety
protect and pursue therr mtallectual property nghts Clarms
agamst us could adverssly affect our abdity to martet our
products, require us to redesign products or seek licences from
thurd parties, and sencusly harm our operating results In addition,
the defence of such claims could result m s:gnaficant costs and
divert the attention of our management or other key employees

Management Is constantly considenng and reviewng nsk

In addition we have put in place formal processes for the
wenuficaton and, where possible, the management of sigruficant
nsks which are reviewed regularly by senior management

Thig 1s formally reported on a regular basis to the Audt Committee,
as a rasult of which the directors are aware ¢f the potantial cost
and rasources involved in managing these nsks Details on the
ientfication and management of nsks are also addressed on
pages 39 to 41 nthe Corporate Govemance Report

[0 Gt

Finance Director
27 February 2008
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DIRECTORS REPORT - CORPORATE GGVERNANCE

Statement of comphance

The Company supports the pnnciples of corporate governance
contamned in the Combined Gode on Corporate Governance which
13 appended to the Listing Rules of the Rnanced Services Authonty

The Board s accountable to the Company's shareholdars for
good governanca The Company has comphad with the provisions
set out n Section 1 of the 2006 Combined Code on Corporate
Govemancs, ather than the provson retatsg to the composhon of
the Board over the penod 30 Decermber 2006 to 3 January 2007

The staternents betow descnibe how the Company has apphed
the pnnciples kentfied in the Comtxned Code

The Board

As at 28 Decamber 2007, the Board compnsed seven members,
breang the Charman, Mr Ron Mackintosh, three executive directors
and threa non-executive dinectors Cf those mpost as at 28
Decamber 2007, five directors, mcluding Mr Mackintosh had served
throughout the year The three executive directors n office at

28 December 2007 were Mr Joep van Beurden Cheaf Executve
Officer (CEC) (appomtad 1 November 2007), Mr Paul Goodndge
and Mr James Colier The three non-executive directors ware

Mr David Tucker, Mr Anthony Carlisle and Mr Sergio Giacoistto
{apponted 4 January 2007)

in additron to the appontrment of two new directors to the Boand
dunng the year. three chrectors stoed down On 2 May 2007,
immadiately following the Annual General Meeting held that day,
Mr John Wiybrow, Charman and Mr Glenn Collinson, Executve
Vice President both stood down from the Board On 1 November
2007, Mr John Scansbnck, CEQ stood down from the Board

For the penod 30 December 2008 to 3 January 2007 the
compasition of the Board chd not comply with the Combmad Code
as regards the balance between executive and non-exacutive
directors On the apportment of Mr Giracoletto on 4 January 2007
and for the rest of the financial penod, the Board had an gppropnate
batance of exacuive and non-executive directors

The Board ts satsfied that an appropnate balance was in place
throughout the year to enable the Board to perform ds
responsibies effectvely

Followang the end of the financial yeay, effective 1 January 2008,
Mr Chns Ladas was apponted as an executiva director

Mr Ladas has since May 2000 served as CSR's Senior Vice
President of Operatons

In the Corporate Governance report to the 2006 Annuat Report and
Financial Statements the steps taken isading to the appontment

of Mr Mackintosh to the position of Chairman were explaned

Mr Mackintosh has served as a non-exacutrve director of the
Company since May 2004 Hes also a non-executive director of
software company Fidessa group pic {formerly rovalbiue group pic)
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The Board 15 satshied that Mr Mackintosh s able to devote the
necessary tma commitments to the rote of Charman of the Beard

Mr Tucker 15 the Semioe Indepandent Director MrGoodndgs
throughout the year was the director responsible for health and
safety withn the Group The directors possess diverse business
expenence m spheres complementary lo CSR's actvbes, as well
asother sectors Biographies of the directors are shown on page
42 MrBrett Gladden served as Company Secretary throughout

the year

The Board meets reqularty dunng the year as well ason an
adhoc basis as required by tme cntical business needs

The Board 1s responsible to sharsholders for the effectve and
proper managemant and control of the Company and Group
and has a formal schedule of matters reserved for 13 decsions
its pnmary roles are to determme and review Company strategy
and policy, consider acquistions and disposals, assess requests
for major capital expenditure and gve consideration to all ather
signficant financial matters Thus process s undertaken followmyg
discussions n conunction with senior executive management
who i tum are responsible for the day-to-day conduct of the
Group's operations and for reportng to the Board onthe progress
being maden meeting the chjgctves

The Chairman ensures that the Board functions effectvety,
overseeing the tmely and effectve provision of nformation to the
Board and that the business of the Board s property conducted
Acomprahensive file of bnefing papers and ameeting agenda ts
provided for each drector in advance of each meeting Decisions
are taken by tha Board, in conunction, where appropnate, with the
recommendatons of #s Committees and advice fromextemal
consuttants and executive management

The non-axscutive drectars of the Board have diverse business,
financil and techrical expenence, details of which are summansed
on page 42 and they each play a full role in the consideration of
matters brought before the Baard This includes considenng,
approving and montanng performance agamst the strategic
chyectives of the Group through detafed reviews conducted at
Board tevel Strategic obectives are determuned each year and this
assgssment mcorporates a two day offsde meetng attended by the
Board and the exacutive lgadership team that report to the CEO

In accordance with the provisions of the Combined Code,
consideration has been gven to theindspendence of all the
non-exaecutive drectors The Board considers all tha non-executve
directors to be ndependent of management and free from arty
busmiess or other relabonship that could matenaly nterfere with
the exercise of ndependent udgement




The dwsion of responsibilties between the non-executive Chaimman
and Mrvan Beurden, CEQ, is sufficiently clear in the opwruon of the
Board that it s not required that they be formally documentad

The CEQ has day-to-day responsibiity for the Group and has
reporting 1o him executve management who in tum are responsible
for tha performance of discreet commercal and operational actviies
of the Group The CEO meets regutarly with the executive leadership
team in vanous established forums that fit with the operational cycles
of the Group The CEQ formally reports at each meeting of the Board
on salient matters ansing from the execution of fus responsibiites

The Board met exght timas dunng the year and the attendance
of each of the directors s shown on page 41

Dunng the year, the Board underiook a formal process of
performance evaluation Each director completed a questionnaire
prepared by the Company Secretary, covenng a wide range of
miatters assocated with the actvities and conduct of the Board
and s committees The process was conductad without reference
1o external agencies A detatled sunmary of the responses was
prepared by the Company Secretary which was considened by the
Board as an agenda tem in December 2007 led by the Charman

The overall conclusion was that the Board and its Commuttees were
performing approprately

The Charman holds regular meetings with all the directors
ndivdually in addition, pnortothe yearend, the Charmanhelda
mesting with the non-executive directors 1o discuss the performance
of the exacutive directors which concluded that they were each

performing satsfactonty

in December 2007, the non-executive diractors, led by the Senior
Independent Director, met in the absence of the Charman to
appraise the performance of Mr Mackintosh since he assumed
the othce of Charmanin May 2007 The non-executive drectors
conciuded that he had performed well

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Assocation,

all directors ars requared to retire and submit themsetves for
re-elechon at least once every three years R sthe potey of the
Board that non-executive drectors are appointad for an il term
of three years, following which it wall be rewewed and as appropnate,
extended for a further penod not exceeding three years
Non-executive diwectors should not generally serve for more

than rine years

Dunng 2007 the letters of appoirtment for Mr Tucker and
Mr Mackintosh fell due for review following the complation by
each of ther initial three year term of appomntment

The letter of appomntment for Mr Tucker has been extended for atwo
year penod 10 23 January 2009 A new letter of appamntment has
been anterad nto with Mr Mackintosh reflecting his appomntment
to the postion of Chawman for a three year penod to 2 May 2010

On appomtroent, all directors are agwised that they have access to
the advice and services of the Carnpany Secretary and, in addrbon,
that they are entiled to seek ndependent professional adwice in the
furtherance of ther duties, f necessary, at the Company's expense
As part of they nduction, the directors are provided with a detarled
fda explaining thesr role and duties, I addition to backgrourd
information on the Company and Group as well as the funchon and
recent detberations of the Beard and ts committees In addibon,
where appropnate, meetings with adwisers to the Company and
Boand are arranged to assist n bnefing a director on appontment

Directors are also provided with information end assistance in the
event of any changa n theirroie Dunng 2007, MrGiacoletto was
appainted chaiman of the Remuneraton Committee

Mr Giacoletto was provided with a detated file of papers and held
amecting with New Bndge Strest Consultants LLF, by way of an
nitroduction to the role and responsibires that he was assuming

In accordance with the Comparny's Articles of Association,
directors are granted an indemmnity from the Company to the extent
perritted by lawiin respect of labdies incured as a resuit of the
performance of therr duties m thewr capacty as drectors to the
Company Thendemindy would not provide any coverage 1o the
extent that a director 1s proven to have acted fraudulently or
dishonestly The Company has also arranged insurance coverage
nrespect of kkgal action aganst the directors and officers

Commurcaiions with sharehclders

Principally via the executive directors, the Company seeks

to build on a mutual understanding of obyectives with ts major
sharehoiders through regufar meetings and presentations following
announcernents of each quarter's results Bunng the year,

Mr Mackintosh participated in a number of these meetings

The Senior Independent Director, Mr David Tucker, 1s avadable to
mest institLtional shareholders should there be unresolved rmatters
they wash to bang to tus attertton The Board s akso apprassed of
chscussions withmajor shareholders to ensure that executve and
non-exacutive directors consider any matters wiwch might be
raised by those shareholdars and o enable all directors to
understand shareholders wews Although the non-exacutive
drectors are not asked to meet with the Company's shareholders
as amatter of courss, ther sttendance at the Annual General
Meeting s requred Corporate mformation is also avadable on

the Company's websie, www csrcom

Commitices of the Board

The Board has three committees, Remuneration,
Audit and Nerminaton  Dunng the year, the Chayman and

all the non-exacutive drectors were members of the Remuneration
and Nommation Commritees
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Followng the appantment of Ron Mackmiosh as Charman

of the Board, it was agreed that he would stand down as Charmnan
of the Remunaraton Committee Accordingly in September 2007
Mr Sergio Giacoletto accepted the appointment as Chaumnan

of the Remuneration Committea As permitted by revsions to the
Combmned Code in 2006, Mr Mackintosh remains a member

of tha Remuneration Commuittee

Following the appomiment of Mr Mackintosh as Charman of the
Board he stood down as a member of the Audit Commyttes but
conbnues to attend meetings by nvitation

In eccordance with the Combined Code, the dutes of

the Committees are set out nformal terms of refarence

These are avalabte from the Company Sacretary and canbe
found on the Comparny’s website, www csrcom Membership

of the Committees & shown on page 42 The Company Secretary
acts as sacretary to each of the Committees

Remuneraton Comimettee

Mr Sergro Giacoletio 1s the Charman of the Rermuneration
Commuttea, having been apponted to that positon n
September 2007 The other membersoftheComemittee at 28
Dacember 2007 were Messrs Carlste, Mackintosh and Tucker

The pnapal funcbon of the Cormmuttes ts 1o establish and review
tha terms and condrtions for the executive direciors, arl the overall
pohcy framework for the remuneration of other senior executives
and the Group as awhole Tha Commiites met four imes dunng
the year and the attendance of ts members 15 shownin the table
on page 41

The report to shareholders on how drectors areremunerated,
togetherwith details of mdnadual dreciors’ remuneration are
shown onpages 47 to 57

Nominaton Committee

Mr Ron Mackantosh is the Chairman of the Nommation Committee
The other members of the Commitiee al 28 December 2007 were
Messrs Carbiste, Gacoletto and Tucker

The Committee meets as appropnate to consider appointments
to the Board and to consider succession planning &l semor levels
within the Company The Commuttee reviews the composition

of tha Board, partularty in refaticn to the diversity of skills,
expenence and tenm of office and seeks to ensure that both
execubve and non-executive directors have the necessary skills
and atinbutes for the future success of the Group The Commultee
retains external search consultants as appropnate and dunng
2007 engaged Russell Reynolds to assist in the appomtment

of a naw Chuaf Executive Officer
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Durng 2007, the Committes mst once formally to discuss the
appomniment of a new Chief Executrve Officer and on two occasions
informally to discuss the appointment of an addional executve
director, cutmunating i the appontrment of Mr Chins Ladas as an
additional exacutve drector effective from 1 January 2008

Mr Ladas has been Senior Vice Prasdent, Operations since May
2000 This function 1S responsible for the manufacturs, test and
supply 1o customers of the Comparnty’s products n additon to
project managing the succassful transtion o production of new
products and technologies and the contnuad qualfication of
products and tachnologies 1o the satisfaction of the Group's
customors The Board considers that Mr Ladas’ exsting role

N CSAR and previous executve pastions whichha heldnthe
samiconductor ndustry will contnibute to the batance of skilis
and expenence of the Board as a whole

Aucit Commitiee

Mr Dawd Tucker s the Chairman of the Audit Commttes

The ather members of the Committes at 28 December 2007

were Messrs Carlsla and Giacoletto With the appomtrmernt of
MrMackintosh on 2 May 2007 to the postion of Chamman to the
Boara, he stood down as amember of the Audt Committee but
contnues to aitend meetings by invitation The expenence and
expertisa of the members of the Committee are summansad on
page 42 The attendance of ds members s shownmn the tableon
page 41 The Commuttee met four times dunng Ihe year and
reported s conciusions 1o the full Board The Commttes rvites
the Chief Executive Otficer, the Finance Directoy, the Internal Auditor
and senior representatives of the external auditors 1o aftend meetngs
as appropnate to the business beng considered In addition, the
Committee has the nght tomvite any other employees to attend
meetings where this s considerad appropnate

The Committee 18 responsible for the development, mplementation
and monetonng of the Compary’s policy on external audit and for
overseeng the objectvity and effectiveness of the audtors

The Committee recommends the apportment and re-appamtment
of the Group's extemal auditors and considers the scope of ther
audst work, the terms of ther appantment, thewr fees and the cost
effectveness of ther work

Cunng 2007, as part of its formal business, the Committee met

on four occastons with the extemal auditors On two 0CCaSICNS

1he Commitiee also held separate meetings with the extemal
auditors at which no executive drector or emplayee of the Comparty
was present



The Commitiee ts aware of and has approved the audit and
non-audit sarmoes wiech have been provided by tha Cormpany's
external auditors, Delortte & Touche LLP dunng 2007 Those
non-audit services concerned adwice on tax matters wiuch was
considered 1o be appropnate, given ther in-depth knowledga

of the affairs and financial prectices n the Group The Committes
s sabsfied that, notwithstanding this work, Deloitte & Touche |LLP
have retaned obyectivity and independence dunng the year

Deloitte & Touchs LLP hava bean the Company’s auditors since
July 2002 and the cost, scope and effectiveness of the audit ane
reviewed regutarty Dunng 2007, the Committee commussioned
an mtemal review of the sffectiveness of the extemnal auditors and
concluded that Delodte & Touche LLP should be recommended
for re-appontment at the Annual General Meeting

Inrelation to the appomiment of external auditors and in order to
safequard audtor Independence and objectmty, the Comimittes
hasa pohcy of penmetted senwoes which detalls the services that
can be provided by the Group's auditors and thase senvces which
requre specific approval by the Committee The pobcy alsc details
services that the Group's audtors are not pemmitted 10 provide
The poticy has been compked with throughout the year

The Committea reviews all proposed announcements to be

made by the Group to the extant they contain financaal information
The Committee also monitors and reviews the effectiveness of the
Group's mtemal control systems, accounting pobcies and practices,
nsk management procedures and comphance controls as wellas
the staterment on intemal controls bafore they are agreed by the
Board for sach year's annual report

Tha Charman of the Committee atterxds the Company's Anrual
General Meeting to respond to any sharehalder questions that
rmight be raused concemng the Commitiee’s actmties

Dunng 2007 the positon of Intemal Auditor became vacant as a
resutt of the ncumbent transfemng to ancther financal role within
the Group A new Intemal Auditor has been apponted with effect
from 14 January 2008 Dunng tha ntervening penod the internal
audi function was performed by extemal acsers who were
commssionad by the Commities for specific projects

Intermal control

Predosoptty and policy

The obiectve of the directors and ssnior management s o
safeguard and ncreasa the valus of the busness end assets
ofthe Company Part of trus objective requines the development
of relevant policies and appropnate internal controls to ensure
proper management of the Company’s resources and the
identfication of nsks which might serve to undenmine them

The Soard is ultimately responsibie for the Group's system

of nternat control and for reviewang its effeciivaness
mesystemsandpmcessesestabhshedbymeBoardaredesngned
to manage, rather than elminate the nsk of fature to achieve
husiness objectives and prowde reasonable, not absolute,
assurance against misstatement orloss The Board has delegated
responsibitty for the revew of practices and procedures 10 the Audit
Committee The Company's seror management, in conunction
with external adwisers are responsthle for undertakung penodic
reviews of the surtability of curent Systems on which they report

to the Audit Committee

The Aucht Comumutiee reviaws the findings to ensure the
affectiveness and efficency of the processes implemented

by seruor managament Thrs mcludes discussions with senior
management of the Group end consideration of reports that have
been submitted These fincings are 1n tum regulary reviewed and
discussed by the full Board The Board 1 satisfied that this process
accords with the intemal control guidance for directors setoutin
tha Tumbuli Report ‘intemal Contral Guidance for Drectors onthe
Combined Code’ and that through ts interface with management,
the Beard 1s aware of the major nsks tacing the Group and the steps
taken by the Group to mtigate such nsks, so far as is possible

The nsk evaluabon process descnbed in this report has been In
placa for 2007 and up to the date of approval ofthe annual report
and financial statements

Managing nsks

The Board confirms that the actions it consklers necessary have
been or are being taken to remedy such fatngs and weaknesses
which it has daterminad 1o ba signdicant from s review of the systemn
of ntemal control This has mvoived considenng the matters
reported to 1t and developing plans and programimes that
considlers are reasanable in the circumstances

A summary of the structures and processes in place to idently
and manaxje nsks across the Group are set out below

Resk profiing

Thero s an ongomng process to dentify and evaluate nsks faced by
the Group, through the conduct of regular meetngs by the Group's
serior managament, and engagement of extemal consuttants
wheren the opirvon of the Group's Senior Management this 1s
considared appropnate Findings are reportad to the Audit
Commuttes together with recommended actans for managing

the nsks and a tmetabla for mplementation The assessmert of
paonused nsks s refreshed on a regular basis (o reflect changes

1o the business and any cbservatrons or proposals ansing from
events since the last review A schedule of the pnontised nsks along
with other management Information 1s used to develop an overa
assurance plan for the Group
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Controlling nsk

The Group has polcies which address a range of key business nsks,
mechuciing financsa, treasury, health and safety and the protection of
nlalectual property The policies are made avatable to relavant
empioyeas through policy manuals, aniniranet ste and dso via
empioyee briefings on specific 1omcs as appropnate

Penocically, reviews are performed m orde to vertfy that ongoing
practces wittun relevant parts of the Group comply with current
policies In addron, poticies are themsetves reviewed agamst best
practice and in order 10 take appropnate account of developments
both within or extemal to the Group's business cperatons
Ongomyg steps are beng taken to embed internal control and nsk
rmanagament further nto the operations of the Group and to deat
with araas ofimprovement which come to management's and to
the Board's attention

Dunng 2007, a formal review of the Group's cash contrel policies
was undertakan by KPMG LLP, the resutts of whuch were reported
to ameeting of the Audit Commitiee The report concluded that
overall practice withun the Group was acceplable, whist also
identrfyng areas which might benefit from improvement A report
was provded to the Audit Committea detaling the findings and the
steps taken to address the recommendatons and that report was
considerad at a formal meeting of the Committee

As part of an ongoing review of the prataction of the Group's
intelectua! property portfolio and with the assistance of external
adwvisers, the Group undertook a rewew of the patents obtained
through the acquisitions in January 2007 respectively of NordNav
Technologes AB and Cambndge Posiborung Systems Limited
The means by which the Group suppors the developrment and

of ts ntatiectual property s also penodically reporied
to and consdand by the Audi Committes

The Group has 2 formal whistie-bicwng poscy which was tast
up-dated dunng 2006 and has been communicated to employees
The pobcy provides imformation on the process to follow inthe
event any empigyee feals ¢ appropnate 10 make a disclosure
The Commuttes 15 satsfiad that the policy provides an adequate
bass for employees to make representations n confidenca to the
Group and for appropnate and proporbonate rvestgation

The Group cames oul a programme of management setf-
assessments over the status of key business nsks through forrmal
revews whch consder the nsks faced by the busmess, how these
rught be migated and whao within the Group 15 respansitite for
rmplementing agreed actions Where appropnats, extemal advisers
are appomnted n order 10 support this progess
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In2007, the Group undertook a review of 1S msurance broker
sernces which resutted m the appantment of a new global
broker The new broker supported the renewal of the Group's
msurance programme and has anongong remit 1o review the
existing programime and recomimend improvernents where
consicdered relevant

Montonng and managng the status of residual nsk

The actions ansing from extemnal and intemal assessments of nsks
are consolidated and dunng 2007 the results were reported to the
Audit Committee

The Committee assesses the findings and proposed
actions for addressing residual nsks and also advises on
areas for further attenon

Business Continunty Planning

Dunng 2007 a project was niated to refrash the Business
Continuty Plan for the Group The project was faciitated by the
nsk managemant practica of a leading ndependent consuftant
Through warkshops and ona-on-one interviews, the potertial
significant nsks were idendified and an action plan established to
enabie the Group to respond in the-event that sucha nsk arose
That plan i the subject of cortinuing work in 2008 The findings
and steps taken to date have been reported to the Audit Committee

Intarnal financial controls

The Group has a comprehensiva system for regular monitonng
and reporting of financial performance and assessing the adequacy
of the Group's systems of ntemal controls Fisk assessment and
evaluation 1s an ntegral part of the annual planning cycle This
nchudas assessment of the Group's strategee drection, cjectves
and financial retums and the nsks n acheving them

Aspart of the ptanning ¢ycle, a detaled budget is prepared by
managament and thereafter 1s reviewed and formally adopted by
the Board The budget and ather targets are regularty updated via
aroling forecasting process and reqular busness review meetings
araalso hald rmvohang semor management woridwide, at which
the Group's overal performance s assessed The results of these
reviews are in tum reported 1o and discussed by the Audit
Committee and the Board st each meeting A summary of the

key financial nsks mherent In the Group’s business s gvenon
pages 28to 31 and 34 and 35

These processas are supportad by discrete rewews conducted
by exiemal acwsers, as determmned by the Commuttee, in addiion
to tha routine audits



Dunng the year the Committee approved the ntemal audt plan
Follawang the re-assignment of the (ntermal Auditor to another
financial role in the Group, certain tasks identfied in the plan were
contracted out to extemal acwvisers, mclucing audits of ntemal
controls at two oversaas locations, the findings from which were
reported to the Audt Committes

Thie Board confirms that it has reviewed the sffectiveness of the
systemn of intemal controls which were n place throughout the
financial year and up to the date of sigring the linancal statements
for the 52 week penod ended 28 December 2007

Attendance at meetings

The table below shows the attendance of each of the directors
at meetngs of the Board and its Committees held dunng the
52 weeks ended 28 December 2007

) Board Auciit Remunemtion Normanation
No of Meatings 8 4 4 ]
JA JvanBaurden' 2 - - -
JO Y Colher 8 - - -
PG G Goodndge 8 - - -
RW Mackintosh? 8 2 4 1
AECGCarste 8 3 4 1
SGacoletto 8 4 4 1
DL Tucker 8 4 4 1
JC Scansbnck® 6 - - -
G Colnson? 3 - - -
J W Whybrow* 3 - 1 =

t ApposTied 10 the Board 1 Novemnber 2007

 Foliownng s eppouniment as Chairman of the Board Mr Mackiniosh atiended
two further moetinga of the Audit Comimutiae by wwvitabon ks as a memtyer
oftha Commuttee

1 Steppad down fnoen the Board 1 Novernibar 2007
“ Stapped down from the Board 2 May 2007

Annual General Meeting resolutons

The rasolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to be
helcion 15 May 2008, together with explanatory notes, sppear in the
separate Notice of the Annual General Mesting, which has been
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1 Ron Mackuttosh @ 4

tNon-exacutva Dector,

Charman, Chanman.of the Nommaton Commitee

MrMackintosh has servecd as a non-exscutiva drector of CSR snce

May 2004 and was apparted Charrman with effect from 2 May 2007

Mr Mackntosh s 8 non-axecutve drector of software company Fidessa
group pic Mr Maclartosh has hed a number of Senior executve poshons
n European technology companes Between 1992 and 2000 he was chvel
exacutve of Computer Scences Corporation § (CSC) European busmness
which had revenues of $2 5 bdson He 5 aiso a formex director of Gemplus
SA, and the tormar charmen of each of Smartstream Technologes Lid,
Northgata informaton Satutions pic.and aiso of Ddferents, a prvately owned
{T consuitancy whach he co-foundad n July 2000 Age 53

2 Joap van Beurdan

Chiet Executve Officer

Mevary Baurden was appointed Chiaf Executve Officer of CSR on

1 November 2007 Mrvan Beurden has over ten years of eqenencan
managang technology companes in the US and Eusrope Fortha threayears .
pror 1o joning CSA, he was Chief Exacutve of NexWava Inc a provider of
embecided software solubons for the consumer electronics market based
inFrance Batora joning NexWave, Mr van Beurden hekd senor posthans at
Canesta Inc , alabkss sermconductor company, and Philps Components
Whist at Philps, he was part of the executive team which established a
successiul consumar eiactromcs et venturawath LGE Pror tothat,
Mrvan Beurdan workad for five years kor management and stratagy
consultants McKinsey & Company Mr van Beurden has also worked as a
Uudaodtmderkwﬂowimmsr\elnﬂonerdammdladumdnﬁm
andd Bloctronics 8t the Unversty of Zemia  Mrvan Beurden holds a Masters
degree n Apphed Physics from Twente Universty of Technology

n Enscheds, the Nethedands Age 47

3 James Colier

Cheef Techrusal Otficer, Co-lounder

Mr Colter has servod as the Comparny’'s Chvef Technical Officer snca CSR's
establshment in Apnl 1599 Mr Coliier 3. a co-founder of CSR Batween 1884
and Apri 1699, Mr Colier heid a number of executive and techncal postions
at Cambnoge Consuttants Lid, whexe ha formed the microslectronics group
1n 1887 Pnorto 1584 Mr Colter hekd 8 number of executve and techreGal
pasons at Schiumberger Mr Colier has a degree i physics trom the
Unnarsity of Ondord Age 48

Mr Carlsia was appoited & non-executive director of CER in July 2005
Mr Cartsio s an exscutve direcior of Ctigate Dewe Rogerson, where ha
18 responsble for strateqc consultancy and clent serwces Ha has over
30 yoars expenence n Markating and CommumCations, advising major
companes n the UK and ntematonally He holds a BA in Economcs
and 15 a Fallow of the Institute of Pubic Ralabons Age 60
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& Ramuneraton Commties
B Auckt Comerettoe
A Nomn2ton Comraioe

5 Paul Goodndge

Fevance Drector
WGoodndgesatvedasmeeomorforCSR!mmmzoozlo
29 Fobnuary 2008, having pmed the Comparty in 2000 Pror 1o )oeng CSA,
Mr Goodndge was Head of UK fnanca for PA Consuting From 198010
1997 Mr Goodndge had a vanety of seror financal postions 2t Black &
Decker Inc and Chamngtons Fuets Limted Mr Goodndge 1S 2 member

of the Institute of Charterad Accourtants i Engiand and Wales Age 42

6 Chns Ladas

Operations Dractor

M Lackas was appouted a drector of the Company on 1 January 2008

Hae has served a3 CSR s Senor Vics President, Operabons since May
2000 Batwoen Januzary 1996an0 May 2000 MrLadas served esthe vice
prasicent of operations at Meno Linear Coporaton Pror t0 1996, Mr Ladas
held severa! managena) and technecal pastons at National Samconductor
Farchid, Hams Sperry Motorola and Signatics MrLadas holdsaB S n
chesmstry from Anzona State Unvarstty, US Ho s also amember of the
institute of Blectncal and Blectronics Engineers and a member of tha Europe
Mridka East and Afnea teadershp Counci of the Global Sermiconductor
Alance (Formerly the Fabless Semiconductor Assoaation) Age 62

7 Sargo Gacciotio @ H A

Non-executve Drector,

Chaimman of the Remuneration Comitee

Mr Giacolstta was appontad a non-executve drector of CSRon

4 Jarwaty 2007 i September 2007, MrGaacoletto assumed the role

of Charman of the Remuneraton Commdtee Mr Giacoletio 18 exacutive
wioa presdent of Oracke Corporation, Europe, Middle East and Alnca

Mr Giacoletio etso serves as a member of Oracle § Executve Management
Cornmates Pror toorung Oracie n 1957, Mr Gacolatio was Presdent,
Valua Addod Serwces a: ATAT, before wiech he spert 20 years with Oegal
Emummmmnmsmwmmgmmtwmmm
Mr Gacolatto has sarved on mutpie company boands and Tndustry
assocrabons He s currently non-axecutive drector of -flax Soiutons Limited
hes amamberof tha Workd Councl o Sustanabla Busness Development
and 1 a member of the South Alncan Presidentsal intemabonal Advesory
Counci on Information Soaety and Development He hoids a Mastors

n Computer Scence iom the Unwversty of Tunn Age 58

8 Davd Tucker @B A

Non-axecutre Dwracior

Servor Independent Dector, Chamtnan of the ALt Commitiee

Mr Tucker jorned CSR as a non-executive director m January 2004

Alter 19years a3 annvestment manager with M&G v trusts, Mr Tucker
vetinad &5 deputy maragng dractor n 1988 He s currently anon-executve
director of Edinburgh UK Tracker Trust pic where, untd Apnl 2005, hawas
charman Mr Tucker s a member of the Insttute of Chartered Acoouriants
n Engtand and Wales Age 68



DIRECTORS REPORT ~ OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Actvities and business review

CSR s aleading developer and prowder of single chip wireless
sohuhons designed to suppon data and voce communications
between a wide range of products over shart range radio Iinks
More detaded nformation on the poncipat actvitigs of CSR plc
and its subsidianes, together with a review of the businesses and
adescrpron of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties facing the
Group along with other mformation that fulfils the requirements
of the Business Review are set out on pages 2410 35 Theuse
of financial nstruments 1s covered within the Directors Report -
Busmess Review Detais of the subsidianes and branches of
the Company are set out on pages 92 and 100

Financial results

The Group's consolidgted mcome statemient. set out onpage
60 shows an increasa 10 $171 7 millon i underying operatng
profit compared to an undertying cperatng profit n 2006 of
%1511 mihon Turmover increased by 20% to $848 8 mullion from
8704 7 enillion in 2006 and undertying diluted earmings per share
waere $0 94 trom $0 83 1n 2006

tn accordance with stated policy, no dvidend will be pad n
respect of the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2007 (2006 )

Acquistons dunng the penod

On 12 January 2007, the Comparty completed the acquisitions

of the entira issuad share capital of NordNav Technologies AB
{NordNav?) and Cambndge Postioning Systems Limited (GPS')
NordNav, based n Stockhe!m, Swaden, has been acquired for
an intial cash consideration of $40 milion The agreement for the
acquistion of NordNav provided that a further cash consideration
of up to $35 mullon may be payable subject to achevement ot
specified miastones, of which $7 9 mdion was pard in 2007

CPS, basaed in Cambrndge, UK, has baen acquired {or a total cash
consigeration of $35 rmuion Both NordNav and CPS were private
companies, with ssgrificant holdings by venture capial mstitutions
The intial cash consideration for the acquistbons, the deferred
consideration pard n 2007 has been and any furtherdeferred
consiceration will be financed entirely from CSR's existing cash
resourcas

Future development
it remnains the Boargd's intention to develop the Group through
organtc growth and selective acquistion

DOwectors of the Board
The drectors who served dunng the year are explanad on page
36 of the Corporate Governance report

Change of Control

Al of the Company's share schemes contain pravsions relating
to a change of contro! Quistanding options and awards would,
subject to satsfaction of apphicable performance conditons and
certain rules of the parcular schemss normally vest on a pro-rata
bams and become exercisable on a change of control
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Share Capital

‘The Company's orcinary shares with a par value of 0 1p per
share, are quoted on the London Stock Exchange The nghts
and obhgations attaching to the Company's ordnary shares are
set out In the Company’s Articles of Association, copies of which
can be cbtaned from Companies House m tha UK or by wnting
to the Company Secrelary There are no restnctions on the voting
nghts attaching to the Company's ordinary shares No person
holds secuntes in the Comparny camying special nghts with
regard to control of the Comparny The Company s not aware

of any agreements between holders of secunties that may resutt
i restnchions on the transfar of secunties or on voting nghts
Unless expressly statadto the contrary i the Articles of Association
of the Company, the Company’s Articles of Association may be
amended by special resolution of the Company's shaneholders

Dunng the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2007, options

wore exercised pursuant to tha Company’s share schemes
The number of shares aliottad and the consideration receved n
respect of such allotments aro detaled in note 25 of the Fnancal
Statements on paga 79

The directors propose (Resolutian 9n the Notice of Meeting) to
renew the authonty granted at the Annual General Meeting hetd

1 2007 1o aliot equity shares ug to an aggregate nomnal value of
£44,099 (representing approxmatsly ane thurd of the ordinary
shares issued at the date of this report) (the ‘Saction 80 Authortty’)
It approved, at tha forthcoming Animua) General Meeling, the
Section 80 Authonty will expire no later than 15 months from the
date on which the resolution s passed, or at tha concluston ofthe
Annual General Maeting 10 be held n 2009, whichever s the sooner

The lrruted power granted to the directors &t the Annual General
Meennghe@deayZOOTloa!lclemnysharesforcashcmg
ﬂmpmrmaloenstlngmarehddersmsmlata’man

2 August 2008 Subject to the termns of the Section 8O Authonty,
the drectors recommend (Resolution 10 n the Notce of Mesting)
that this authorty shoutd be renewed so as to gve the abifity furtd
the Annual General Meebng held m 2009) to issue ordinary shares
for cash other than pro-rata to exsting sharehokders, m connection
witha rights Issus of up to a bmit of 5% of the ordinary share capstal
ssued at the date of this report. The directors have no present
ntention g 1ssue ordinary shares other than pursuant to the
Company’s employee shareschemes The directors recommend
that youvote n favour of Resolutions 9 and 10 to mantan the
Company’s flexiiity n relation to future share issues, including arny
1ssues to finance business opporturvties should appropnate
Qreumstances anse

A Spacial Resolution will be proposad (Rescluticn 11 mthe Notice
of Meeting) to renew the directors’ imited authonty last granted n
2007 to repurchase crdmary shares inthe market The authonty
will be imited 10 a masumum of 13,229,896 ardinary shares (being
10% of the Compary's 15sued sharg capital at the date of this
report) and alsa sets tha miNMum and maximum prces wihich
may be pad



The directors beheve it 1s advantageous for the Company to have
the flesabrity to make market purchases of its own shares Inthe
event that shares are purchased, they would ether be cancelled
{and the number inissue would be reduced accordingly) o, sutyect
to the legistation refemred to below, retaned as treasury shares
The directors wall only make purchases after consideration of the
possible effect onearnings per share, the long term benelits to
sharehoiders and consultation with adwisers

The Comparies (Acquistion of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares)
Regulations 2003 aliow shares repurchased by the Company to
be held as treasury shares that may be cancelled, sold for cash or
used for tha purpose of employee share schemes The Company
currently holds no sharas in treasury The authomnty contaned in
the Specal Resolution will exprre 15 months aftertis gvenor, of
earlier, & the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held
n 2009 but i rs the current intendon of the directors to renew this
authonty annually

Articles of Association

The directors propose {Resolution 12 In the Nouce of Meeting)
to adopt new Articles of Association in order to update the
Company’s current Articles of Association pnmartdy to take
account of changes in English company law brought about by
the Compames Act 2006 An exptanabion of the main changes
between the proposed and the eustng Articles of Assocation
1S 56t out n the explanatory notes to the Notice of Meeting

Dua to the phased nature of the Comparues Act 2006, it 1s ikely
that further retated changas to the Artictas of Associaton will be
proposed at subsequent Annual General Meetings

Employee Benefit Trust

Duning 2007, the Company engaged Close Trustees Jersay
umited to estabhish the CSR Employee Benefit Trust {the Trust’)
The Trust has been estabished to faciitate satsfyng the issue
of shares to employeas within the Group on exercise of vested
options under the vanous share opton plans of the Company

Durng 2007, the Trust acquired in the open market an aggregate
of 1,466,767 ordinary shares inCSA pic Thig was satisfied
through cash drawn down under the terms of a Loan Faciity
Agreement established at the tme of the creation of tha Trust
entered into betweaen CSR ple and the Trust The detals of each
purchasa of orcinary shares in CSR plc ts shown nNote 26 tothe
Fnancial Staterments on page 81

As partcipants i the share ophions plans, the executive directors of
the Company ara potential beneficianes from the shares held by the
Trust and are theretore regarded for the purposes of the Compantes
Act as bainginterested in ordinary shares held by the Trust

Drrectors

Detatls of the directors of the Board who served dunng the year are
contaned on page 36 Biographias of the directors in office at 28
December 2007 and for Mr Ladas, appainted 1 January 2008 are
onpage 42

In accordance with the Articles of Assoaation, the dectors

retinng at the Annual General Meeting will be Mr Joep van Baurden -

and Mr Chns Ladas as they have been apponted since the last
meetng Bemng eligble, Mrvan Beurden and Mr Ladas offer
{hemselves for daction Mr Carlisle, and Mr Coflier are retinng
by rotabon and, beng ehigible, offer themselves for re-election

The terests of the executive directors in the options of the
Company are detased n the Remunerabon Report on page 56

Directors' interests in shares

The register kept by the Company pursuant to section 325of the
Companies Act shows that the directors in office at 28 December
2007 and their famibes had the under-mentioned interests in

the ordinary shases of the Company Tha teble also shows the
holding as at 28 December 2007 of Mr Ladas who was apparnited
a director eftective from 1 January 2008

28 Docomber 2G Dacember

2007 2006

Joepvan Baurden - -
Anthony Carlisle 4,000 4,000
James Colher 1,01491 1,003,898
Paul Goodndge 23,31 15,000
Sergio Giacoleilo 5,000 -
Chnis Ladas' 75,000 .
Ron Maclantosh 75,000 20,000
David Tucker 100,000 80,000

hAr Ladas was appaintad o the Board effoctve 1 January 2008

There were no other changes to the Drectors’ shareholdings
between 28 December 2007 and 27 February 2008 The
foregoing holdings do not inciude the ordinary ghares held by the
CSR Employee Benefit Trust in which the executive directors are
potental beneficianos as disclosed above

Payment of crediors

The Group agreas payment terms with s supphers whenit enters
nto binding purchase contracts At 28 December 2007 the
number of creditor days outstanding for the Company was
3012006 30)and forthe Group was 54 (2006 57) -

Donations

The Company and employees support a number of chanties
for a vanety of causes For the penod endad 28 December 2007,
the Company made chantable donations totaling $4,678 The
Company did not make any polical donations dunng tha year
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DIRECTORS REPORT - OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION continued

Directors’ responstility statement

‘The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Raport,
Directors Remunaration Report and the financial statemants
The directors are required by the Intemational Auciting Standards
(AS) Regulation to prepare financial staterents for the Group in
accordance wath lnternatonal Financial Beporing Standards
(FRS) as adopted by the European Union and have also elected
to prepare financial statements for the Company in accordance
withiFRS Company law requires the directors fo prepare such
fnancaal statements in accordance with the Comparies Act 1985
and Artcle 4 of the IAS Regulanon

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial
statements present farly for each financial year the Company's
hnancial positon, financial performance and cash flows This
requires the faithful representation of the effects of ransactions,
other events and condibons in accordance with the defintions and
recognhion crtena for assets, labilities, income and expenses set
out in the intemnational Accounung Standards Board's 'Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements’
Inwirtually all crcumstances, a faw presentation will be achieved
by complance with all apptcable intemational Financial Reportng
Standards Deectors are also required to

- properly selact and apply accounting policies,

- prasent information, ncluding accounting policies, in a manner
that provides elevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information, and

- provide addtional disclosures when compliance with the
specriic requirements N iFRS 18 msufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of paricular transactons, other
events and conditions on the entity's financial position and
financal performance

The cirectors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any Hma

the financial posttion of the Company, for safeguarding ths assets,
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and otherirregulanties and for the preparation of a dinectors’
report and directors’ remuneration report which comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act 1985

The diractors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty
of the Company webstte

Legrslationin the United Kingdom governing the preparaion

and ckssemination of financial statements differs from legrslation
inother junschckons
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Each of the drectors at the date of the approval of this report

confirms that

- 50 far as the director 1s aware, there s no relevant audit
rformation of which the Company's audtors are unaware, and

- the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have
taken as a director to make himself aware of the relevant audit
wiformation and to estabsh that the Company’s auditors are
aware of that information

Tha directors, having prepared the financial statements,

have permitted the audriors to taks whatever steps they

consider appropnate for the purpose of enabling themto

gva thewr audit opinion

Substantial sharehoklings
The following table shows the Interests notified to the Company
under the Comparues Act 1985 of a holding m excess of 3%

%% of wsued

ordinary shans

: Disclosed holding? cepual

Tha BlackRock Group 19,494,019 14 73%

BarciaysPLC . 715,593,621 12 09%

Schroders Plc 13,566,408 10 25%

Legal 8 General Group PLC

and its subsidianes 7,108,357 5 37%

Absriorth Partners LLP 6687110 505%
Capital Group International Inc

and its subsidianes 4685757 377%

SR Global Fund LP 4,264,325 322%

tat 13 March 2008

Gorg concem

After making due enguines, the directors have a reasonable
expectation at the tme of approving the financial statements that
the Group has adequats financial resources to continue to operate
for the foreseeable future and, consequently, continue to use the
going concem basis for prepanng the inancia! statements which
follow

Auditors ‘

Deloitte & Touche LLP are the Company's auditors and havs
expressad therr willingness to continue in the office of auditors and
therefore, in accordance with Section 385 of the Comparues Act
1985, a regotution for their re-appantment will be proposed at the
pnnual General Meetng




DIRECTORS REPORT - DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

The Board presents the Remunaration Report for the
62 weeks ended 28 December 2007

Thea Board sets the Company’s remuneration pohcy

Tha Remuneraton Committee 'the Committee’) makes
recommenciations to the Board within ts agreed terms of reference
(avalabie on the Company's webstte www ¢srcom or from the
Company Secretary at the Company’s regstered offics) on the
Company’s framework of executive remuneration and its cost

it also determines on behalf of the Board, specific remuneraton
packages for each of the exacutive directors and for the Chaiman
The Committes admrusters the Company's share incentive plans
for employees and montors and prowdes guidance on tha level
and structure of remunerabon for senior management whe report
to the Chief Exacutive Officer The Board ttself determings the
remuneration of the non-executive directors No director plays a
part n any discussion about thetr own remuneration

Mr Giacoletto s chaurnan of the Committee, having been
appointed dunng the year in place of Mr Mackintosh, who
relinguishad the posdion following tis appontment as Chairman
of the Board on 2 May 2007 The other curment members of the
Committes, all of whom are mdependent non-executive directors
within the definttion of the Code, are set out on page 38
MrWhybrow, who stood down as Charman of the Board and
as anon-executve drectar on 2 May 2007 was, until that date
amember of the Remuneraton Committee Mr Mackintosh,
Chairman of the Board, attended meetings of the Comituitee

as amember The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the
Committes None of the members of the Committee has any
personal financial nterest (other than as shargholders), conflicts
of interests ansng from cross-dwectorships or day-to-day
nvolvement n running the business of the Company

An evaluation of the parformance of the Committee was
conducted dunng 2007, in regards to which more information
1s contained n the Comporate Governance report on page 37

The Commuttee has access to detalled external research from
ndependent consultants Dunng the year professional advice has
been provided by New Bngge Street Consultants LLP, Slaughter
and May and Althos Uimited Each of the advisers were appointed
by the Committee Slaughter and May act as legal advisers to the
Cormpany generally Netther New Bridge Street Consuitants LLP
or Alithos LUimtted provides othar services to the Company

The Committee dstermines pokcy for the remuneration of the
executive directors and 1s consulted and prowides gudance on
the broader remuneration polices for the Group below Board level
based on the recommendations of the Chist Executve Officer
and the other exacutive drrectors Further information on mestings
hield and attendance by the members ¢f the Committee 1s
disclosed in the Corporate Govemance report on page 41

The Directors' Report on Remuneration for the penod ended

29 December 2006 was approved by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meating held in May 2007 Asrequred bythe
Comipanmes Az, sharcholders will be inwted to approve this report
at the Annual General Meeting to be hald on 15 May 2008

This Report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 74
to the Companies Act 1985 The report also meets the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rulss of the Financial Services
Authonty and descnbes how the Board has apphed the Pnnciples
of Good Governance relating to direciors’ remuneration

The Act requires the auditors to report to the Company's members
on certain parts of the Remuneration Repart and to state whether
in ther opinion those parts of the Report have been properly
prepared in accordance with tha Companias Act 1885 The
Report has therefore been dwded into separata sections for
audited and unaudhted information

Unaudited information

Changes in executve directors on the Board

Effectva 1 November 2007 Mr John Scansbrick stood down

as a director of CSA pic and from hes postion as Chief Executive
Cfficer He remaned an employee until 31 December 2007 n
order to assst in an orderdy handover of responsibdites to the new
Chuef Executive Officer, Mr Joap van Beurden

By way of compensation for the termunation of his employment
and with regard to restrictive covenants which remain m effect
beyond the termination of employment it was agreed that a

lump sum payment, deferred until 2 July 2008, would be pard
compnsing £360,100 and $245,000 Mr Scansbnck also retamns
certain benefits assocated with medical nsurance and hife cover
which terminate on 31 December 2008, or earlier if he finds
alternative employment which provides such benefits

It was also agreed that, on the basis of tha satisfachon of
applicabla performance targets, Mr Scansbinck would be able

to exercise time pro rated amounts of 30,076 share options
granted under the rnuies of the CSR plc Share Option Plan at

£8 93 per share between { January 2008 and 30 June 2008 and
up to 15,038 options granted under the rules of CSR Share Award
Plan at the par value per ordinary share between 1 January 2008
and 15 March 2008 In accordance with the undertaking given

at the trme the CSR Share Award Pian was established,
anexplanation of how the Committea arnved at a determination
as to the sabsfaction of the performance condiions for the options
vested to Mr Scansbrck s given on page 51 Mr Scansbnck

was also permitted with effect from the termmation date and
untit 15 March 2008 to acqure 30,000 ordinary shares in

GSR plc on payment of the par value per share which had

also been granted n Decamber 2005 The balance of his share
awards and options lapsed "
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DIRECTORS REPORT - DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT continued

In deterrurung the arrangements for Mr Scansbnek’s termination,
the Committee consulted with s adwisers and 1s satshed that they
were both appropnate and n the interests of the Comparty

Effective 1 November 2007 Mr Joep van Baurden was apponted
Chuef Exscutrve Officer and to the Board of CSRplc Mr van
Beurden's iography and professional expenence is sst out on
page 42 The Comparny beleves that Mr van Beurden possesses
valuable expenencs as a senior executive In technology
companes providing innovatve solutions in compettive and
dynarmic global markets It therefore beleved that it was
necessary to offer a competitve package in order to secure his
recrutment and facditate his rélocation wath hus family to the UK

In racruting Mr van Beurden, the Company sought the adwee of
executive search consulanis Russell Reynolds who assistedin a
ngorous selection process In addmon the remuneration package
of Mr van Beurden was arranged with tha adwice of remuneration
consuttants New Bndge Street Consuttants LLP

Under the terms of s service agreement, Mr van Beurden s

with an annual salary of £300,000, will participate in the
Group's UK defined coninbution pension scheme to which the
Company will make contnbutions of 4% of salary in addibon to
a further maxumum of 10% of salary, conditional on matching
contnbutions from Mr van Beurden and benefits n kind consistaent
with those provided to other executive direciors These benefits
in kind are explamed i more detal sisewhare m this report

Tofaciltate tus appomtment Mr van Baurden has also been
provided with a relocation aflowance of £17,625 in addition

to meeting stamgp duty costs equivalent to £40,.000 on the
purchase of a parmanent UK residence andisentiled tc a
guaranteed bonus for 2008 of 50% of satary (out of & potential
bonus of 100% of salary)

Hewas on 14 Novernber 2007 granted options and share awards
under the Company's Share Option and Share Award Plansup

to tha respective maxima of 400% of salary for share ophons and
200% of satary for share awards, n addiion to the grant of 25,000
deferred shares granted on a simiar basis to the CSR Share
Award Plan With the exception of the defarred shares, each of
the grants made under the Share Option and Share Award Plans
are subject to satisfying performance condmtions Al of the options
and shares granted to Mr van Beurden are subject to athree year
retention penod
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Consistent with established practce, the grant of shara options
made under the CSR plc Share Option Plan is subrect to satisfying
a performance conditon hnked 1o the growth in the Company’s
earnings per share (‘EPS') over a three year penod, in this case
commencing from July 2007

If the growth in EPS over the three year performance penod 1

less than a compaound 5% per annum plus RPI, none of the share
options vest If the Company's EPS growth over the three year
performance penod 1s equal to a compound 5% per annum plus
RPI, then 30% of the share ophons will vest For EPS growth above
acompound 5% per annum plus RPlup to a compound 12 5% per
annum plus RPt the proportion of the share options which shall vest
15 deterrmined on a straight ine basis pro-rata between 30% and
100% If tha Company’s EPS growth over the three year
performance penocd exceeds acompound 12 5% per annum

plus RPI all options will vest No retesting is permtted

Consistent with established practice, the grant of share

ewards made undsr the CSR Share Award Pian s subject 1o
the Company's Total Shareholder Retum (TSR} relative to the
performance of a comparator group of peer companies over
athree year penod, in this case commenaing from 1.July 2007
Fuil detaiis of the performance measure are as set out onpage 50

The Committee is sahshed that the performance targets for both
the Share Opticons and Share Awards are appropnatealy stretching.
hawving regard to the current performance of the Company and are
aligned with tha nterasts of shareholders as a whole

Remuneraton policy for the exacutve crectors

Exsoutve remuneration packages are designed m onder to attract,
motvate and retain employees of the highest caltbre required by
the Group in order to achieve its obectives, 1o meet the needs of
customers and enhance value to shareholders There are fivemamn
elements of the remuneration package for executive directors and
sen:or managemsnt, which mclude medwm and long term
ncaniives compnsing basic annual salary, beneitsn-kind, the
opporturity (0 pasticipate In a money purchasa pension scheme,
a cash bonus plan and partcipaton m the Company’s share
incentve plans

The Company’s policy ts that a substantial proportion of the
remuneration of the executive directors should be performance-
related The payment of both cash bonuses and the vesting

of share incentives ara subiect to meeting performance
condibions estabkshed by the Committee at the beginning

of gach performance penod reflecting what, at that tme, the
Committee considers to be demanding targats These targets
ara set laking appropnate account of the chatlenging and
rapudly evoiving market in which the Group operates, and the
axpectatons of the investment community on the Company’s
potental future performance



Adetaled review of the remuneration policy of the Board was
undertaken pnor to the Company's flotation and in November
2005 Tha Commuttee considers that the present pobcy 18
appropnate and does not ntend makung changes to the structurs
or basic terms of the mcentive arangements for executive directors

Basic satary

An executive drector's basic salary is consdersd by the
Commitee on appaointment and then reviewad pnor to the
beginning of each year and when an indndual changes position
or responsbilty When making a determination as tothe
appropriate remuneration, the Committee consders remuneration
practices within the Group as a whole and where considered
retevant, congucts ohjectve research on comparnes wittun the
Company's and Group’s UK listed peers of a simdar szewith an
internatonal focus, reflectng that the Company s competngina
global marke! Thetarget salary s at mud-market noting that after
promotion or appointmant to the Board t may take several years
to meet this policy), with the opportunity to go above this levet,
subject to sustaned mdmidual perfomanca Mr Scansbinck who
was an executive director until 1 November 2007 was pard part
of his remuneration in US Dotlars and part n Pounds Stering

The executve directors in office at 28 December 2007 were paid
in Pounds Stering Detatls of the basic salary of the executive
directors who served dunng the penod ended 28 Decermber 2007
are sat forth n the table on page 54

Current salanies at February 2008 are

J A Jvan Beurden £300,000
JDY Colber £275,000
P G G Goodndge £231,000
C A Ladas' $300,000
+ Appomiad to the Board 1 Janusry 2008

Benefits-mn-kind

The execuive directors receive cartain benefits-in-kind, compnsing
pavate medical insurance, e assurance of four times basic salary,
and personal accident insurance and subsistence expenses

Cash bonus plan

The Commiltee 15 responsible for determining on what basis to
incentvise employees, ncluding executve directors, through a
cash bonus plan The Committes establishes aganst defined
targets the nurgmum threshold at wiech a bonus will be payable
and the maximum potental award In setting appropnate bonus
threshoids and targets, the Commutiee may refer to the objectve
research on a comparator group as noted above

For the cash bonus plan apphcable to executve directors m 2007,
the targets were set after considenng the Company’s budgeted
operatng profit and market expectatons The budget was agreed
based upon objectves which were considered to be appropnate
ard stretching aganst the background of an operating profit for

" the year ended December 2006 of $148 mdion

Achievement of targets based on the Company's financial and
strategic objectives and the personal performance of ndmdual
directors would resull n determmation by the Committee of the
appropnate size of the bonus having regard 10 actual performance
aganst the targets The maxmum potential bonus payablsfor

the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2007 (o all executive dreciors
was 100% of salary

The bonuses pai to the directors for the 52 weeks endad
28 December 2007 ara as follows,

J A Jvan Beurden erul
JDY Colkar £25,725
£ G G Goodnage £23,100

Targets for the bonus ptan for 2008 have been datermined by
taking into account the financial targets and strategic objectives
of the Company, with due regard for rmarket expsectations in
addition to personal objectives sel foreach of the executive
directors There s no change 1o the maxmurm bonus potential
whuch will remain at 100% of salary

Share option plans

The Gompany has four share option plans, intended to facilitate
the motvation and retention of employees Two of the plans were
established prior to the Comparny’s flatation, being the Founders
Shara Option Ptan and the Global Share Opton Plan Whilst not
aitthe awards under these two plans have fully vested, the plans
are closed for the purposa of any new awards, and netther plan
was used dunng 2007 for grants to executive drectors or to
other amployses

Foliowing sharehuider approval at the 2004 Anrual General
Meating, the Campany estabished the CSR pic Share Option
Plan {CSOP)

The reason for the ntreduchon of this plan was 10 provide ameans
by which 1o ncentmsa the executive directors and employees
whist ahgrang therr interasts move dosely with those of tha
Company's shareholders Ths Commiitee has responsibdity

for supervising the CSOP and the grant of options in accordance
withiits rules

Awards are made to executve directors and other employees at
the discretion of the Commuttee Awards for directors and other
senior employees are subject 1o a three year retention penod and
the ragquiremnent that, subject to certan mitigating factors, the
participant Is an employee at the end of the retention pencd

Options granted to executive drectors and seriormanagers may
be exeraised between threg and ten years after the date of grant,
subject to the Company satisfying predetermined performance
conditiens The performanca critenon for options granted up to
August 2007 « based on growth In the Company's Earrungs Per
Share {(€PS’) No options will vest if the growth n EPSs below a
compound 12% per annum plus RPI i the Company's EPS

C5R plc Annual Report and Financial Stalements 2007 &9



DIRECTORS REPQRT - DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT continued

growth exceeds a compound 12% per annum plus RPL, 30% of
the options awarded will vest If the Company’s EPS growth
exceeds acompound 14% per annum plus RPI an additional 50%
of the share options will vest If the Company's EPS growth
exceeds acompaund 17% per annum plus RP all options will vest
No re-tasting s permrutted

Prior to the grant of options to Mr van Beurden onhis appointment
as Chief Executve Otficer the Committes gave consideration (o
the appropnate EPS targets to be appied to his grant, with due
regard to the then current financial performance of the Company
and market economics Inconducting this review, the Committee
sought the adwice of its remuneration consutant, New Bndge
Street Consultants LLP The Committee considered that a revised
target should be set that represented sutably stretching
objectives whilst ensunng the recipient of the grant was
appropnately motvated This is based on growthin EPS overa
three year performance penod The Commuittee will be adopting
the same targat, which 1s set out below, for the grants io be made
following the announcement of the preliminary results

i the growth in EPS over the three year performance penod is less
than a compound 5% per annum plus RPY, none of the share
optrons vest If the Comparty's EPS growth over the three year
performance penod 1s equal to a compound 5% per annum plus
RPI, then 30% of the share options will vest For EPS growth
above a compound 5% per annum plus RPIup to a compound
12 5% per annum plus RPI the proportion of the share options
which shall vest is determined on a straight ine basis pro-rata
between 30% and 100% M the Company's EPS growth over the
three year performance penod exceeds a compound 12 5% per
annum plus RPI all options will vest No retestmng 1s permutted

Each crilena was considered at the tme by the Commiltee tobe
challenging and appropnatety aligned with shareholder mterest o

achieving continued improvernent in the financial performance of

the Company closely knked to sustained growth over the three
year performance penod

The rutes of the CSOP do not allow for options tobe granted at a
discourt to the Company’s share pnce at the date of grant

The Company’s palicy is 10 grant ophions to executive directors

at the discretion of the Committee Up to a maxmnum of 200% of
salary, takmg nto account indmidual performance Pursuant tothe
rules of the CSOP, the Committes also reserves to its discrelion
the nght 1o grant awards at a hugher proportion of basic salary
wiich, n exceptional cirrcumstances only, such as recruttment

of a new executive or key employee, could beup to 400% of

basic salary

50 CSR plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2007

Tha Company operates an HM Revenue and Customs approved
SAYE Share Option Scheme for eligible employees under wiuch
ophons may be granted at a discount of up 1o 20% of market
valus Executive directors are eigible to participate i the SAYE
Share Option Scheme

Performance share awards

Atthe Annlial General Meeting helkd m May 2005, shareholders
approved the ntroduction of a new Share Award Plan called the
CSA Share Award Plan Awards are made to executive directors
and other employees at the discretion of the Comimitiee Awards
to directors and other senlor employees are subyect toathree
year retantion penod and for all employees the requirement that,
subject to certain mitigating factors, theparticipant 1s an employee
at the end of the retention penod

try acidition, for executive directors and other senior emnployees,
vesting of the Share Awards 1s subject to stretchmyg targets based
on Total Shareholder Return, ( TSR') over the fixed three year
retention penod with an additional requiresnient that the Comparny
should have achieved a sustained mprovement nunderfying
financial perfermance over the same three year penod TSRS
calculated based on the average share pnce phlus dvdends over
the three rmonth panod pnor to the beginnmg and the end of the
retention penod

The Committee will assess the Company's TSR performance
against a comparator group of UK and overseas companies The
constituent members of the comparator group are shown on page
51 Thecomparator group compnses international comparves that
are customears, suppliers or competitors of CSRinthe
lelocormmunications and sericonductor ndustnes wath whom the
Commitiee considers the performance of the Company can most
appropnately be compared Thereis no mtention to change the
cormparator group from that established for the awards madein

previous years

if the Company's TSR performance 1s betow the median of the
comparator group, no shares will vest If the performance is at
median, 30% of the shares will vest, whilst for performance
between median and the upper quartile the proportion of shares
which wall vestis detenrruned on a straight ine basis pro-rata
between 30% and 100% For performance in the upper quartie
or hagher, 100% of the shares will vest The award lapsesifthe
performance condition has not been satisfied at the end of the
retention penod

Consistent with a commutrment given to shareholders at the tme
of the creation of the CSR Share Award Plan, the Commuttes wall
in a year n which an award vests, report to shareholders onthe
undertying financial performance which was considered when
approving vasting



Following compietion of the three year performance penod of

1 January 2005 to 31 December 2007 for those grants made
under the CSR Share Award Plan in 2005, and whuch are due

to vest n 2008, the Committee considered a report which had
been prepared by an ndependent agency, Alithos Limuted, on the
Company's TSA performance That report concluded that the
Company's comparative TSR performance agamst its peer group
resulted i a rankeng that allowed for 83 B7% of the onginad grants
to employees to vest

For these awards, the Committge consulted with New
Bndge Street Consultants LLP and determined based on
that adwice, that the growth in EPS over the three year retantion
penod demonstrated the Company's strong undertying
financal performance

The adoption of TSR as the pnmary performance critenon,
which applies o executive directors and other saror employees,
was chosen to ensure that the vesting of benefits was direcity
aligned to the interests of shareholders The inclusion withn

the performance critena of the consideration of the undertying
financial performance of the Company was adopted to ensure
that at the vesting of the award, appropnate account 15 taken

of the extent to which the Company's own performance has
contributed to the growth n shareholder value These cntena were
adopted followng consuitationwith the Company's adwisers and
nstitutional shareholders

The Committee considers that these performance conditons
are appropnate for the form of award and are sutably stretching

The share awards are ntended {0 reward strong relative
performance, whiist share options will contirue to reward absolute
performance In accordance with the rutes of the CSR Share
Award Plan, the Committes will reserve the nght to grant awards
at a proportion of basic satary normally up to a maximum of 100%
of salary (200% n exceptional arcumstances)

Awards
hekyat

29 Covemnber
2006

Dateol

2007 award  Awardmade  Awardpnoa

The tabie below summanses awards granted and exercrsed

©1 2007 under the CSR Share Award Plan, and the total awards
held by each executive director at 28 December 2007 or atthe
termunation of office

Total Sharehalder Return comparator group of companies
The tollowng table shows the comparator comparves for
determining the relatve TSR performance of the Compary

ARM Holdngs plc Heawlstl-Packard Company  STMicrostectroncs NV
ASE Tasting tninaon TachnologesAG  SgmaTdl e
ASML Holding Nv INTEL CORPORATION SILICON LABORATORIES
NG
Analog Devces Inc Logtechintematonal A Skoyworks Sohutons Inc
Appla Computer ¢ Marvel Technology Sprrem pic
Group Ltd
Atheros Communucations  Motorola Inc Synopsysine
e
sustnamicrosystoms AG  National Sormconcucior
Corporgion )
Bookham inc Nokaa Oy Teswan Samcontucior
Manufactunng Company
Lrmaad
Broadtom Corporaton Nordic Semuconductor ASA  TERADYNE In¢
Carus Logxs Inc PMC Semainc Texas Instrurments
Incorporated
Conaxant Systoms Inc Pantroncs Inc Wavecom SA |
Dall e QUALCOMM incorporated  Wollson Microgioctronics
t Db
Dralog Sermonductorplc  Ressarchn Mobon Uid
BN Storo Nord A/S SRF Toctnclogy
Holdngs Inc

No signiiicant amendments are proposad to be made to the
tarms and condihions of any entitlement of an executve director
under these share incentive plans

The level of award s considared each year In the hght
of performance

Intorastsat
28 Dacomber
2007

Awards
Award

veshng deto

Lepsed

2007 n 2007

JDY Calier 37243 28 Fobruary 2007 25122 768

G Cotinson 33,516 28 February 2007 22558 crea

PG GGoodndgo 39022 28 Febnuary 2007 £768

JA Jvan Beurdon ~ 14 November 2007 93603 £8 445

4 Novambar 2010 - -

28 Fobruary 2010 82365

28 Febnrary 2010 - 56 074} -
31 Decamber
2009

1 Jamewy
2007 1o
31Docamber
2009

1Aty
2007 1o
31y

2010

28 February 2010 - - 81580

83603
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DIRECTORS REPORT - DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT continued

The Company monitors the awards of shares made under the
vanous share plans wiech it operates in relation to ther effect on
diution kmils Followang shareholder approval at the 2005 Annual
General Meeting, the Company 15 able to make selective share
awards whde maintaming the traditional overall 10% timit on
awards as a proportion of the 1ssued share capital nanyrofing
ten year penod

Conscious of the need to ensure that the satisfaction of 1issug of
new shares o employeas pursuant to its share schemes operates
within AB1 guideines, dunng 2007, the CSR Employee Benefit
Trust the ‘Trust’) was established The Trust will enable the grant
of shares to employees on exerciso of vested options to be met by
using shares acqured by the Trust in the open market

Dunng 2007, the Trust acquired n the open market an aggregate
of 1,486,767 orcinary shares in CSA plc This was satisfied
through cash drawn down under the terms of a Loan Facilty
Agreement established at the time of the creation of the Trus!
The detais of each purchase of ordinary shares in CSR pic1s
shown in Note 26 to the Financial Statements on page B1

Pension arrangements

The three executive directors serving et the year end are
members of the Cambnage Sticon Radio Retirernent Benefits
Scheme (the UK Pension Plan) which is an HM Revenug and
Customs approved money purchase (defined coninbution}
scheme operated for ehgible employees in the Urnted Kingdom

Contnbutions are determined as a percentage of the employee’s
gross bastc salary Detarks of the actual contnbutions made by the
Group to the UK Pension Plan on behal{ of the executive directors
are set out Inthe table on paga 54

Normal retrement age s 65 for employees and executive cirectors

Other than bagsic salary, no element of the directors’ rérmmauon
IS pensionabla

Share Ownership

Dunng 2006 the Board adopted as part of its remuneration
poticies, a requirement for executive directors to hold ordinary
shares in the Company in order 1o be elpble to participate fully in
the share ncentve plans The policy reflects the Company's behef
that its executive directors should alsc be shareholders Execulive
directors have five years from introducton of tha requirement or
appomtment to the Board inwhich to estabhsh a shareholding
whuch can be satisfied through the retention of shares derved
from the exarcse of vested awards under the Compary's share
incentive plans The executive directors are required to hold
shares equivalent o 100% of therr basic annual salary
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Performance graph

The graph below shows the Comparny’s performance, measured
by total shareholder return, compared with the performance of the
FTSE 250 mdex

TheCompany s applcaion 1351 on the London Stock Exchange was sttectve
2 March 2004

The FTSE 250 indax has been selected for this compansan
because 15 a broad equity index of which CSR plcis 8
canstituent company The graph covers the penod since
the Comparty was ksted on the Londan Stock Exchange

Diectors' contracts

it1s the Company's policy that executve directors should have
contracts of an ndefirite term  All executive directors have a
service contract which 1s subject to one year's notice from the
Company Esch of Mr van Beurden, Mr Coler and Mr Goodndge
have service agreements requinng them to gve six manths’
notice to the Company  *

The details of the directors’ service contracts and notice penod
from the Company under their respective contracts for thosen
office at the year end are summansad in the table below

Data of servcd Fanodol
Mame of drector comract nobce
JAJvan Beurden 29 Septamber 2007 1 year
JDY Cotier 25 Fabruary 2004 1 year
P GG Goodndge 25 February 2004 1 year

in the event of termination, a director would be entitied to a
payment not exceeding one year's basic salary In an appropnate
case, the Company would have regard 10 the departing director’s
duty to muitigate loss

Non-executive directors

All non-executive directors have specific terms of engagement
provided in formal letters of appomtment and therr remuneration
1s determmed by the Board wathun the bmits set by the Artcles of
Association and based on ndependertt surveys of fees pard to
non-executive drectars of smilar comparves Thefees for non-
exacutive directors are considered annually The non-executve
directors are appointed for a fixed tarm, subject o re-appointment
by the sharehalders All non-executve directons are appointed
for a fixed three year term, with the exception of Mr Tucker whose
letter of appontment was renewed in January 2007 for two years



Theterms and condmions of apporntment are avallable for
nspacton at the Company's registered office dunng normal
business hours on request to the Company Secretary andup to
15 munutes pnor to and at the Company's Annual General Maeting

The fees payable 10 non-executiva drectors were reviewed m
December 2006 it was deterrmined at that tme that the fees
woutd remain unchanged, subject to further review dunng 2007

to concide with the appomtment of a new Chaiman of the
Board n May 2007 In May 2007 the Board reviewed the fees and
concluded the basic fee should be increased for a non-executive
director from £36,000 to £38,160 The fee for Mr Tucker, who acts
as both charman of the Audit Committee and Semior Inglependent
Drrector was increased from £46,000to £48,760 Thesa increases
were mads takng account of agvice provided by New Bndge
Street Consultants LLP

On his sppointment to the position of Chawrman of the
Remunerabon Commuities, Mr Giacoletto's annual fee was
ncreased by £5,30010 £43,460 The increase was made pro-rata
n 2007 and was etfective from 1 October 2007

At the time of the appomntment of Mr Mackintosh as Charman

of the Board, the Board engaged New Bridge Street Consuttants
LLP to adwvise on the fees for acting as chairman Takngnto
eccount tha expected time commitment for acting in this new
capacty and the advice of New Bndge Street Consuttants LLP,

a feo of £160,000 was approved

Tha fees of the non-execulive directors and the Chasrman were
reviewed in December 2007 i was determened that the faes
would remainunchanged, subject to & further revew to be
conducted in May 2008

Non-executive directors do not reéceve any bonus, do not
partcipate n awards under the Company's share schemes

and are not eligible 1o join the Company’s pension scheme

Mr Cartisle who 1s proposed for re-electon, bemg a non-executive
chrector, does not have a serwce contract

Dunng 2007 tha letiars of appointment for Mr Tucker and
Mr Mackintosh fell due for review following the completion

of thew ietiad threa year term of appointment and to reflect

Mr Mackmtosh's appaintment as Charman of the Board in May
2007 Mr Tucker was re-appointed for a two year term to January
2009 and Mr Mackintosh was appointed for a three year termn

ta May 2010

Data olipteyr Duraton of
Morme of dractor of apponimant BPDOYUTN
DL Tucker 23 January 2007 2years
AW Mackintosh 2 May 2007 3years
AECGCarksle 1.July 2005 3years
S Giacoletio 4 January 2007 3years
Outside appointments

Executive directors are entitted 1o accept appointments outside

the Company provided that the Chairman’s permission is sought

prer to accepting the appomtment Dunng the penod for which

he was an axecutive director of CSR pic, Mr Collinson also acted
as a non-executne director of Sonaptc Limded and fees of
£8,183 were paid to CSR ple
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Audited mformation
Drrectors’ emoluments or fees

The emoluments ar fees of directors serving dunng the year, for the financial years 2006 and 2007 were as follows

Emobuments.
NEspact
of a peraon
Compensabon accepg oifice
Fass/Basic salary Benafts wt ki Annugibonuses on loss of offca o3 e direcior 2007 wtal 2008 wotal
Nare of director 5 $ $ $ $ 5 5
Executive ) i
JDYColer _ 487,748 87 __ o swe8_  _ .- . . = 540,769, 528,203
GColnson™ _ | 184,785 T - - - 185,555 564,733
P G G Goodndge 437978 B K: T _ 45881 - - 485774 564,733
45 Hodgson™ - . - ) - - - - 363,912
4 C Scansbnck™™ 937,861 31,385 - 980,510 - 1,959,766 739.253
J A Jvan Beurden $8,200 1364 I - 442,032 541,596 -
Non-executive
J W Whybrow™ 87,637 - - - - 87637 253,953
D L Tucker 90,740 - - - - 0,740 83,442
RW Mackintosh 220,6M - - - - 229,671 74,372
AECGCarlisle I arat - - - - 71,014 65,302
S Geacoletio 73,616 - - = - 73616 -
Total 2.699.226 37183 97,187 990510 442,032 4,266138 3,337,993

The satary for Mr Hodgson was pasdin US Doflars Tha salary far Mr Scansbnck was pasd partly in US Doliars and parilyin Pounds Stering The salary and fees for other
dmaomwerepaldnPamSmhndemmdnmbdhmbfmpmwmms.mnwmmmammmmmmmm

"Reurnd 26 February 2008
* Resgned 2 May 2007

** Stood down 1 Novermber 2007 as CEO remening empiloyed 1031 Dacamber 2007 Tha fees o MrScansbnci shown above ara for the panod to 28 December 2007

whechwarae pasd partly in LIS Doltars and partly nPounds Sterling

Aggregate directors’ remuneration
The aggregate directors’ remuneration was as follows

' %
Emoluments . 4,266,138 3,337,993
Gains on exercise of share options ) 935,866 1179,616
Money purchasa pension contnbutions 166,208 317,958
5,368,212 4,835,667
Directors’ pension entriiements

Contributons paid or accrued by the Group in respect of the directors duning the year were as follows
2007 2008
H $
JD Y Coltgr 68,284 62,213
GColinson  _ 22,859 65,870
P GG Goodndge 61,317 55,870
JC Scansbnck” - 144,000
J A Jvan Beurden 13,748 -
166,208 317,858

¢ Seansbnek 5 pensioncontnbutions in 2007 wore paxd mcash andisincluded within Fees/ Bask Salary
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Directors' share options

Aggregate emaluments disclosed on page 54 do not metuds any armounts for the vatue of options to acquire ordinary shares
nthe Company granted to or held by the directors

Datats of the options exercised by directors durng therr penod of appontmentin 2007 and detads of gans ansing on the exercise

of options n the 52 week penad to 28 Decermber 2007 and the pror year are shown below

Gavyson
Grant Datagf Nurmbor Market vaiuo Garaon exroisg
Nama of drector dmlm exproise exercised Cos1per share per sth wcs: 200:
j Note (i)
JOY Colber SAYE 05 June 2007 5013 1880 7706 58,236 -
G Colinson® CsCr  28Feb 2007 11,148 2350 7780 118,828 -
csoP 26 Feb 2007 55,852 2000 7780 833,705 -
SAYE 17 Jud 2007 5013 1880 8486 67,738 -
P G G Goodndge Dec 2000
Bonus Grant 02 May 2006 35,796 2385 14 06 - 768.803
Sep 2002
Bonus Grant 02 May 2006 15,180 1010 14 06 - 384,423
Dac 2001
Bonus Grant 02 May 2006 2,160 2385 1406 - 46,391
SAYE 26.June 2007 5013 _ 1880 7603 57.359 -

Resigned 2 May 2007

Nota {) TheUS § gan reprasents iha number of opbons exerased multphed by the markst valug per shara shown in pounds stering and transiated &1 1he US $/pounds
staring exchango ets prevaing on the date o exercise
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Detauls of optons for directors who served dunng the year or have been appainted sinca the year end but pnor to approval of this report

are shown below
30 Dac 2008
fordate of 26 DoG 2007 Exarcise Bato from
Namaol appomirnant) forgate of Pnee £ whach
Lxractor Schemo Hola(e)  Granted Exarcisod Lapsed rasxgnation) Nota (v exarecabie Expary data
JDY Colber Founders 382,002 - - - 382,002 o054 01-Apr-004)} 01-Sep-10
Giobal 120 000 - - - 120,000 0503 10-May 01f  10-May-10
CsoP 75 000 - - - 75000 2000 26 Feb-07 (v 26 Feb 14
SAYE . 5013 - [ Juki] - 1880 Ot-May 07 ) 01 Nov-07
CSOP 82 350 - - - 62350 320 05-May 0B () 05-May-15
Performance award 18 850 - - 18,850 0001  O5-May-0Bfw}  05-May-15
csop 24,625 - - - 24525 9880 0Q1-Mar-09 () 01-Mar-16
Parformance award 18,3083 - - - 18,383 oo 01-Mae-09 fei} 01-Mar-18
Performance award - 2512 - - 25122 0001 28Feb 10{w) 2B Fob-17
CSOP - 33496 - - 33496 7680 20-Feb-10(¢ 28 Feb-\7
SAYE - 1,615 - - tB16 5848 28-Mar 10 28-Sep-10
G Cotnson® CSOP 11,148 - [11,148) - - . 2350 26 Feb07T{v  26-Feb-14
CSOP, . 55852 - {55 B52} - - 2000  26-FebO7{v)  26-Feb-14
_ SAYE 5013 - - e 5013 1680 O1-May-07¢4 01 Now-O7
_ . CsopP 56100 | - - {56.100) - 3210 05-May 08}  D5-May15
_ . Performance award 7oK - _ __ = 7000 - 000 05 May-08fv  05-May-15
S0P o202 - __ .- (22072) - 5990  Ol-Mar09(x} 01 Marib
Partormance award 16,616 - . (16 616) - Q0 Q1 Mar-08 fw) 01 Mar-16
.. Peronmanceaward - 22558 _ - {22 558} - oom 28-Fab-10dmp _ 28-Feb-17
i csor . T2 _%008 _ _ _ . - _B0078) - 7680 28-Fob 10(¢ _28-Feb-17
oL save T - _des_ " " - (61 - 5848  28-Mar10f _28-Sep-10
P GG Goodndge Global 240 - - - 240 2385  O1-Dec-02f) 33 Dec-1
Global _37500 - - - 37500 1010 31-Dec-02{) 26-Nov-12
Global 44820 - - L= 44 820 1010 30 Sep-03f)  30-Sep-12
Global 40000 - . - - 40,000 1025 WDec-03l) 18 Nowid
CS0oP 12 785 - - - 12765 2350 26-Feb-07 (M 26 Feb 14
CSOP 54 235 - - - 54,235 2000 26-Feb-07 (v 26 Feb-14
SAYE 503 - {5013) - - 1880 01-May-07 1 O1-Nov-07
CSoP 56100 - - - 56,100 3210  05-May-08fv] 05 May15
Periormance award 17000 - - - 17,000 0001  D5-May-08 (vi) 0S May-15
Csop B0 - - - 33032 9880 01 Mar-09 (i 01 Mec-16
Performanca eward 22022 - - = 22022 0001 Of Mar-09(m} 01 Mer-16
Performance oward - 22558 _ = - 22558 0001 2B-Fob-10(wy  28-Feb-17
_gsop . .. - 30gm = - 30,078 7680 28 Feb0(  28-Fep7
JCScansbnck™ Padformancasward 22,557 - - . 159 15038 0001 15 Dec-06Mm)  15-Dec-18
T CSOP.__ 45,114 - - 5038 30,078 8930  15-Doc 0804 15-Dec-15
- Recrutment award 100000 - - (70 00G) 30000 Qo017 30 Now-08 (wi 30-MNov &
csop 39848 - - (39 048) - 9990  Oi-Mar09fg  O1-Mar16
o~ _ Performance award 1|ad | - N - (19,974 - 0001 01Mar0dM)  O1-Marid
_ csoP 27098 _ - - {27.038) - 13790 O1n-09( _ 01-dun 6
T Parformance eward 13,540 -7 - {13,549) oo, 0001 Ol Jun-09(m) 01 .Jun-15
7. csop 32,002 - - 82,003 - 1500 OvSep09t)  01-5ep-16
Porlormance award 1800 . - {18,001) - 000 01Sep 03w 01-Sep 18
Partormance award - 36502 - [38.602 - 0001 28 Feb-10(w} 28-Feb 17
[0 o - 48802 - 48.803) - 7680 28-Feb 0D 28-Feb-17
JvanBewrden  CSOP - 186190 - - 1868180 G445  M-Now10(pa)  14-Nov-7
Pyriormance award N - 9360 - - 93,603 0001 14-Nov-10 ) 14-Mov-17
Rocratment award - 25000 - - ! 25000 000 14-Nov-100a)  14-Now-i7
CAladas Global 48 75 - - - 48751 0503 15 May-01{} . 15-May-10
CcsoP 87000 - - - 87,000 2000  26-Feb-0TiM 28Feb ¥
csop 20,600 - - - 20,600 3210 05-May-0B(v) 05-May-15
Performance award 12 500 - - 12,500 00 05 May-08 (v 05 May-15
____..csor | ERLY: . B - o - 11000 12410 25 May-08(  25-May-16
. .. _ _ Perormanceaward 6000 _ _ - R - " - 6000_ 0001 _ 35 May-09(w)  25-May-16
— —= — . Peromanceaward - R - - .- 8132 0001 0S5-.kn10pw} 05 .Jun 17
18 264 - - - 18,264 7860 05-hm-10(x 05 Jun 17
Teral 1722022 567318 77020 [492,423) 1709871
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“Aasgned 2 Mey 2007

~Siood down 1 November 2007 as CEQ, remaunang employed unti 31 Decambar 2007

Nata(} Veestng of opbion 20% on annversary of prant, than 5% each subsequant caiendar quarter end (31 March, 30 June 30 September, 31 Decamber) for 16 quarters
Note () Vosting of option 5% sach catenciar quarter end (31 March 30 June 30 September, 31 Dacomber) for 20 quariars

Note{n) Option numbers are adjusted to reflact changes to the share capial structura onistng in March 2004

Nole(v) Dp(msgramwmbrmsunertmcsomchemnMvestmmmmwmm&nmﬁommmamd Tha options vest in proportons
from 10% - 100% dependent upon the EPS achweved by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006 tha tamget EPS s ntherange $0 17 1o S0 26 Theraatier the option
may ba exarcrsad for the rest of s ten year ifg without {urther test

Note (v} Opumsgnamadumrl:haSAYEsd\emavestaﬂerﬂvaeyearsendm:stbewmsedwmnmxmmsolmmgdata

Note (v} Options granted under the CSOP scheme ves! aftor Three years and have certiun performance cntena attached Forophions lovest the EPS growih must
begrealurthanmagrowlhnmm;alusuoompa.nd4')(-peranwmoveraflxedpenoﬂdlmeefmancmhearsbegmanmuarﬂws

Nota fw} Stiares granted under the Share Award scheman 2005 2006 and 2007 ves) aftor three years and have certan pariormance condibons attached The shares
vesmpmmonsrmmamsm1mmmwmmwsmwabmhtdmmsmmatmostandmethaeyea:pmodend
ﬁmmwrmtmecunpmrsmdaMngananualpedomamehasnwmmtmwrslacmnmmamemnComttee cetals of which shall be thsclosed o
sharehoicders in reports of tha Remuneration Commitiee subsequent tothedeterminaton of the Commutiae

Nota bvn) To tacéitata the recrudment of Mr Scansback and as partof the terms of his sppointment the Company agresd 1o award Mr Scansbnck 100,000 ordnary
sharesinthe Company This award i3 subxect 1o vestng after the satisfachon of condbons relating 1o servica Pursuant to tha termis of the Compromisa Agreament entared
imo with Mr Scansomck ttwaaagmedthatMrSmnsbnckwmidbeab!a:oecqumSOUDOofdmvshmanSFlplconpawnemdtheparm!ue The balence ol the
recrustmant oplions tapse

Nota{od OptlonsgrantadMrimmmommmmmrmmmmmmmmatm No options wil vestd EPS growih s balow
acompound 129 per ancum pkes AP Ntha Company’s EPS grow th meets or excesds a compound 0f 12% per annum pius AP 30% of tho share opbons wil vast If the
Comparty's EPS growth meets orexceeds a compound 14% per annum plus AR an adddonal 50% of the share options willvest i the Comparny’s EPS growth meels or
excoods a compound 17% per anaum plus RP1 8l options will vest

Note () Ophons granted under tha CSOP scheme n 2007 between 1 January 2007 and 31 August 2007 also vest atier thres years and have performance catena attached
Mo optiona wil vest il EPS growihis below a compound 12% por annum pres RPI nﬂqumquPSngBmsorweedsampomddiZ%pwmmphsﬁPl
30% of the share ophons wil vast HuwConmnysEPngvm"mtaoremeedsaoon'pound14%pemmunphsﬁﬂanaddﬂwl$0%ow\esmmopmmvmm

if tha Compeny s EPS growth meets or exceeds.a compound 17% per annum pius RP! all optrong wil vest

HNote ba) Tofactats the racrudment of Mr van Beurden the Company agreed to award Mr van Bourdon 25 000 ordinary shares i the Company Thaaward i3 subact

to vestng after the salisfaction of condions selating 1o sarvice:

Nate {xa} OpuonsgrantedmdermCSOPmmauawgwtmmuvasmﬂatmwammmemmaﬂW Na optons will vest l EPS
growth s balow a compound 5% per annum plus R I the Comperty's EFS growth s equaitoa compound 5% pér annum pkss APL 30% of the share options wilvest

For EPS parformance above 8 compound 5% per annum pius RP1up 1oa compound 12 5% plus AP per gnoum, the proportion of shares winch shiall vest s detarmned ona
straght bne bass pro rata betwaen 30% and 100% i tha Company 3 EPS growth over the three year performance penod exceads a compound 12 5% per annum plus RP
all ophons will vest

The market pnca of tha ordimary shares al 28 December 2007 was £5 96 and tha range dunng the yeer was £9 0510 £5 48

This report was d hy the Board of drectors and signed on its behalf by
S Giacoletto

Chairman, Remuneration Comimttee

27 February 2008
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

The drectors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Raport, the Drrectors’ Remuneration Report and the inancial staternems

The directors are raquired by the International Auditing Standards (IAS) Reguiation to prepare financal staternents for the Group m
accordance with tntemational Finaneial Reporting Standards (FRS) es adoptad by the European Union and have also elected to prepare
financial statements for the Cornpany in accordance wath IFRS Company law requires the drectors to prepare such financal statements
n accordance with the Comparnses Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

International Accounting Standand 1 requires that financial statements prasent fairy for each financial year the Company’s financial posiion,
finaneaal performance and cash flows This requires the farthiul representation of the effects of transactions, other everits and conditions
in accordance with the definitions and recogniion ctena for assets, labiites, income and expenses set out in the Intemational Accounting

Standards Board's 'Framework for the Preparabion and Presentation of financial Statements' Inwrfually all crcumstances, a farr preseniation
wll be achisved by compliance with all applcabls International Financial Reporting Standards Directors are also required 10

« present information, including accountng polices, n a manner that prowides relevant, refiabls, comparable and understandable
information, and

« prowvide additional disclosures when comphance with the specific requirements in IFRS 15 msufficient to enable users to understand
the mpact of partcular transactions, other events and condiions on the entty’s financial positon and financial performance

The dwectors ara responsible tor keeping proper accounting records which disclosa with reasonable accuracy st any time the financial
posttion of tha Company, for safegisarding tha assets, for talang reasonable steps for the prevention and detecton of fraud and other
ireguianties and for the preparation of a directors’ report and directors’ remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 1985

Tha diractors are responsible for the maintenanca and integnty of the Company website

Legistation in the Unted Kingdom gaverning the preparation and disseminahon of inancial statements differs from legisiation
n other jursdichons

Each of the drectors at the date of the approval of this report confirms that
« 5o far as the diector is aware, there s no refevant audd miomnation of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

» the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a cirector to make himself awara of the refevant audit mormation
and 10 estabksh that the Company's auditors are awars of that information :

The drectors, having prepared the financial statements, have permited the audilors to take whatever steps they consider appropaate
for the purpose of enabling them 10 give thair audst opinion
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Independarnt audrtars’ report to the members of CSR plc

We have audiied the Group and indmdual Company financial statements (the 'nancial statements’) of C5R plc tor tha 52 week penod anded
28 Decermiver 2007 which compnse tha consohdated ncome statement, 1he consolidated and ndmidual Company balance shests, the
consotidated and indvidual Comparny cash flow statements, the consolidated siatement of recogrised ncome and expensa, the ndmwdual
company statemant of changes i equaty, and the related notes 1 10 45 Thesa financal statements have been prepared under the accounting
pobicies set out thenen. We have atso audited the information in the Divectors” Remuneration Report that 15 described as hawng been audted

Thus report s mada solely 10 the Company's members, as a body, in accordanca with saction 235 of tha Companies Act 1985 Our audt work
has been undertaken so that we mught statelolha(}ompany‘smembersthosamﬁerswea:areqwodtoslaxelomemnana\mors'rapon
and for no cther purpose To the fulest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibity to anyona other than the Company
and the Company's members as 8 body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respactive responsibilities of directors and auditors

Tha diractors' responsibiries for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Repart and the financial statements in accordance
with apphbcable taw and Intemational Financial Reparting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set oul m the Statement of
Owrectors’ Responsibdties

Our responsibiity s to audit the financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report 10 be audited in accordance with
relevant fegal and reguiatory requirements and Intemational Standards on Audting {UK and treland)

Wa raport to you our opmion as to whether the tinancal statements give a true and tarr view and whether the inanceal stataments and the pant
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been property prepared 1n accordanca with the Comparues Act 1985 and, asregards
tho Group financial stataments, Articla 4 of the IAS Regulation We also report 1o you whether, o our opuion, the mformation gven in the
Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements

In addimon, wa report to you d, in our aperuon, the Company has nat kept propar accounting records, If we have not recerved all the information
and exptanations we requine for our audit, or f nformation specfied by law regarting drectors” ramuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

Wa review whether the corparate governance statement reflacts the Company’s comphance with the rine provisions of the 2006 Comixned
Coda specifiad for our réview Dy the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we report if it goes net We ara not requred 10 consier
whather tha Board's statermants on nternal control cover al asks and controls, o form an opion on the offactivengss of tha Group's coporate
governance procadures or its nsk and control procedures

Wa read the other information containad in the Annual Report, as descrived m tha contents section, and considar whather 1)s consistent with
the audited financial statements Wa consider the implications for our report f wa become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal
Inconsistancias with the financial statements Our respenaibilites do not axtend to any further nformation outside tha Annual Report

Basig of audit opinion

We conducted our audtt in accordance with Intemational Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) ssuad by the Auditing Practices Board
An aucit ncludes examination, on a tast basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial staterments and the pan
of the Drreciors’ Remuneration repor to be audited It also inchudes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made bythe
draciors in the preparation of the financral staternents, and of whether the accounting policies are sppropnate to the crcumstances of the
Group and the Company, consistenily apphied and adequately disclosed

Wa planned and performed our audtt $0 as 10 obtan &l the nformation and explanations which we considerad necassary n order 1o pravide

us with sufizent evidenca to gve reasonabla assurance that the financea! staterments and the part of the Dwectors’ Remuneraton Report to be
audited are frae from matenal musstatament, whether caused by fraud or other wregulanty of exrcrIn forming our opIon we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of mformation n the financial statements and the part of the Drectors' Remuneration Report to be audited

Opunion
i our opInCn
* the Group financial staternents give a true and faw view, n accordanca with IFRS’s as adopted by the Eurcpean Union,
of tha state of the Group's attars as at 28 Dacernber 2007 and of the Group's proit for the 52 wesk panod thenended,
+ the Indadual Company financial statements gve @ true and far wew, m accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Urion
as appted in accordance with the requrements of the Comparues Act 1985, of the state of the mdmdual Company''s afiars as at the
" 28 December 2007,
« tha financial stataments and tha part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited have been property prepared in accordance
with the Companias Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Aricle 4 of the LAS regulation, and
« tha nformation gvan in tha Drectors’ Repart is consistent with the financial statements

Separate opinton in relation to IFRSs

As axptaned n Note 3. the Group in addimon to complyng wih s iegal cbigation to comply with IFRSs as adopled by the Europaan Uruon,
has also compbed with the IFRSs as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board in our opinion the Group tnancial statements
five a true and fair view, n accordance with IFRSs, of the stato of the Group's affars as at 28 December 2007 and of is profit for the 52 waek
penad then ended

Role ¢ Wute ¢ef

Delontte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Regrstered Auditors, London, United Kingdom

27 February 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FartheS2weeks ended 280ecember 2007

Noxes 2007 2008

$ 000 $ 000

Reveria 56 848,622 704,695
Cost of sales {452,348) {378,036}
Gross profit 396,274 328,659
Undertying research and development o . __b4om3z @ 07,252)
Amoriisaton of acquired intangrole assets {6.60%) 2.061)
Ressarch and davelopment {147,541) {108,313)
Sales and marksting (55,667) {47,634
Undertying admnistratve expenses I (27.968) {22,717}
Patent dispute sanlement {15,000} -
Adminisirative axpensss {42.968) {22,717)
Underlying operating profit 171,707 151,056
Patant drspute settiement {15.000) -
Amortisation of acqured wilangbile assats {6.609) {2,061}
Operating profit ] 150,098 148,895
Investment ncomea 5 7,938 6,106
Finance costs - 10 (2,437} {704)
Profit betore tax 155,599 154,297
Tex 11 (42.795) (43.200)
Profit for the period 7 112,804 111,197
Earmungs per share $ H
Basc 12 088 088
Diuted 12 083 082

The resutts were ali denved from continuing operations
The profit for the penad 1§ wholly attnbutable to equity holders of the parent company GSRplc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE  Forthe S2weeks ended 28 December 2007

Notes 2007 2006
$000 $ 000
{Loss} gan on cash fow hedges 26 {4,906) 8,350
Adurstments to deferred tax from reduced UK tax rates . N . 20 m) -
Net tax on cash flow hedges m equity 26 1,382 {2.50%)
Net {expense) mcome recogmsed directly in egunty (3.535) 5 845
Transters .
Transterred 10 income staternant in respect of cash flow hedges 26 836 (2,063)
Tax on tems transierred from equity 26 (225} 619
Profit tor the penod . 112 B4 111,197
Tota! recogmised mcomae and expense for the penad 109,880 115,598
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CONSOULIDATED BALANCE SHEET 28December 2087

Notes 28 Decermber 29 Decarrbar

2007 2008
5000 $ 000
Non-current assets
Gooctwil 13 144,207 51,952
Cther mtangile assets 14 45,144 31,685
Property, plant and equipment 5 52,924 45,454
Deferrad tax asset 20 7.021 11,350
249,256 140,442
Current assets
Invertory . 17 77256 108470
Derwvative inancial mstrauments . 19 696 4,522
Trade and other recenvables 18 97,206 101,822
Treasury deposits 18 52,065 30,000
Cash and cash eguivalents 18 193,311 117,494
420,534 360,308
Total assets 669,830 500,750

Current kabiibes

Trade and other payables 22 93,376 64,801
Current tax habdties 26,851 19,023
QObhgatons under financa leases 21 3,108 3.384
Denvatve financial nstruments 19 1,080 -
Prowisions 24 2414 4,100
Contingent consideration 23 25,988 -
162,817 91,308
Net current assets 267,717 269,000
Non-current iabiires
Deterred 1ax kabilty L A 20 8,208 -
Oblgations under finance leases 21 142 3,233
8,350 3,233
Total iabibes 161,167 94,541
Netassets 508,663 406,209
Equnty
Share caprtal 25 238 232
Share prernum account 26 89,926 84111
Caprtal redemption reserve 26 950 950
Treasury shares 26 {20,025) -
Merger reserve 26 81,574 61,574
Hadging reserve 26 899} 3171
.Share-based payment raserve . } 26 20,278 11,003
Tax reserve . _ 26 35,298 36.647
Retained earnings 26 321,325 208,521
Total equsty 508,663 406,209

These financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and authonsed for issue on 27 February 2008

They were signed on s behalf by

(A Comt s

Paul Goodndge
27 February 2008

Ron Mackintosh
27 February 2008
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CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW STATEMENT For the 52weeks ended 26 Decemoer 2007

N 2007 2008
$000 $000

Net cash from operating activities 28 222178 65.499
Investmg activibies
Interest receved 7,752 6,047
Purchasa of treasury deposits . . (22,065} {5,000}
Purchases of property. plant and equipment {24,382 (35,874)
Purchases of ntangible asseis {5,098 {9.787)
Asquisihon of subsithanes 27 {81.946) -
Net cash used in mvestng activities (125,739) (44,624)
Financing activities
Repayments of obligatrons under hnance leases {5,924) 5,235)
Purchasas of own shares _ (20,025) -
Proceeds onissue of shares 5,824 2,959
Not cash used in financing activities (20,125} (2,276)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 76,314 18,599
Cash and cash equvalents at begmning of penod 117.494 £9,386
Effact of toresgrt exchanae rate changes {497} {481)
Cash and cash equivalents at and of penod 193 311 117,494
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the 52weeks ended 28 Decernber 2007

1 General mformation
CSR plc 15 a Company ncorporated in the United Kingdom under the Comparzas Act 1885 The address of the registered ottice s given
onpage 97 Thanature of the Group's operations and its pancipal actwtis are set outinnote 6

These financal statements are presented in US dolars bacause that ts the cumancy of the pamary economsc environment in winch the
Group operates Foregn operations are rciuded in aceordance with the pobces set out m nota 3

2 Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current panod, the Group has adopted IFRS 7 Fnancial instruments  Drsclosures with effect from 30 December 2006 11 has also
adoptad the related amendmants to 1AS | Prasentation of Financial Staterments The impact of the adoption of IFRS 7 and the changes
10 1AS 1 has been to expand the disclosuras provided in these fnancial statements regarding the Group's financial nstruments and
management of capital (see note 32)

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 Operating Segments In advance of its sffective date, with efiact from 30 December 2006 IFRS 8 requrres
operating segments to be identfied on the basis of intemal reports Bbout components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Clef
Exacutve Officer and Board of Directors, to allocate resources 10 the segments and 10 assess ther performance In contrast, the predecessor
Standard (IAS 14 Segment Reporting) raquired the Group to wentify two sets of segments (business and geographical) using ansks and
rewards approach, with the Group’s systermn of intemal financzal reporting to key management personnel sening as tha starting point for the
lennficanan of such segments In 2006 under 1AS 14, the Group had one class of business, being the design and marketing of singls chup
racho devices Following the adopiion of IFRS 8, the Group's reportabla segments are as foflows

Callutar Mcbile phones, headsets and audio-retated
Nen Cellular  Beyond the mobie phone including PC, Automotive and Consumer apphcations

The Group has identifed business segments based on the ntemal reporting within the Group and has chosen to aggregate thase busingss
sagments which meet the aggregation ¢nteria specihed in IFRS 8 for disclosure as reportable segments

Al the date of authorisation of thase financaal statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not bean apphed i these
financial staternants were n 15su8 but not yet sffeciive

IFRS 3 Busimess Comibxnahons (revised}
lAS 23 Bomowing Costs (revised)
IAS 27 Consohdated end Separate Financal Statements frevised)

IFRIC 12 Service Concesson Arangements
IFRIC13 Custorner Loyalty Programmes
IFRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Limyt on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minmum Funding Requirements and ther interachion

Tha diractors anticipate that tha adoption of these Standards and Interpretanons in future penods, with the excephon of the amendments
to IFRS 3, will have no matanal impact on the inancal statements of the Group

The directors anticpate that the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised) may have a sigrsficant impact on the profit before tax and effective tax rate in
futurs years The adopton of the standard removes the reauirement to adiust goodwil after tha normal 12 month pencd idlowang the business
combrnation, when recogrusing a daferred tax asset for pre-actusttion losses of an acquired subsidiary As disclosed in note 20, the Group
has signiicant unrecognised tax losses which may become recogrisable n future penads after the adoption of thes standard The Group 1s
reviewang when i will adep? this standard, but notes that at the ¢urrent tame it has yet to be adopted by the European Umion, and the eartest
date of apphcation 1s 16r penods commencang on or atter 1 July 2007

3 Accounting polictes

Basts of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) The financial statemants
have also been praparad in accordance with IFRSs adopted by the Europaan Umnion and therefore the Group financial statermments comply with
Article 4 of the EUAS Regulaticn

The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basss, except for the ravaluation of financal instruments
The pancipal accounting potcies adopted are set out below

The fmancial staternenis cover the 52 week penod from 30 Decernber 2006 to 28 Dacember 2007, the comparatives are presented for the
52 week penod from 31 Dacember 2005 to 29 December 2006 The financial statements are reported on a 52 week hasis to be consistent
with the Group's internal reporttng

Basis of consoldaton

The consohdated financial statements incorporata the financial statements of CSR plc (the Company) and entities controlled by the Company
{its subsxianes} drawn up to the dates inchcated n the prmary financal statements Controlf s achigved where the Company has the power
to govem the financial and cperating policies of an investee entity o as to obtan benefits from i1s actvites
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the 52weeksended 28 December 2007
Continued

3 Accounting policies (continued)

Bas:s of consolidation {continued)

Tha results of subsidanes acquired of d:sposed of dunng the year are included in the conscldated ncoms statement from the effectve
date of acquisthon or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropnate

Where necessary, adustments are made to the financial statemens of subsidianes to bang the accounting pobGes used into line with those
used by tha Group

Al mtra-Group transactions, balances, ncome and expenses are eimnated on consohdation

Busmess combinations .

The acqustion of subsdianes 15 accounted for usng the purchase mathod The cost of the acquisition 18 measured at the aggregate oftha
farr valua, at the date of exchange, of assets given, kabities incurred or assumed, and aquity mstruments issuad by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquwes, plus any costs directly attnbutabia to the business comtsnation

On acquisition, the dentfiabie assets and habites and contingent kabxities of a subsichary are measured at ther fair valua at the date

of acqusiion Any axcess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the idantifiable net assats acquiredis recogmised as goodwill
Any defaiency of the cast of tha acquismon below the farr value of the identiable net assets acquired (| @ discount on acquishon) 1s credited
to profit or loss in the pencd of acquisitvon

Goodhwill

Goodwil! ansing on consoldation represents the excass of the cost of acquistion over the Group's nterest in the tar valus of the entifiable
assets and habilives of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entty at the date of acquistion Goodwill1s mbally maasurad as an asset
at cost and 1s subsequently measured at castigss any accumuiated impaiment losses Goodwill which is recognised as an asset s reviewed
for impamment at [eastannually Any impairment is recogrised immadiatety in profit or loss and is not subsequently reversad

For the purpasa of Imparment 1esting, goodwil 15 atocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benetit from the
synergies of the combination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested annually or more fraquently when therg
1S an indication that the unit may be impaired 1f the racoverable amount of the cash-generating unit s less than the carryng amount of the una,
themparment loss is allocated first to reduce the carying amount of any goodwill allocated to the umit and then to the other assels of the umt
pro rata on the basis of tha carmang amount of each asset in the unit. An mparment loss recogrused for goodwill s not reversed i

a sutxsequent penod

On disposal of a subsichary, associate or jontly controlied entity, tha attnbutable ameunt of goodwall is ncluded n the determinaton of the profit
or loss on disposal

Revenue recognition

Revenus is recogrised when it s probable that econormic benefits will flow to the Group Revenue 13 measuredat the fair value of the
considaration recevad or recavable and represants amounts recaivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business,
net of ciscounts, VAT and other sales related taxes

Sales of goods are recogrusad when goods are delivered and title has passed

Royaly ncomais recogrised upon shipment of the royaity eamung product by tha icencee

For the sate of sarces, revenue 1s recognised m accounting penods n which the senice 1s rendered on a percentage of completon basis
Revenus from post coniract support s recogrusad over the penod of performance The excess aof service fees and post-contract support
nvorced over ravenua recognrsed s recorded as deferred income

Revenua s shown nat of estimated provision for credit notes and relums

Interest ncoma 1s accrued On a ma basss, by referance to the pancipal outstanding and at the effective miarest rate applicable

Leasing

Leases are classihed as finance laasas whenever the terms of the lease transfer substanually alt the nsks and rewards of ownarship

to thelessee All other leases are classiied as operating leasss

Assats heki under finance leases arg recogrised as assets of the Group at theur far value or, if lowar, at the present value of the munimum lease
payments, each determunec at the nception of tha fease  The comesponding hataity to the lassor 1s ncluded mn the batance sheet as a finance
lease cblgation Lease paymenis are apportioned betwesn inance charges and reducton of the lease cbligaton 3o as to achieve a constant
rate of nterest on the remamung balancs of the labdity Finance charges are chargad directly 10 the incoma siaternant

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the tncoma statement on a streaght-kne basis over the term of the relevant lease
Benefits recaved and recavable ag an ncoentrva 10 enter IN0 an operating lease are also spread on a straight fina basts over the lease term
Forewgn currencies

The funchonal currency of CSR plc and ts subsidianes 1s the US doliar and this 1s also the presentation currency for the consolidaled financial
statements Transactions in currencies other than US doltars ara recorded at the ratas of exchange prevaling on the dates of the transactions
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3 Accounting policies (continued)

Foresgn currencies {contmued)

Al each balance sheet date, monetary assets and kabhitigs that are danoninated in foraign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevaling
on the balance sheet date Non-monetary assets and habibties camed at far value that are denorminated mn foreign curences are transtated
at the rates prevading at the date when the far value was detarmined Gains and losses ansing on retranstation are ncluded n the net proft
or loss for the penod

In order 1o hedge its exposuré 1o certain foraign exchange nsks, the Group enters into forward coniracts (see balow for detals of the Group's
accounting policies in respact of such denvatve financial instruments)

On conschdation, the assats and iabilities of the Group's overseas operations ane transtated at exchangae rates prevatiing on the balance sheet
date Income and expense dems are transiated at the average exchange rates for the penod

Operating profit
Operating profit 1s stated before investment ncome and fnance costs

Retirement benefit costs
Paymaents to defined contribution retrement banafl schemes are charged as an expense as thay (all dus Diffarences betwean contnbutions
payabla in the pertod and contnbutions actually pad are shown as erther accruals or prepayments in the balanca sheet

Taxation

The tax payabie 15 basad on taxable profl tor the year Taxable profit difiers from net profit as reported in the income statement bacause

it excludes nems of mcomea and expense that arg taxabla or deductible in other panods and it further excludes iterns that are never taxable
ordeductible The Group's liabibty lor current tax 18 catcutated using tax rates that have been enacted or substanively enacted by tha
batance sheet date

Deferrad tax s the tax expected 10 be payable or recaverable on differences batween the carrying amountis of assets and kabilites m the
financal statements and the corresponding tex bases used in the computation of taxabla profit, and s accounted for using the balance sheet
labiity method Deferred tax babiitas are generally recogrised for all taxable temporary difterences and daferred tax assets ararecognsed
to the extent that i 1s probable that taxabls profits wit be avalable against which deductible temporary differences, unused carned forward
1ax losses end unuged camed forward tax credits can be utitsed Mowsvar, such assets and habiiies are not recogrused if the temporary
differences anse rom

+ the invtizl recogrition of goodwall,

« {ha it recogrution (other than m a busness comixnation) of other assets and kabiites in a transaction that affects ne:ther the taxable
profit nor the accountng profit,

* mvestments in subsidianes and associates, and nterests in joint ventures, where the Group 15 able to controt the reversal of the tan;porary
diffarence and it s probabie that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresesable future

The camying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that its no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be avalable to allow all or part of the assat 1o be recovered

Deferred tax 13 calcidated at the tax rates that are expecied to apply i the penod when the kabdity 1s settied or the asset 1s reafisad
Deferred tax s charged or credited in the ncome statement, except when it refates 1o tems charged or creditad directly to egurty,
mwhich case deferred tax is afso dealt with m equity

Deferred 1ax assats and kabdities are offset when thera s a logally enforceable nght 10 set off ¢trrani tax assets aganst cument tax kabdiies
and when they relaie 10 income taxes levied by the same taxation authanty and the Group rtends to sattle #s current tax assets and katbxities
on anet basis

Property, plant and equipment

Plart and equipment are stated at cost less accumutated depreciation and any recognisad imparrment loss Depraeciation s charged so
as 1o wnte off the cost of the assets, less estmated residual value, aver ther estimated useful lives, using the straight ine method, on the
following basts -

Computer equipment 2103 years

Test equipment 2105 years :
Office squipment dyears !
Furruture and fithngs 5 years

{_easehold improvements mnimum lease panod
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Forthe S2weeks ended 28 December 2007
Continued

3 Accounting policites (contmuad)

Property, plant and equipment {conbnuad)

Residual values are the estrmated amount that the Group would obitan from disposal of the asset, atier deducting estmated costs of disposal,
o the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of s useful Iife, based on prces prevailing at the balance sheet date

in general residual values are zero of negligible, due to the technical and specahsed nature of assets held

Assets held under hinance leases are depreciated over thar expected useful Ives on the same bass as owned assets or, where shorter,
over the term of the relevant lease

Tha gam or loss ansing on tha cisposal or ratwament of an asset 18 determuned as the chiiference batwean the sales proceads and the camying
amount of the assel and 13 recognised in the income statament

Assats m tha course of construction am camed at ¢ost less any recognised imparrment losses Depraciation of these assets commences when
tha assets are ready for ther mtended use

Otherintangible assets

Cther ntangible fixed assets are stated at cost or faur valua for tems acquered in busingss combinations, net of amortisaton and any prevision
for mmpairment No amorisation s provided on assets in the course of construction On other intangible fed assets, amontisation s provided
at rates calculated to wnte off the cost or far value, less astimated residual value, of @ach asse! on a strarght Ins basis over 11s axpected useful
Iite as fallows

Software hcences licance term
Custorner contragts and refanonships 3years
Purchased R3D 410 10 years

Resichual values are tha estrnated amount that the Group would obtan trom disposal of the assat, after deducting estimated costs of disposal,
if the asset wera already of the age and in the condition expectad at the end of ts useful Ife, based on pnces prevating at tha balance sheet date

In general residual values arg zero or negligible, due to the lechnical and specialsed nature of assets held

Assats hald under finance leasas are depreciated over ther expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter,
over the term of the relevant iease

The gamn or tass ansmg on the disposal or retiremeant of an asset 1s determuned as the diference between the sales proceeds and the camying
amount of the asset and s recogrised n the Incoma statament

Assets in the course of construciion arg camed at cost net of any prowisson for mpaiment Amortisation of these assets commences when
the assets are ready lor their intended use

Research and development expenditure
Expendrture on research actiaties 1s recognised as an expensa n the penod inwiich i s ncured

An ntemalty ganerated ntangble asset ansng from the Group®s product development s recogrised onty o all of the followang condions are met
« an asset 1s oreated that can be identified {such as a new dewice or software),
* tha proiect from which the asset anses meets the Group's cntena for assessing techncal {sasibiity,
=115 probable that the asset created will generate future economuc benefits, and
» the development cost of the asset can be maasured rehably

intemally genarated mtangiblo assets are ameortised on a stra:ght Ima basis over ther ussfd bves Where no mtemally generated intangble
asset can be recognsed, devalopment enqenciture 1S recognised as an expense inthea penod in wikch il 15 Incurred

Impaiment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwil

At gach belance sheet date, the Group reviews the carmng amounts of is tangible and intangible assets to determine whather there 1s any
inchcaton that those assets have suffered an mpairment lass If ary suchindication exsts, the recovarable amount of the asset 1s estmated
n order to determina the exient of theimparment loss [if any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are ndependent from other
assats, the Group estmates the recoverable amount of the cash-generatng urkt to which the asset belongs  Anntangbla asset with an
ndefinite usahd ife 1s tested lor imparrment annually and whanever there 1s anindication that the asset may be mpared
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3 Accounting polictes (continued)

Impatrment of tangible and intangtble assets excluding goodwill (continued)

Recovarable amount s the tugher of far value lass costs 1o sell and value i use In assessing value n use, the estimated future cash flows
arg discountad to tharr present values usng a pre-tax disoount rate that reflacts current market assessments of the time value of money
and the nsks specific 1o the asset for which the estimatss of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s estmated 10 be less than s carrying armount, the carmying amount of the
assat (cash-generating unit) 15 reduced to ts recoverable amount Anmpairment loss s recognised as an expense immeadiately

Where an mparment loss subsequently reverses, the carmyng armount of the asset (cash-generating uni) is mcreased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but the reversal is kmnted so that the increased carmmying amount doas not excead the carrying amount that would
have been determned had no impaiment loss been recognisad for the assat {cash-generating unil) inpnor years A revarsal of an mpamment
Ioss s recognised as mcome iImmedhately

Inventones

nventonas are stated at the lower of cost and net resiisable value Cost compnses drect matonals and, where apphicable, those overheads
that have been mcurred in bnnging the inventones to their present locaton and condition Cost s caleutatad using tha first-n-first-out (FIFO)
mathod Net reaksabla valua represents the estimated seling pnce less all estimated costs of completon and Costs to be incurred in markating,
seling and distnbution

Financial mstruments
Financial assets and financig! labilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet whan the Group becomes a party to the contractual
prowsions ¢f the mstrument

Trade recewvables '
Trade recenvables do not carry any interest and are stated at ther tar value as reduced by appropnate alowances for estmated
rrecoverabla amounts

investments

Investments are racognised and derecoghisad on a trada date where & purchase or sale of an nvestment 1s under a contract whose
tarms require debvery of the investment within the timeframa established by the market concemned, and are nitially measured at cost,
inchuding transaction costs

invastments consist of money market deposits in USD, GBP and Euros Interest ncomae ts recorded as it accrues over the penod of the
nvestrment at rates fixed at the tme of nception

Cash and cash equwvalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand end demand deposits

Deracognition of financial assets

The Group deracogrises a hnancal assat only when the contractusal nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transters the finangial
asset and substantaliy all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset 10 another entity If the Group neither transters nor relans
substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred assat, the Group recognises s retained nterest
i the asset and an associated kabilty for amounts 4 may have 1o pay

imparment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for ndicators of mpairment at each balance sheset date Financial assets are impared where there 1s objectve
ewdence that, as a result of one or more gvants that have occurrad after the initial recognimon of the asset, the estimated futura cash flows of
the investment have been impatred ’

Objective evdence of imparment could include significant financia! difficulty of the issuer or counterparty. or dafault or detnquency in interest
or pnncipal paymenits, o7 1l bacoming probable that tha borower will enter banknupicy or financal re-organisation

The camying amount of the financial asset 1s reduced by thaimparment loss dractly tor all financial assets with the exception of trade
recevables where the carrying ameount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance sccount

Financial labitties and equity
Financial iabilties and equity instruments are classthed according to the substance of the comractual arrangemants entered nto

Trade payables
Trado payables are not nterest beanng and are stated at thewr tar value

Eqaty mstruments

An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual nterast n the assats of the Group after deducting all of its babitities
Equny instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds recaved, net of drect 1ssua costs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Forthe 52 weeks ended 28 Decernber 2007
Continued

3 Accounting policies (contimued)

Fuancial instrumeents {(continued)

Derecognmon of financia! babidies

The Group derecognises financig habikes when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancealled or they expire

Dervate financsa! mstruments

The Group's actvities exposa d pamardy 1o the financial nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates The Group uses foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge these exposures The Group does not use denvative financial nstruments for spaculatve pumosas Further details
ot denvative financial nstruments are disclosed in note 32 1o the financial statements

The use of inancial denvatives 1S governad by the Group's policies approved by the Board of directors, which provides wailten prncples

on the usa of financial denvatves The Group's pohcy 18 10 hedge betwesn 75% and 90% of forecast GBP expendiure for the falowing

1119 15 months

Denvativa financal nstruments are nitally recorded at fawr value at the dats a demvative contract 1$ entared o and are subsequently
remeasured to far value at each balance shest date The resuling gawn or k058 13 recogrised in profit o koss mmedhately uniess the denvative
15 desgnated and effectve as ahedging mstrument, n wiich event the tming of the recogribon in profit or loss depends on the nature of

the hadge relationship

Hedge accounting

Hadges ot forexgn exchange nsk on hirm commitments are accounted for as cash fiow hadges At the ncaption of tha hedge retationship,
the Group documents he relationshup between the hedging Insirument and the hedged item, along wath its nsk management obiectives
and ts strategy for undentalang vanous hedge transactions Furthermors, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whather the hedging instrument that 1s used In a hedging relationship 1s expecied 1o be highly etfectve n offsatting changes
incash flows of the hedged tem

Note 19 sats out datails of the far values of the dervative instruments used for hedging purposes Movameants i the hedging reserve In equity
are also detaded tn the statement of recogrnised ncome and expense

-

Cash flow hedges
The affectve porion of changes in the farr value of denvatives that are designated and qualfy as cash flow hedges are deferred in equity

The gain o loss refating to the ingflective portion 1s recogresed mmediately i profit or loss

Amounts deterred n equity ars racycled mio profit or loss in the penods when the hadged demis recogresed n profit or loss Whan the forecast
transaction thatis hedged resuits in the recogrition of a non-financial assetor a non-finanoial iatkty, the gains and losses previousty deferred
mn equrty are transferred from equity and mciuded in the mitial measuremant of tha cost of the asset or labilty

Hedge accountmg 1s discontinuad when the Group revokes the hedgng relatonship, the hedging Nstrumert expres or s soid, terminated,
exarcisexd or no longer qualdies for hedge accounting Any cumuiatve gain or loss daferred in equity a1 that time remaing in equity and 1s
recognised when the forecast iransaction is uiimaiely recogmsed n proft or loss When a forecast transaction s no fonger expected to ocour,
the cumutative gain or loss that was deferred in equity ts recogrusad Immediately in profit or loss

Prowvisions
Provisons for warranty and retums Costs are recogresed at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’ best astimate

of the expenditure required to sattle the Group's kabihty

Provesion s made for onerous contracts at the kaur valua of the minimum unavordable lease payments, ngt of any amounts recoverabie
from sub-leases

Share-based payment
The Group has applied the requremants of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment In accordance with the transiional prowisions,
IFRS 2 has been apphed to all grants of equity mstruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 January 2005

The Group 15suas equity-settied sharg-based payments to certam employees, including share options with non-markat based vesting
conditons Equrty setfied share-based paymenits are measured at the farr value at the date of grant The tar value determined at the grant
dato of the equity-settied share-based payments 1s expensed on a straight-ine basis over tha vesting penod, based on the Group's estimate
of shargs that will gventually vast

Fair value 1s measured by use of a Black-Scholes modal for the majonty of share options nssue The expected ife used in the model has been
adiustad, basad on managemant's best estmate, (oc the effects of non-transferabiity, exercise resinclions, and behavioural considerations

For certam share options which include TSR related condition the farr value 18 estimated through the use of a Monte-Carlo simutation
Employee benefit trust ’
The Group has estabhshed an employae benefit trust whuch 15 a separately adminstered trust and s funded by lgans from Group companies

The assats of the trust compnse shares in CSA plc and cash balances The Group recogrises assets and iabdities of the trust nthe
consobdated accounts and shares held by the trust ars recorded at cost as a deduction from shareholders’ equity
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4 Cnitical accounting judgements and key sourcas of esttmation uncertanty
The key assumptions cancermmg the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet dats, that have a signficant
nsk of causng matenal adiustment 10 the carryng amounts of assets and habities within the next hnancial year are drscussed below

Inventory valuation

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realsable value Provisions for excess or obsolate invartory are recorded based

upon assumphons about future demand and market condions If actual market condibons are less tavourable than those projecied by
management, addiional inventory prowisions may be required  The carrying amount of inventory at 28 December 2007 was $77 3 million
(2006 $106 5 mikon)

Imparment of goodwili

The Group reviews goodwill ior mparment on at least an annual basis This requares an estimation of the value in usa of the cash-generaiing
units to which the gocdwilis allocated Estimating the vaiue in use requeres the Group 1o make an estimate of expected tuture cash flows trom
each cash-ganerating unit and a's0 10 choose a suitable ciscount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows The carrying
amount of the goodwil at 28 December 2007 was $144 2 madkon (2006 $52 ¢ million)

Provisions

Determining the level of provision required for returns and warranty claims raquires management to review the histonc levels of usage whilst
considenng the growthin the business and other changes wiich have occurred in the manufactunng cycle The carrymg amount of the
provision at 28 December 2007 was $2 4 mlton (2006 $4 1 mulkon)

$Revenue
2007 2006
5000 $000
Sale of goods . ' B46,831 700,982
Royalties : 1,791 3,713
848,622 704,685
nvestrnent ncome 7.938 6,106

856,560 710,801

Investment ncome 1S interest on bank deposits

6 Segmental reporting

Business segments

In 2008 undar 1AS 14 Sagment Reporting, CSR had one class of business, beng the design and marketing of smgle chip radio devices  From 30
Dacember 2006, as a result of an mtemal rearganisaton and based on iInformation reported to the Group's Chref Exacutive Ofticer and Board of
Dxrectors for the purpasas of resource aocation and assassment of segment perfarrance, the Group's reportable segments are more specifically
focussed on the markens wiuch they serve The Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8§ Cperating Sagments are therefore as follows

Celluar Maobile phones, headssts and audio-retated
NonCellular  Beyond the motile phong inclucing PC, Automotve and Consumer applications

The Group has dentified business segments based on the interal reporting within the Group and have chosen to aggregate those busness
sagments which meet the aggregation critena specthed in IFRS 8 for disclosure as reportable segments

Comparatve information 1s only provided for the analysis of revenue by the klentited raportable segrenis In 2006, the Group was organised
as a sngle reportable segment and the internal reporting systems and structures wers only in place from 30 December 2008, therefore the
information required 10 allocate costs and assets to the identied segments n a reasonable way 1S not avaiable and the cest to produce this
information would be axcessive

Segment revenues and resutts
The followang s an analysis of the Group s revenue and resuits by reportable segment 1 2007

2007 Cefiular Non Caflutar Uruatt d C d
2007 207 2007 2007
$000 S oo0 5000 5000

Revenue _ . _

Total segment revenus 860,554 188,028 - 848,622

Result _ B

Undarhying operabng profit” 118,385 £3.312 - 171,707

Operatng profit / sogment result 112,043 8§3.055 (15,000) 150,098

tnvestment incoma [note 5) - - 7.938 7,938

Finance costs (note 10) - - (2,437) {2,437)

Profit before tax 112.043 83,055 (9.499) 155,599

“Undertying operating profit axcludes amorusanon of acquired mtangible assets
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NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Forthe 52weeks ended 28 December 2007
Continued

6 Segmental reporting (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

Investment ncome and finance costs are nat allocated to reportatile segments for the purposes of reporting lo the Group's
Chief Executve Ofticar and Board of Drectors

The actouniting pobcies for tha reportable sagments ara the same as the Group's accaunting polices as descrbed m note 3 The segmant
resuft reprasents operating profit samad by sach segment without allocation of the $15 0 milon patent dispute settiement Costs are allocated
to sagments based on tevels of R&D and marketing actmity n thepenod This 1S themeasure reported to the Group's Chuet Executiva Officer
and Board of Drectors for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance

2006 Cetdar Non Ceflular Unaf! d c

2008 2006 2000 2006
$ 000 soo $000 $000

Revenue .
Total segment revenus 584,538 120,159 - 704,695

No comparative mformaton s avalable for operating profit spht by repartable segment as, in 2006, the Group was organsed as a single
reportabls sagment and the mternal reporting systems and structures were only n place from 30 Decarnber 2006 I3 not possible to alocate
costs and assets to thedenufied segments in a reasonable way

Segment assets
2007
5000
Callular 362,483
Non Calhutar 38,688
Total segment assets 401,171
Deferrad tax asset 7.021
Cash flow hadges 696
Other recenvables 15,566
Treasury deposits _ . } 52,085
Cash and ¢cash equwvaients 193,311
Total assels 669,830

Assats allocated to reportable segmeants are goodwill {allocation s descabed i note 1 3), property, plant and equpment, itangible assets,
trade recevables and mventory All other assets are unallocated Assets are allocated to the segment which has responsibdty for thetr control

Mo comparatve information s prowded for segment assets for the reportable segments identihied as the witernal reporting systems
and strueturea were not n place in 2006 for such information to be obtained

No nformation is provided for segment labiiiies as this measure 1 not provided to the chuaf operating decision maker

Other sogmant information

2007 Celhdar Non Collutar Consobdated
2007 2007 2007
500 S 000 S000
Deprecabon and amoriisabon of mtangible assats 23,664 4,180 27,854
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 6,252 257 6,609
Sharg-based payment expanss 8,036 1,239 9,275
Capual expenditure 48,878 6,345 65,223
2006 Colux Non Calusr Corooieistod
2008 2008 2006
5000 5000 £000
Arnortisation of acgured ntangible assets 1,804 257 2,061

No comparatve miormation 1s avallable for capital expenditure, depreciation and amortisation of ntangible assats and share-basad payment
expanse as thenternal reporting systems and structures were not in place n 2006 for such information {o be obtained

Revenues from major products and services
The Group's ravenues from its mayor products and serices were as lollows

2007 2008
5000 $ 000

Sala of ntegrated crcuts B38,115 698,087
Sale of spftware 8.716 4915
Royaues : 1,701 3,713
Consohdated revanue (exciudmg investment Income) 848,622 704,695
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8 Segmental reporting (continued)
Geographscal information

The Group operates in four prncpal geographical areas —the UK {country of domicie), Eurape, the Amencas and Asa The Group's revenue
from extemal customers and niomnaton about its segment assets {(non-current assats exchuding deferred tax assets and other fimancal assets)

by geographical location 1s detaded below

Revenus from sxtemal austomons

2007 2000
5000 $000
UK 1777 2,175
Europe
- Fintand 15,416 10.818
~Hungary 46,287 31,121
-Other e e e 11,520 18,702
usa . o _ _ 54,039 . 57990
Amencas (exchuding USA) L L. i} 13,324 10,435
Asa . _ ) . .
-China and Hong Kong 298,882 194,147
-Tawan e . 127,779 . 133,405
-Korea __ _ N ) ~ 104,817 73,387
~dapan ] . 159,604 161,662 |
- Cther Asia Pacific i 15,177 10,853 |

848,622 704,695

Revenues ara attnbuted to gecgraphical areas on the basts of the customer's manufactunng locatan

NON-CUTONt &53el8 :

2007 2008 \
£ 0 5000

UK__. 131,648 96,902 ‘
Europe el e e o 76,636 662
usa | . e 16,224 16,863
Asa 18,767 14,665

242,275 129,092

Non-current assets, baing gooawll, property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets arg atinbuted to the location where

they are situated

Information about major customers

inchuded n revenues ansing from Cellular ard Non Cellular are revenues of approxamately $220 1 milkon (26% of revenuss)
{2006 $201 4 mihon, 20% of revenues) which arose from sales to the Group's largest customer This was the only customer exceading
10% of revenue in ether penod Revenusa from the top five customers represents 52% of revenues (2006 61%)

7 Profit for the penod
Profit for the penod has been arrved at atter charging (crediting)

2007 2000

S0 $000
Net foreign exchangs loss (gan) o 1,500 618
Research and development costs. . 147,541 109,313
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment i 17,427 11,183
Patent chspute settierment i . 15,000 - .
Amorhsatonofmtangbleassets o L :_ 17.036 _ _Badi
Statt costs (seenote 9) _ _ 121,278 84,887
Cost ofinventones recogrusex as expenss o "7 432,08 356,359
Wnie downs of nventones recogrised as an expense o 4,598 5,100
Audiiors’ remunaraton for gudt services (sea nota 8) 357 319
Deferrad tax adustment to goodwill (ses note 13} 279 745
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Forthe 52weeks ended 28 December 2007
Continued

8 Audrtors’ remunerstion
The analysis of audntors’ remunerabion 15 as foliows

2007 2006

$000 S 000

Fees payable 10 thg Company's audtors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts a2 85
Fees payable to the Company's audstors and thew associates for other services to the Group

- Tha audit of the Company"s subsidianes pursuant to legisiation 265 234

Total audt fees 357 3198

Othar serices pursuant to legsiation 34 34

Tax servcos 146 181

Total non-audh fees 180 215

Feas payabla to Delortta & Touche LLP and ther associates for non-audi serces to the Company are not required to be disclosed because

the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

Significant non-aucht senvices require pro-approval by the Audit Committee

9 Staff costs
The average monthly nurmiber of empioyees Including executive directors) was
el oo
Rasearch and development 670 541
Sales and marketmg 232 184
(General and administrative 110 a1
1.012 816
$000 $ 000
Thetr aggregate remunaration compnsed
Salanes 96.921 76,151
Socatsecuntycosts_ S _ 9,147 6,553
QOtherpengioncosts R . . 5,935 . 4547
Share option charges 9,275 7,836
121,278 94,887
10 Finance costs
2007 2006
000 5000
Intarest expanse and simiar charges ; . B _ L a7 207
Unwmdmg of dssooum on contingent deferred oons1darat|on - 1,602 -
Interest payabie on acqurstion loan notes . 100 -
Foraign exchange lossas 498 497
2.437 704
11 Taxation
2007 2008
$ 000 5000
Current income tax payabla for the year 38,311 32,6802
Gurrent mcome tax benefit recogresed n equity (note 26) " 5511 6.302
Curmrent mcome tax charge .. .. 4382 38.904
Ad;usunem n raspecto!cmem neome tax of pnoryears 1,195 2,914
Total current ncome tax charge 45017 41,818
Defarred tax charge L N 322 3,860
Dealerred tax rate change mpact . _ _ i (1,088) -
Adiustment in respect of deterred tax of prior years {1,456) '(2.,478)
Total deferred tax ¢charge (note 20) 2,222) 1,382
Total tax charge 42,795 43,200
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11 Taxation (contmued)

UK Corporation tax s calculated at 30% (2006 30%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year

Taxaton for other unschetons i1s calculated at the rates prevading in the raspective junsdictions
The charge for the year can be reconcied to the profit per the ncome statement as follows

2007 2007 2006 2000

5000 % $000 »
Profit before tax ' 155,599 1000 154,397 1000
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2006 309%) 46,680 300 46,319 3040
Tax banefit of addional specric tax retiefs {5,628) 36 {4,2200 27
Effect ot different tax rates of subsichanes operatng n other junsdictions 539 03 409 03
Adustments totax charggmrespectofpnorysars (261) 02 438 03
Deforred tax rate adpstments . ... hos® ©7 -, -
Non-deductbleexpenses ) 2,553 17 245 01
Tax losses not utised - - 11 -
Tax expense and effective tax rate for the penad 42,795 275 43,200 280

In March 2007, the UK Government announced that they would introduce fegistation that would reduce the corporation tax rate to 28% with
stfect from 1 Aprd 2008 Trus legistation has baen fully enacted The deferred tax assets and kabyihes, previously stated at 30% of the temporary
differences, were remeasured to 28% of those amounts In addition, the effective 1ax rate for the pencd from 1 Apnl 2008 18 expected ¢

reduce accordmgly
12 Eammungs per share
The calculations of samings per share are based on the tollowing data
Eamings 2007 2008

. S 000 $000
Undertiying eamings for the financsal penod 127,830 112,640
Patent ckspute settlemant, netoftax =~ . {10,500 -
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets, net of tax {4,626) (1.443)
Earnings for the financial penod 112,804 111,197
Number of shares Number of shargs  Number of shaves
Waghted average number of shares
Forbasceamingspershare | - .- - . 130.690.101 128,513,071
Etfact of diutive potential ordinary shares - share options 4,908,720 6,319,171
For dituted eamings per share 135,596,821 135,832,242
Eamings per share 5 $
Undertying basic earnings per share c98 o87
Patent chspute settlement, net of tax {008 -
Amortisation of acquved ntang ble assets, net of tax (0 04) (0 01)
Basic eamwngs per share 0 86 0 86
Underiying diluted earmings per share 094 083
Fatent dispute sattlement, netottax | .. - .. ©os) .-
Amortisation of acquired intangtbla assets, net of tax © 03} Q01)
Oiluted eamings per share 083 082
13 Goodwall

$ 000

Cost and carrying amount .. e _
At 31 Dgcember 2005 ] L . T s2897
Adustment for recognition of deferred tax asset (745)
At 29 December 2006 51,952
Racognition on accursiaon of subsidianes (note 27) 92,534
Adustment for recogniion of deferted tax asset ) {279
At 28 Dacember 2007 144,207
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NOTESTO THE CONSQUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the 52weeks ended 28 Decernber 2007
Continued

13 Goodwill {continued)

Al the time of the 2cauiSitions 10 2005 and 2007, the acquired entities included brought forward tax losses These were not recognsed at the
time of tha acquisition as i was not considered probable that taxabla profit would be avalable aganst which these losses coutd be utised
Durng 2007 and 20086, a deferred tax asset was recogrised for some of thesa losses and, in accordance with IFRS 3, an equivalent adjustrment
was mado fo googdwi This resutted in a charge of $279,000 (2008 $745,000) which was included withtn administrative expenses

Goodwil acqured in a business comixnation s allocated, at acqursihion, 1o the ¢ash generating units that arg expected to benefit from that
business combination The carrying amount of goodwall has been aliocatad as folows

$ 000

Reportsble segment Cash Generating Unrt 2007
Cehutar Mobile Handseats 129,441
Mabrda Haeadsets 5,906

Non Cethutar Automaotve 8,860
144,207

in 2008, goodwil acqured in a business combinatian was aliocated 1o the sngle cash-generating unit

The Group tests goodwill annually for imparment ormore froquently if thers are ndications that goodwall rght be impaired

The recaverabla amount of the cash-ganerating unit s datermined rom a value mn use caleulaton The key assumptions for the value inuse
catculations are thosa regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changss 10 seting pnces and drrect costs dunng the penod
Management estimates discount rates usng pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the ime valus of money and the nsks
spociic to CSR Changes n seling pnees and diract costs are based on past practices end expeciations of future changes In the market

For all cash generating units the Group prepares cash flow forecasts darved from the most recent financial budget approved by managemerit
for the next year and extrepolates cash flow foracasts (or the followng four years, assurming, for this purpose, no growth This rate does not
axcead the average long-term growth rate for tha relevant markets

The rate used 1o discount the forecast cash flows1s 9 3%

14 Other intangible asseats

Purchasad
N Orocess. Customer Assotan
reseerch and contract end Eottwere tha course of
relabonshes ooncss construction Totat
3000 $ 000 § 000 $ 000 $ 000
Cost .
A1 30 December 2005 _ N 13,400 2,000 21,65 157 37,208
Additons  _ ) - - 16,623 - 16,623
Disposals - - (3.467) - (3.467)
Transfars - - 157 {157) -
Al 29 Decamber 2006 13,400 2,000 34,064 - 50,364
Addtions - - 7.087 - 7,087
Acqured on acgurisition of subsidianas 23,500 - - - 23.500
Disposals - - {1,183 - {1,183
A1 28 Decernber 2007 36,900 2,000 40,868 - 79,768
Amortisation - . . .
At 30 Decernber 2005 . 546 369 10,785 - 11,700
Charge tor the year . 1394 667 8,420 - 8,481
Dxspasals - - {1.503) - (1,503
At 29 December 2006 1,940 1,036 15,702 - 10,678
Charga for the year 5,942 667 10,427 - 17,038
Disposals - - (1 .090) - (1 lm
At 28 December 2007 7,882 1,703 25,039 - 34,624
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14 Other intangible assets (continued)

Purchased
nprocess Castormer Assptsm
research and contracts and Sohware tha coursa ol
development reizbonshgss. cances construclion Totm
$ 000 $000 SO $000 $000
Carrying amount
At 28 Dacembear 2007 20,018 297 15,828 - 45,144
Al 29 December 2006 11,460 864 19,262 - 31.688
Leased assets mcluded above
Carmying amount . .
A1 28 December 2007 - - 3,209 - 3,209
At 29 December 2006 - - 8,108 - 8,108
Amortisation of mtangible fixed assets s ncluded within *Research and development” n the ncome statement
15 Property, plant and equipment
Asselsntha
Test Lsasshold Furnure and Computer Offico courss of
equpment mongvaments ftungs equpment Suprmant CONSUCTION Total
$ 000 $000 $000 $000 S 000 S 000 $000
Cost
At 30 December 2005 25,234 2,761 1,580 15427 1,641 - 45,553
Addtions 24,680 1,043 2,110 5313 53 - 34,099
Disposats {77) (211} (115) {424) {121} —- (948)
Al 29 Decambear 2006 49,837 3,593 3,585 20318 2373 - 79,704
Addmons 15,634 3,687 642 3,147 589 937 24,636
Drsposals (1,099) @n (583) (2,362 {100) - (817}
Acqutred on acquisthon of subskhanas 701 - 283 3z 58 - 1,367
At 28 Dacember 2007 65,073 7.253 3,927 21,428 2,918 937 101,536
Deprectation ; . . N _ .
At 30 December 2005 13,353 422 674 . B570 993 - 24,012
Charge for the year 4,950 612 oo 754 4619 248 . _ ‘I_1.183
Disposals 77) {211} {115) (424) (118) -~ (945)
At 29 December 2006 _g2:6 83 1313 te7es o123 - 420
Chargs for the year 9,451 1,276 545 5474 681 - 17,427
Drspasats {1.082) © (560 (2,350 {96) - (4.096)
Acqured on acquasion of subsidanas 545 - 279 194 13 - 1,031
At 28 Decamber 2007 27,140 2,091 1,577 16,083 1,721 - 48,612
Carrymg amount
At 28 December 2007 37,833 5,162 2.350 5,345 1,197 937 62,924
At 29 December 2006 31,611 2,770 2,272 7,561 1.250 - 45,454
Leased assets ncluded above
Carrying amount N _ . . __
At 28 Decamber 2007 - - - - g8 - 5
At 29 Dacember 2008 - - - 558 g - 567

At 28 Decamber 2007, the Group had entarad nto contractual commutments for the acquisiion of property, plant and eguipment amountng

to $4,386,000 (2006 $nul)

16 Subsidanes

A st of the significant investments m subsidianes, incluaing the name, country Of noomoration and proportion of ownership intergst Is given
nnote 39 1o the Company's separate inancal statements
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Continued

17 Inventones
2007 2008
$ 000 $ 0ce
Raw matenals ; . 16,819 51,246
Work in progress 10,724 12,143
Fimshaed goods 49,713 43,081

77,266 106,470

18 Other financial assets
Trade and other recevables

207 2008

$ 000 $ 000

Amounts raceablo for sgle of goods and software .. 81583  _ 87002
Amounts recenvable for royalties 47 244
Total trade receivables 81.640 87.246
Comoration tax ) o . R R . 187 -
VAT i . _ i } 1,606 1,008
Otherrecesvables e B 5,067 8,330
Prepayments and accrued ncome 8,618 5,148
97,206 101,822

The avaraga credit penod taken on total trade recenvables s 37 days (2006 45 days} Anallowance has been made for estmated inecoverable
amounts withn trade recenvablas of $3,000 (2006 $82,000) This allowance has been determined by reference to past default expenence
An allgwanca for cradt notes and price adustments has also been made within irade recavables of $150,000{2006 $150,000)

Before accapting any new customers, the Graup uses a credit sconng system to assess the potential customers credit quatity and define credt
kmits by custorner Cradt imits and credit quality arg rogularty reviewed

It1s the policy of the Group to only transact with creditworthy entities 1o mitigats the nsk of dsfault associated with trade recevables
The Group provides for trade recenvables based on amounts estimated as irrecoverable determuned by reference to past dafault experience

The directors consider that the camyng amount of trade end other receivables approxmates to therr fair value

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash compnse cash held by the Group and short term bank deposits with an ongnal matunty of three months orless
Tha carrying amount of these assets approximates to ther far value

Treasury deposits
Treasury deposits represent bank deposits with an onginat matunty of over three months

Crodit nsk
Tha Group's prncipal financel assets are bank balances and cash, treasury deposits and trade and other recevabies

Tha credi nsk on liquid funds and denvative financial instruments 15 fened because the counterparties are banks with high credt-ratings
assgned by intemational credn-ratng agencies

Exposure to credit nsk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maxmum credit exposure The maximum exposure to credit nisk at the reporting
date was
2007 2008
$000 3000
Total trade recavables N o 81640 _  B7.,248
Cash and gash equivalents : . 193,311 117,494
Treasury deposts ) . . . 52,085 30,000
Cash flow hedges 696 4,522

327,712 239,282

The maxmmum exposure to credd nsk for total frade recenvables at the reporting date by geographic regron.was

2007 2006

$ 000 S Q00

Eurcpe 13,906 9,810
USA 6,540 7.424
Asa_ _ 60,438 69,753
Other 756 259
) 81,640 87,246

75 CSR plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2007



18 Other financial assets (continued)

Exposure to credit nsk {conbnued)

The Group has no signihcant concentration of credit nsk by type of customer, with exposures spread over a number of counterparties
and customers

Tha Group's mast signdicant customer accounts for $18 4 milkon of trads recevables at 28 December 2007 (2006 $12 6 mifton)

Impairment losses .
The agng of 1otal trade recanvables at the reporting date was

Gross fmparment Groas Impexment
2007 2007 2006 2008
$000 $ 000 $000 5000
Not past dua 79.0T1 (150) 80,578 (150}
Past due 0-30 days 2654 - 4,897 -
Past dus 31-60 days 5 - 1,142 -
Past due 61-90 days - - 337 -
Pastdue 91-120 days - - 118 -
More than 121 days past dua 63 {3} 415 {92)
81,793 {153) 87,488 {242)
The movament i the aliowance for mparment in respect of trade recenvables dunng the penod was as foflows 2006
. So00 $000
Balance at the beginning of tha penod 242 662
Utiised in tha penod 3.211} (797
Addmonal prowsions in the penod 3,122 377
Balance at the end of the penod 153 242

Included In the Group's trada recevables balance are debtors with a camying amount of $2,719,000 (2006 $6.818, 000) which are past due
but tor whuch the Group has net provided, as there has been no signdficant change in the credit quality of the recovables and the amounts are
stil considered recoverable The Group does not hold collateral over these balances

Basad on past expenence, the Group believes that no mparment allowance is nacessary i respact of irada recarvables not past due,
other than for credit notes and price adjustments

19 Denvative financial instruments
Currency denvatives

The Group uttises currency danvatives 1o haedge signdicant futura transactions and cash flows
The mstruments purchased are denomnated m GBP

At the balance sheet date, tha total notional amount of outstancing forward toraign exchange contracts that the Group has commutted
15 &5 below

2007 2008
$000 . $000
Forward foreign exchange contracts 178 628 89,441

These arrangements are desegned to address significant exchange exposures for the next 15 months (2006 12 months}and arerenewedona
roling basis to cover baetween 11 and 15 months forward
At e batance sheet date, the far value of the Group's currency denvatives 1s shown below

Derivatives that are designated and effectve as hedging instruments carned at farr value

2007 2006
$000 $000

Forward foregn exchange contracts — assets . 696 4,522
- habities {1,080) -

{384) 4,522

The tair value of currency denvairves that are designated and effectve as cash flow hedges amounting to a kabdity of $384,000 (2008 assat
$4,522,000} has been deferred n equty

Net amounts of $748,000 (2008 $1.775,000) and $88,000 (2006 $288,000} raspactivaly have been transterred to operating expenses
inthe income statement and to fixed assets mn respect of contracts matured in the penod

Further details of denvative financial mstruments ara gven in note 32
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NOTESTOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Fer the 52weeks ended 28 December 2007
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20 Deferred tax

Fervaue Omer

Aocekerated tex Shara basad aefpestmants ooy
deproazhon paymont 0N ACGRSHON Tox lossas cfferences Towd
$000 $ 000 $ 000 $ 000 5000 $ 000
A1 30 Decernber 2005 (3.990) 21,727 {4,205) 290 4315 18,137
(Charge} credit to mcome 8.517 1,653 618 2,478 386 (1,382
{Charge} credit to equity - (6,004) - 600 - {5.404)
Exchange difterences - - - - {1} {1}
At 20 December 2006 {10,507} 17.378 (3.587) 3,368 4,700 11,350
Credit (charge) to ncome 2,301 2,051 1,741 (1.038) (3.923) 1,134
{Charge} credr to aqurty - {7.840) - 606 206 (7.028)
Acquisition of subsidiary - - (6.948) - - (6,948)
Deaterred tax rate adjustment to mcome 547 - 586 . - (45) 1,088
Defermad tax rate adjusiment to equity - 772 - - {11) 783)
A1 28 December 2007 (7.658) 10,815 {8.208) 2,938 927 {1,187

Certan deferred 1ax assets and atxbires have besn offset whare required as retatng 10 the same taxation authomty The followang s the analyss
ot the defarrad tax balances (after offsat) for financial reporing purposes

2007 2006

$ 000 $000

Defamed tax habdmes {8,208} -
Detlerred tax assets 7,021 11,350
(1.187) 11,350

At the batance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of $175,564,000 (2006 $86, 100,000} avadable ior ofiset against future profits
Adeterred tax asset has been racogrised n respect of $7,793,000 (2006 $9,600,000) of such lossas No deferrad tax asset has besn
racogmsed n raspect of the remaining $167,77 1,000 (2006 $76,500 000} due to tha unpredictabiity of future profit siréams within certam
subsidiary entties included 1n unrecognised tax losses are kisses of $47,818,000 (2006 $356,400,000) that wall expire in 17-19 years
Other josses may be camed forwarg indatintely

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of ter{\porary trmung differences refated to undistnbuted eamings of overseas subsichangs was
$14,754,000 {2006 $7.201,000) No deferred tax lizbisies have been recogriused in respect of these unremitied eammgs becausa the Group
1S In & postion to control the tming of the reversal of these temporary differences and 1 1s probiable that such ditferencas will not reversein the
foreseeable luture '

21 Obhgations under finance leases

Presert velue of
Miamum mererum
lease paymants laasa paymercs

2007 2006 2007 2006
$ 000 $000 $ 000 $'000

Amounts payable under financa leases .
Within one ysar 3,109 3,385 3,108 3.384
In the second 1o fith years inclusva 142 3.234 142 3,233
3.261 6,619 3,250 6,617
Less future finance charges 1 2 - -
Present velua of lease obhgations 3,250 8,617 3,250 6,617
Lass Amaunt due for settiernent within 12 maonths (shawn under curent kabdities) {3,108) (3,384)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 142 3,233

It 1s tha Group's pohcy to lease cartain of its equipment under finance leases and purchase certain software icencas under agreements
containing deferred payment terms  The average lease term s 2 § years Interest rates are fixed at the coniract date, all of the agreements
comamn:ng deferred paymant tarms areinterest free For the penod ended 28 Decernber 2007, the averags atfective borrowing rate was 0 03%
{2006 0 01%) Allleases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arangements have been entered into for contingant rental payments

Laass oblgations with a presaent value of $1,045,000 (2006 $2.,947.000) ara denomnated in Stering All other legse obigations are
dencmmated m US Dollars

The tar value of the Group's lease obligatons epproximates their carryng amount
The Group’'s obbgatons under finance leases are secured by the lessors” nght over the leased assets
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22 Other financual iabiities

Trade and other payables
2007 2006
$ 000 $ 000
Trade payables 62,681 34,538
Other taxation and social secunty 2,923 2,377
Cther payables 3778 4,232
Accruals and deferred mcoma 23,0594 23.654
93,376 64,801

Trade crecitors and accruals pancipally compnse amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongong costs
The average crecht penod taken for trade purchasas 1s 54 days {20068 57 days)

The diractors consider that the carmying amount of trade and ather payables approximates therr fair valua

For most suppliers, no nierest 1s charged on trade payables The Group has financial nsk management policres in place fo ensure that
all payables are pard wathm the cracht tme frame

tnchuded within other payables is $2,065,000 which relate (o loan notes issued to the sharsholders of Cambrxdge Positorung Systems Limited
as part of the congsidaration for the company on acquisition The locan notes ame dencmmated in US dotars

23 Contingent consideration
2007 2006
5000 5000
Amounts payabls within one year 25,988 -

The contingent cons:deration rafates 1o mdestona payments for the acquistion of NordNav Technologes AB (note 27)
The consideration s due to ba settled in two instalments which wilt be payable by 28 December 2008 if cartain milesione cniena are met
The contingant considaration 15 discountad at a rata of 6 15% reflecting the expected bommowmng rate tor a simiar loan instrumant

24 Provisions
Retums ang
Qnarous loase wraranty
Provisicn DrOvEIOn Totd
5000 5000 $000
Al 30 Decermber 2006 ] - 4,100 4,100
On acquistion of subsidiary 546 - 546
Addtional provesion m the panod . . 178 176 354
Released n the penod o - (1.756) (1.756)
Uthsed in the penod 1450) (380) (830)
Al 28 Decambar 2007 274 2,140 2414
Onerous lease provision

The Group has providad for the discounted anticipatad casts of sansng the terms of any onerous laasss, less any anlicipated ncome
from sublstting the buldings 11 18 anticipated that the provision will be used over the remaining lease lerms (B years)

Retumns and warranty prowvision
The Group provides for the anticipated costs associated with retums under standard warranty terms {tis anticypated that the prowision wall
be usad over two years

25 Called-up share capital

Company
Authonsed share capital
2007 2008
£ £ 000
185,000,000 Ordinary Shares of £0 001 each — equaty 185 185
Allotted, called-up and fully pard
207 2008
$000 $ 000
132,073,576 (2006 130,206,208) Qrcinary Shares of 00 001 each — equity 236 232
Changes to share capstal
Equity shares

1,867 368 Crdinary Shares wereg tssued from empioyee ophon axercises batween 30 December 2006 and 28 December 2007
Conswigraton was $5,818,708, at a pramum of $5,814,996

The Company has one dlass of orcinary shares which camry no aght 1o fixed income

Thera are 7.500 deferred shares of £0 001 each These shares have no nghts
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NOTESTO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS Forthe 52weeks enced 28 December 2007
Continved .

25 Called-up share capral (continued)

Tha followang options and share awards over Ordnary Shares of £0 001 have been granted and were outstanding at the end of the year

Number of shaves subyedt to Exprase pnco
Crant dats optonor shar award por share © Vestng penod
1 Apnl 1999 17,256 000333 5 years
1 September 1939 to 25 November 1999 ' 619,880 005367 Syears
9 February 2000 . 43,450 015633 Syears
21 February 2000 10 16 October 2000 500,461 050333 Syaars
30 October 2000 to 8 Jdy 2002 L 544,760 2138500 5years
30 September 2002 to 10 Novernber 2003 390,511 101000 Syears
18 November 2003 to 2 February 2004 ; } 319,607 102500 Syears
26 February 2004 o . . _ N 469,695 235000 3years
%6 February 2004 L 126,542 235000 3 yearst
26February2004 . . 171,100 2 00000 3years
286 February 2004 386,043 2 00000 3years?
30June2004 = | . o ’ 15,000 4 02000 3years?
30 September 2004 _ ) 20,884 289400 3years?!
30 September 2004 o o i i 20,000 3 62500 3 years?
19 March 2005 83,025 3 06000 3yoars?
& May 2005 i ’ 415,950 321000 3 years®
5 May 2005 203,500 000100 3years
5 May 2005 289,150 000100 3years'
1 November 2005 243,746 4 52870 3years?
15 December 2005 15,008 000100 3years'
15 Decsmber 2005 3 30,000 000100 Syears
15 December 2005 30,076 883000 3years?
1 March 2006 40,415 000100 3years'
1March 2008 _ . . . N _ 457118 905000 Jyears
TMarch 2006 ) X ol 57.558 9 9000 3years?
31March2006  _ . _ _ ... . .. . 41,009 781070 3years®
3May2006 _ o I . _ . 13 12 9200 3years
25May2008 ) L 246,630 12 4100 3years®
25May2006 . _ . i ) L . 483,100 000100 3years'
25May2006 | A . _ 591,520 124100 & years
25May 2006 N o - . 65,650 000100 3years
2 August 2006 29,079 11 Q967 §years
1 Novamber 2006 8,344 9 09800 3years®
15 Novernber 2006 124,872 6 27000 Syears
28 February 2007 62,466 7 68000 Syears
28 Fetwuary 2007 47,680 000100 Iyears!
28 February 2007 BT ATT 7 68000 Jyears?
28 March 2007 264,492 5 84800 Jyears?
9 May 2007 . : 66,404 757000 Syears
S5Juna2007 | . o L 186938 000100 Syears’
5June 2007 _ . ) . . . 470,876 7 86000 3years?
SJdune2007 i oL } ) 119,710 000100 Syears
1August 2007 _ . . i oL 7539 729000 Syears
14 Navember 2007 . i ) . 186,190 6 44500 _ 3years?
14 Novemnber 2007 ) i 117,712 644500 5 yoars
14 November 2007 . A 93,603 000100 3years'
14 Novernber 2007 . . 25,000 0 00100 3years
10 Dacember 2007 210407 515600 Jysars?
8,726,947

1 Thase opbons hava vasting condrons based on the Company § porformance sgasnst comparalor COMpanes based on TSA renkangs over the vesting penod

2 These opbans have wsung condibons based on EPS growth over the vesang penod
3 Thase opnons have been wsued a3 part of the Company & SAYE scheme

Exarcse penod Vested options and share awards are exarcisabla within ten years from the granit dats, SAYE gptions are exercasable within

s months of the vesting date
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26 Reserves

Share Captal Share-basad
prameum  radernpton Memer Treamxy Hadgng payment Tew Rotanoc
sacount reservg nesave sharas fasarve [ r reserva SaATIgS Total
$ 000 $000 S0 $ 000 $000 $000 $000 § 000 $ 000

At 31 Dacember 2005 81,161 850 61,574 - (3,116) 3,167 35,749 97324 278,809
Sharsissues 2,850 - ~ - - - - - 2,850
Share-based payment - - - - - 7,838 - - 7,838
Deterred tax benatit on share
oploNn gans - - - - - - (5.404) - (5,404}
Currert tax bensfit takan diractly
to equity - - - - - - 8,188 - 8,188
Current tax on hedging reserve - - - - - - (1,886} - (1,886}
Gain on cash flow hedges - - - - 8,350 - - - 8,350
Transferred to ncome statementin
respect of cash fiow hedges - - - - {2,063 - - - (2,063)
Retained profit for the year - - - - - - - 1,387 111,197
A129 December 2006 B4,111 850 61,574 — 3,171 11,003 38647 208521 405,977
Shareissues 5815 - - - - - - - 5815
Share-based payment - - - - - 9,275 - - 9,275
Defarred tax benefit on share
option gans - - - - - - (7.234) - (7.234)
Current tax benefit taken
directly to equity - - - - - - 5511 - 5511
Purchase of own sharas - - - {20,025) - - - - (20.025)
Current tax on hedging reserve - - - - - - 51 - 951
Detarred tax on hedging reserve - - - - - - 206 - 206
Eftective tax rate adjustment -~ - - - - - (783} - {783}
Loss on cash flow hegges - - - - {4,9086) - - - {4,906}
Transferred 10 meomse statement
in respect of cash flow hedges - - - - B35 - - - 836
Retamned profit for the year - - — - - - - 112804 112,804
At 28 December 2007 89,926 950 61,574  (20,025) (899) 20,278 35298 321326 508,427

“Note A tax reserve has been ncludad 1o show movements in equity caused by tax adjustments This was previously Included
in the hedging reserve and retaned samings, and these balances hava been restated for 2006 10 aid comparabilty

The share premium account, caprtal redemption resarve and the hedging reserve, are not distributable The marger resarve arose
on the combination of SR pic and Cambridge Silcon Radio Limited and 15 not distnbutable

Treasury shares rapresent the cost of shares i CSR pic purchased in the market and hatd by the CSR pic Employee Benefd Trust to saugly
options under the Graup's share option schemas On 3 May 2007, the CSR Emplgyea Banetit Trust purchased 334,890 ordinary shares af
an averags pnce of £7 41 per share Between 6 June 2007 and 7 June 2007, the CSR Employee Bensfit Trust purchasad 336,425 ordinary
shares at an average pnce of £7 38 pershare Between 26 September 2007 and 28 September 2007, the CSR Employee Benefit Trust
purchassd 795,452 ordinary sharss at an average prce of £6 24 per share

The shares acquired by the Trust do not represent Treasury shares for the purposes of the Comparses Act and therefore rematn as rssued
share capital For accounting purposes, the treatment of the shares acquinad by the Trust is different in prepaning the consolidated CSR plc
Group accounts, the shares held by the Trust are treated as a deduction in shareholders' equity m accordance with SIC12 'Consolidation
of special purpose entilies’

CS5R plc Annual Report 2nd Financal Statements 2007 61




NOTES TOTHE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the 52weeks ended 28 Decernber 2007

Continued

27 Acquisttion of subsidianes
Cambrndge Positioning Systems Limited

Or. 12 January 2007, CSR pic acquired 100% of the :ssued share capiial of Cambridge Posmtioning Systerns Limited for a consideration

of $35 0 rmulion
Frrvalus
Bock vaue adysstments For vy
5000 $00 $000
Nett assets acquired {5,249) (219} {5.468)
Property, plant and equipment . 345 {125} 220
Intangble assets - 9,900 9,500
Deferrad tax adjustment on far valug adustments - (2.868) (2,868}
(4.904) 6.688 1,784

Googwll 28,810
Total consideration 30,594
Satished by _
Cash and cash equivalents 27,318
Loannotes ) . 2.214
Orrectly attnbutable costs 1,062

30,594
Net cash outflow ansing on acquistion
Cash considaration (27,318}
Working capital adiustment (219
Repayment of Cambndga Positioning Systems Limiuted loans on acquesition (5,468)
Cash and cash equnvalents acquired ’ 256
Partal repayment of loan notes (148)
Directly atinbutable costs {1,062)

(33,959

The goodwall ansing on the acquisiion of Cambndga Posmioning Systems Limaad 1s attnbutable to the antcpated profitability resuttng
frorn Cambridge Positioring Systermn Limited's specialised GPS location system technology

Cambndge Positioning Systems Limited contnbuted $488,000 to revenues and reduced the Group's prohi befors tax by $1.625,000
between the date of acquisttion and the balance sheet date

1 the acquesition of Cambridge Posttioning Systems Limited had been completed on the first day of the financial penod, Group revenues
for the panod would hava been $848,631,000 and Group probt attrbutable 1o equity helders of the parent would have been $111,668,000

NorcdNav Technologies AB

On 12 January 2007, CSR plc acquired 100% of the issued share capdal of NordNav Technologias AB for a cash consideration of $40 0 mullon

and contingent consideration of $35 0 million

Faw vaua
Book valm adpstments Farvahe
$000 $000 S0
Net assets acqured {116) - {116)
Property, plant and equipment e - 116
Intangiole assets - 13,600 13,600
Deforrad tax atjustment on mtangible assets - {4,080) {4.080)
- 9,520 9,520
Goodwil 63,724
Total consideration 73,244
Satsfied by A
Cash and cash equratents . 40,000
Directly attinbutable costs 983
Contingent conaidaration {discountad) 32,261
73,244
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration {40,000)
Wortang capital adjustiments (164)
Deferred consideraltion {7.875)
Dwactiy attnb:tabis costs (983
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 1,035
{47 987}
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27 Acquisthion of subsidianes (continued)

NordNav Technologies AB {continued)

The goodwill ansing on the acquisiion of NordMav Technologies AB is attributable to the antcpated profitabiity resutting from NordNav
Technologios AB's software-based GPS soluton

NordNav Technologies AS contnibuted $191,000 to revenuos and reduced the Group's profit before tax by $2,330,000 between the date
of acguisition and the balance sheet date

H the acquistion of NordNav Technologies AB had been completed on the first day of the tinancial penod, Group revenues tor the penod
would have been $848,625,000 and Group prolit aftnbulable to equity holders of the parent would have been $11 2,355,000

28 Notes to the cash flow statement

2007 2006
£000 $000
Operatmg profit from continumg operations 150,098 148,995
Adjustrments for .
Ceprecation of property, plant and equipmant . 17.427 11,183
Amortisation of mtangible asssts 17,038 8,481
Deferred tax transter to goodwil 279 745
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 75 3
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 93 24
Share-based paymen expanse 9,278 7.836
{Decreasa) mcrease in provisions {1,814) 172
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 192,469 177,439
Decreass {increase) In mvantones 29,318 {36,798)
Decrease (ncrease} in recevables 8,173 (28,684)
Increase {decrease) n payables 22,394 (28,478}
Cash generated by operations 252,355 83,479
Foreign taxes pad : N (L7 {312
Comoration {axes paid . (28,702 (17,481)
Interest paid {358) (207}
Net cash frem operating activities 222,178 65,499

Additions to software licences duning the year amounting 10 $2,260,000 were purchased under staged payment plans

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a smgla class of asset on the face of the balance sheet) compnse cash at bank
and other short tarm highly hquid investments with a matunty of three months or less

29 Operating lease amrangements

2007 2008
$ D00 $000
Miumum fease payments under operating leases recogrised as an expense in the penod 6,855 4,662

Al the balance sheet date, tha Group had outstanding commuments for future minmum lsase payments urkier non-canceliable operaing
leases. which (a8 due as follows

2007 2006
som $000

Withn ane year . 6924 5801
In the second to fitth years inclusve _ 16,590 16,578
Alter five years 4,180 4,799
27604 26278

Opsrating lsase payments represent rerals payabie by the Groug for certan of 1s office properties and office equipment
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 3 67 years and rentals are twed for an average of 3 67 years

30 Share-based payments
CSR pic has grants and awards in the foliowing Share Schemes which result n charges to the Income Statement

Global share opton scheme

The Company has a share option schema for all employaes of the Group, under whuch share options were issued prior to flotaton, at a pnce
based on the mast recent prvate funding round Al ampioyees were granied options on jomning CSR These opbions have avesting penod ot
five years, with 20% of options vesting ona year after grant. then the remamder vestnig in equal quartedy cnstalments over the remarrung four
years Oiher optons n additon to thoss related to employees josvng) were also granied under this scheme In all cases  the options reman
unexercised after a penod of ten years from tha date of grant, the options lapse Options are forfeed if the employes leaves the Group before
the options vest No grants have been made under thes scheme since fiotation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Forthe 52 weeks ended 28 December 2007
Continued

30 Share-based payments (continued)

Company Share Option Plan (CSOP)

The Company ntroduced a naw scheme at fiotation caled the CSR pic Share Option Plan The followng grants have been made under
the schame

Flotation grant

On the Company's flotation n Febnsary 2004, the Company issued share opbions 10 ell employees, at a pace based on the share pnce

on tha day of fictaton The vesting penod s three years: | the options remam unexercesed after a pancd of ten years from the date of grant,
the options lapse Options are torfated ¢ the empioyee leaves the Group bekorg the options vest

Performance grants

On the Company’s flatation m February 2004, and inMay 2005, May 2006, May 2007 and certain other dates (relating to employees
jarung) the Company tssued sharg options at a pnce basad on the average share pnoe over the precedng three days The vesting penod
of these grants s three years and vesting 1s dependent upan meeting certan EPS based performance concitions If the options raman
unaxarcisad afier a penod of ten years from the date of grant, the options tapse Options are torfeded f the employae leavas the Group
balora the options vest

Starter Grants

Tha Company granits options to new starters to assist in recrutment Options are exercisable at a price equal to the average share pnce
onthe threa days preceding the grant date The vesuing penod of the options is over a penod of tve years with 40% vesting eher two years
and 5% vesting each quarter theraatter IF the ophons remain unexercised after a penod of ten years from the date of grant, the aptions
lapse Grants are torlered f the employes leaves the Group before the opions vest The Company has also issued to starter grants to
sentor employess that vest after three years

CSR Share Award Plan

In May 2005, follewing approval of shargholders at the 2005 Annual General Meating, the Company mntroduced the CSR ple Share Award Plan,
which allows for ophons to be granted for exercise at a future date at a price equvalent (o the nominal value ofthe Company's sharas

of£0 001 Thefollowng awards have been made

Retention Awards

The Company 1ssues employees with nghts to purchasa shares at norminal value (€0 001) as a method of staff ratention The vesting penod
of thesa share awards 1s three years I the share awards remain unexercised after a penod of ten years from the date of grant, the awards
lapse Awards ars foderted if the employes ieaves the Group befare the options vast

Parformance Awards

The Company issues senor employaes with nghts to purchase shares at nomnal value (£0 001) as a method of staff ncentrwsation

The vesting penod of these share awards 19 three years The vesting of the awards is also subject to the Group satisfying two performance
conditions The frst 1s tha Total Sharsholder Return of the Company's shares whan compared to a group of companias selected at the
time an award 1s first granted The second 1$ improvament in the underdying tinancial periormance of the Group In order forthe ghares

10 vest, the Group must have met or exceeded cartain TSR thrasholds when compared with the TSR perlormance of the group of other
companies In tha event the Group salishes any one of the TSR thresholds, the Remuneration Commuttes then considers the extant of any
improvement in the undarbying tnancial parformance of the Group

SAYE Schemes

The Company operates a SAYE scheme, whareby employees are aliowed to subscnbe toa monthly savungs amount for a penod of three
years, at the end of the three year pendd, the employea is allowed to edher receva therr saved amount plus interest or purchase sharesin the
Company at a pnca based on the average share pnce on the three days poor to commencement of the SAYE schems, discounted by 20%
Trus scheme s.open to all smployees subjact to infand Revenue approvad lmis on total mvestment, and invitations are tssued at reguiar
intarvals Employees have a penod of six months followng the conclusion of the scheme to exercise ther optionto purchase sharas

Share options outstanding
Details of the share options outstanding dunng the year are as follows
2007 2008

Waightad Woghted
[0 Va0
Mumbar of SUOCTSE- PN Numbor of axCsE PO
share opbens inD shang opbors inD
Quistanding at begrnng of penod 9,225,832 2496 9,660,051 142
Granted dunng the penod ) 2,260,514 520 2,142,862 755
Forferted dunng the penod _ (892.031) 121 (250,028) _ 051
Exercised dunryy the penod {1,867,368) 186 (2.327,053) Q70
Outstanding at the end of the penod 8,726,947 362 9,226,832 206
Exercisabla at the end ol the penod 3,579,373 138 2,964,894 088

The weighted average share price at the date of exeraise for share optons exercised dunng tha penod was £8 63 The options outstanding

at 28 December 2007 had a weighted avarage exercise price of £3 62, and a waighted average remaning contractual ife of 7 years In 2007,
options wera granted on 28 February, 28 March, 9 May, 5 June, 1 August, 14 November and 10 December The aggregate estmated far
value of the options granted on thase dates s $10,567,000 The weaghted average far value of thess optons was $5 25 iIn 2006, options were
granted on 1 March 31 March, 3 May, 25 May, 1.June. 2 August, 1 September, 1 November and 15 November Tha aggregate estimated far
valus of the options granted on those dates 1s $22,296,000 The waighted avarage far value of these options was $10 40
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30 Share-based payments {continued)
The tarr vatues of the share option and share award grants were based on the following inputs

SAYE Schemes
The inputs to the Black-Scholes modet are as follows

2007 2009
Waighted average share pnce (£) * 640-589 785-1200
Weighted average exercise pnoe (€} 6584-516 781-909
Expected volatiity 50%-51% 44%-51%
Expected Wfe ) . Syears Sysars
Risk free rate 493%-472%  436%-454%
BExpected dwdends ' i i . 0% 0%

Expected volatiity was determined by caiculating tha hustoncal volabity of the Group's share price over a three year penod, equivalent to the
vesting penod of the options The expectad ke used in the mode! has been adjusted based on rmanagement’s best esumats, for the eftects
of non-transferability, exercise restnctions and pehavioural considerations

Company Share Option Plan (CSOP)
The inputs to the Black-Scholes model are as tollows

2007 2006
Waighted average share price (€) Lo ) 516-765 1041-1473
Weighted average exeraise prce (€) 845-786 999-1379
Expected volatility 49% -51% A44% - AB%
Expactad Ifo 3-dvyears 3-4years
Risk freg rate 424%-540% 417%-452%
Expectad dwvidends 0% 0%

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histonical volatility of the Giroup's share pnce over a tme penod aquivalent to the
vesting penod of the options The expected e usex in the made! has been adjusted based on management's best estimate, for the effects
of non-transterabiity, exercise restnctions and behawoural considerations The adjustments for the performance conditions are reflected

1n the proporion of options anticipated 10 vest

Starter Grants
The nputs to the Black-Scholes model are as folows

2007 2008
Waighted average shara price (£ } . . : 616-7 60 685-1413
Waeightexd average exercisa pca () . R } _ 645-767 _ 827-1292
Expected volatdity e el ) L - _53%-54% 44%-54%
Expectad bfa 3-Syears 3~-Svyears
Risk free rate 480%-525% 417%-460%
Expected dwidends 0% 0%

Expected volatity was determined by calculating the histoncal voiatilty of the Group's share pnca over a time panod equivalent ta the
vesting penod of the options The expacted bfe used in the model has been adjusted based on management's best estimate, for the effocts
of non-transterability, exercise restnctions and behanoural considerations

Retention award
The farr valua was based upon the share pnco on the date of grant

Performance Awards
The tarr value was based upon Monte-Carlo smulation of the performanca of the 39 comparator companies included m the TSR condttions
of the award

Expected volatiity tor each company was determined by calculating the histoncal volatiity of the indwidual company's share pnice over
the three years from the date of grant

Share option charges
The Group recognised total expensas of $3,275,000 (2006 $7,836,000) retated to equity-settied share-based payment transactions

31 Retrement benefits schome
The Group operates a defined contnbution retremant benefit scheme for all qualifying employses
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees

The total cost charged to ncome of $5,935,000 (2006 $4,347,000) represents contrbutions payabla to this scheme by the Group at rates

specrfied n the rules of the plan As at 28 December 2007, contributions of $ril (2006 $894 000) due In respect of the current reporting pencd
had not been pard over to the schems
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the 52weeks ended 28 December 2007
Continued

32 Financial instruments
Financial nsk management
The Group has exposuré to the tollowing nsks from its use of fimancial nstruments

» Crodi nsk
« Markel fisk

* Liquichty nsk

Thes note presents infonmation about the Group's exposure 10 each of the above nsks, the Group's objactives, policies and processes
kor measunng arxd managing nsk, and the Group's management of capital Further quanttatve disclosures are includad throughout thesa
consehdated financial staternants

The Board of Dwectors has overall responsibiitty for tha estabhishment and oversight of the Group's nsk managsment framework
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regulary 1o reflact changas m markat conditions and the Group's actmties

The Group Audrt Committes oversees haw management monitors complance with the Group's nsk management framework In relation
to the nsks taced by the Group ‘

Capstal nsk management

The Group's policy 1 te maintan a strong capital base S0 as 10 maintain rvestor, creditor and market confidence and 10 sustain huiure
development of tha business CSR ntends to remvest its cash balances in the busness aithar through higher levels ol Kvestmant 6 workang
capital and fixed assats or through further M3A activity 10 suppon the long-term ambntions of the Group The capital structure of the Group
consists of cash and cash equivalents, treasury deposits and equity artnbutabla to the equity holders of CSR pic, compnsing issued share
capital, reservas and retained eamngs as disclosed in notes 25and 26

Tha Group 1S not subyect to any externally imposed caprtal requirements

As a rasult of the furxis rassad through the nitial pubhc offenng n March 2004 and tha subsaquent positive operating cash flows, the Group
has a total of $245 4 mion of treasury deposts and cash and cash equivalents at 28 Dacember 2007 (2008 $147 5 mullion}

Signihicant accounting policias

Detais of the signdicant accounting pokcias and methods adopted, mcluding the critana for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basis on which ncome and expensas are recognised, in respect of each class of hinanciat asset, financial kabiny and equity nstrument aro
disclosed n note 3 {0 the financial statements

Categortes of financial instruments

Cammgvae
2007 2000
$000 SO0
Financial assets
Loans and recevables (incudng cash and cash squivalents and traasury deposis) 333,966 244,158
Dervatva instruments n ¢esignatad hedge accountng relatonships 696 4,522

334,662 248,690

Finangial habiles

Denvative Instruments i designated hedge accounting relalonships (1.080) -
Amortised cost {113,731} (59,804)

(114,811} {59.804)
Market nsk

* Market nsk 15 the ek that changes m market pnces, such as toregn cumency exchange rates and ntenast rate nsk will affact the Group's
income or the valua of its hokdngs of knancial mstruments The objectve of market nsk management 1S 10 manage and control market nsk
exposures within acceptable paramaters, whie optinusing the retumon nsk

Foreign currency nsk management

Substantially a of the Group's sates and cosis of sales are denominated in US dotlars, tha Group's functional cumency Amayorty of .

tha Group's fixed costs are denaminated i Stering Ths exposure 10 different currencies would resuit in Gans of lossas with respect to
movements in foreign exchange rales and the mpact of such fluctuations could be matenal Accordmgly, the Group enters into hedging
transactons pursuant 1o which it purchases Stertng under forward purchase contracts i ordar 1o Gover the majonty of s Sterling exposure
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32 Financial instruments (continued)

Market nisk (continued]

Foreign currency risk management {continued)

The camying amounts of the Group's Sterling denommated monetary 855613 and kabfties at the reponing date are as follows

Letxioes Assets
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £ 000 £00 £.000
GBP Sierting (9,051) (8,529) 7,689 3,362
The following sigrficant exchange rates appled dunng tha penod
‘Waghted avarage forward
contract rtn '
{contracts matunng in the panod) Penod end spot rate
US Dollars 2007 20 2007 2006
cBP 18877 18026 19905 19588

Foreign currency sensttivity analysis
The sensitmty analys's balow has bean determined based on the exposure ta fareign currency movements for both denvative and
non-denvatve instrurments at the balance sheet date

A 10% strengthening of the LS dolfar against GBP starlng would hava decraased equity and profit after tax by the amounts shown below

as at the reporting date shown In management's opwion, this s a reasonably possible charge gven current market conditions This analysis
assurnes that all othar vanables, m particiiar interest rates ang gther foreign currencies, reman constamt The analysis 1 performed on the
same bass for 2006

Equrty Profl orloss.

28 Docember 2007 5000 S 000
GBP (10.919) (1.052)
Equty Froft oc loss

29 Decamber 2006 5000 $000
GBP {4,687) 281

A 10% weakenng of the US dolar against GBP sterkng would have had the equalbut opposite effect, on the basts that all the other vanabies
remain constant

The movement mn profit for the penod 1S meunly atinbutable to the Group’s exposure 10 exchange movements In stering denommated moastary
assers and kabdiies

The movernent n equity«s mainly as a resuit of the changes in faur value of forward foreign exchange contracts

Forward toreign exchange contracts
The tollowang table indicatas the penods in which tha cash flows assocated with denvatves that ara cash tiow hedges are expected to ocour

Expectod

Cash flow hedges Carmyg Amount cashfows  3months or leas 3 Smonths 6-12 monthas_ MOra then ons yeer
2007

Forward focangn exchangs contracts $'000 (384) 178,628 35,853 35,636 71,568 35,571
Forward foraign exchange contrects £'000 90,090 18,090 18,000 36,000 18,000
2006 )

Forward foreign exchange contracts 4,522 89,441 21877 22,063 45701 -
Forward foregn exchange contracts £'000 48,000 12,000 12,000 24,000 -

The Drectors consider tha pencds n which the cash flows associated with the denvatives that ara cash flow hedges are expectad 16 ocour
approemate the penods when the cash fows assocated with thosa cash tiows are likely toimpact proft orloss

Interest rate nsk management

The Group has no significant drect exposure to fluctuatons in mterest rates other than those oninterest-beanng cash balances
The majonty of cash batances are held at fixed rates of nierest and the effecive rate of intgrast on thosa cash balancas i the penod
was 5 16% {20068 5 00%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS For the S2weeks ended 28 December 2007
Continued

32 Financial tnstruments (continued)

Croditnsk

Credn nsk management

Credit nsk refers to tha nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resultngn financial loss to the Group The Group has
adopted a policy of onty deatng with creditworthy counarparties as a means of mitigating the nsk of tnancial loss from defaults The Group only
transacts with entitas that are rated the equivalent of nvestment grade and above This miormation s suppied by ndepandent rating agenaes
whare avallable and if not available, the Group uses other publicly avatable financial iormation and ds own frading records to rate its major
customers The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of 115 counterpariies are continuously monftored and credit exposure 1§ controlied by
counterparty hmirts

The credit nsk on iquid funds and denvative financial nstruments 15 hmted because counterparties are banks with fugh credat ratings assigned
by intemational credit rating agencies

For cash and cash equvalents and treasury deposis, the Company only iransacts with entities that are equivalent to Investment grade and
abova and Group treasury policy dictates that less than 20% of the total balance on ¢ash and cash equivalents and treasury daposits will be
deposttad with counterpartes who have a Moody's credit rating of less than Aal

Discigsures related to the credit nsk assocated with trade recevablas are n note 18

Liquidity nsk

Liquidity nsk management

Tha Group manages liquidity sk by mantaring adequate cash reserves and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the matunty of financial assets and kabiibes The Group has no signicant borowings from third parties and therefore hquithiy nsk
15 Not considared a sigrukicant nsk at this tme

The tollowing tables detad the Group's remaining contractua! matunty for 1S non denvative tinancial kabities The 1ables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financiat labiities based on the earliest data on wich the Group can be required to pay The tabie
includes both interest and prncipal cash flows The contractual matunty of denvative financial nstruments 1s considared in tha ‘Forward foraign
axchanga contracts’ section on page 87

2007 Less than ong More than
morkh 1-2 months 2 Imonths 3 Gmonthe & months Tota!
§000 3000 $ 000 $000 $000 $ 000
Qbigations under finance leases | -. 13 - 1,266 1,864 3.251
Contingent consideration (note 23) - 9,625 - - 17,500 27.125
Unsecured loan notes 1ssued on acquisiion - 1,865 - 257 - 2,122
Other payables . 6 ’ - 1,239 - 424 1,689
Onerous lease provision - - - - 545 545
3] 11,621 1,239 1,913 20,333 34,712

2006 Lass thancna T momethan
month 1 2 monttys 2-3months 3 8mondhs Gmonhs o
$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 $'000 5000 $000
Obigayons under finance lbases - - - 1,673 4,946 6,619

Other payables B74 - 3,144 - 214 4,232

874 - 3,144 1,673 5,160 10,851

Farr vaiue of financial mstruments
The tarr valuas of financial assets and kabdities are determined as follows

Trade racenvables and trade payables The carrying amount of these shori-term financial mstruments approximates ther fair valua

Denvatives The farr value 1s estimated by discounting the ditference between the contractual forward pnce and the current forward pnca for
the resdual matunty of the contract and discourtied back to the balance sheet date using an appropnate discoun! rate

The camyng amounts of financral agsets and habiiigs i the financial statements approximatas ther tair values
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33 Related party transactions

Transactions batween the Company and its subsichanes, wduch ara related parties, have been eimmated on consoldation and are not
chsclosed in this note Transactions batween the Company and its subsichanas are disclosed n the Comparty only financial siaternents

innote 46

Remunerat:on of key management personnel

The remunaration of the directors, who are the kay management personinel of the Group. 15 set out below in aggregate for each of the
calegones spacibed n LAS 24 Refated Party Disdoswres  Further mformation abourt the remuneration of indnadual directors s prowded

n tha audited part of the Directors’ Ramuneration Report on pages 54 10 56

2007 2006

$ 000 $ 000

Short-term employes benefits 2,976 3338
Post-smployment benehts 168 s
Other jong-term benefits 299 -
Termination banefits . 89 -
Share-based payment 67 1,780
4,499 5,438

By way of compensaton for the termination of his employment, it was agreed that John Scansback wotid receve a lump sum payment,

deferred untd 2 July 2008 of £360, 100 and $245,000

Dunng 2007, an escrow paymant of $11,158 was made to John Scansback in relation to the 2005 acquisitions of UbiNetics (VPT) Limited

On 12 January 2007, the Company pad John Scansbnck $49,477 for 2,388,188 E shares 11 Cambndge Posnioring Systarns Limited as part

of the acquisition of Cambndge Positioning Systems Limited

Dunng the penod, the Company receved $16,127 rom Sonaptic Limited, a company of which Glenn Collison was a director dunng the period,

for hus sarvices to the company

COMPANYSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY For the 52 weeks ended 28 December 2007

Naws 2007 2006

$000 $ 000

At beginning of penod _ 97,230 86,445
{Loss}/ profit for the penod (7.637} g5
issua of share capital 25 5818 2,954
Share-based payments 9,275 7.836
At end of penod 104,767 97,330
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET 28 December 2007

Notes 28 Decarnber 2007 20 0oecember 2003

3 000 $ 000
Non-current assets
Subsidhanes 39 174,555 61,314
Current assets
Cther racavables 40 20,313 388
Treasury deposts 40 52,0685 30,000
Cash and cash equvalents 40 85,000 65,000
157,378 95,388
Total assots 331,833 158,702
Current habilibes N . _
Trade and other payables .. e 41 201,158 §9,372
Contingent consideration 42 25,988 -
227,146 509,372
Net current (labilities) assets {69.768) 38,016
Net assots 104,787 97,330
Equity
Share captal 25 236 232
Shara pramium account 26 80,926 84,111
Capital redemnption reserve 26 950 950
Share-based payment reserve 20 20.278 11,003
Retamect earmings 43 (6,603) 1,034
Tetal equity 104,787 97,330
Thase financral statements were approved by the Board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 27 Fabruary 2008
They were signed on is behali by
NGy PRetk eredas
Paul Goodndge Ron Magkantosh
27 February 2008 27 February 2008
COMPANY CASH FLOWSTATEMENT For the 52weeks ended 28 December 2007
Motes 2007 2006
$ 000 S0
Net cash from operating activiies 44 111,611 22,497
Investing activities
Interest reconad . o _ 4,454 3,798
Purchasa of trgasury deposis {22,065) (5,000)
Acguisriion of subsichanes {81,846) -
Net cash used in nvesting activities {99.557) {1,201}
Financing actrvities -
Proceads onssue of share caprtal 5,824 2,959
Net cash from financing activitios 5,824 2,959
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 17,878 24,255
Cash and cash equivalents at beginnmg of penod 65,000 40,716
Eftect of toregn exchange rate changas 2,122 29
Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 85,000 65.000

90 CSR plc Anrvual Report and Financat Statemenis 2007



NOTES TQ THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the 52weeks ended 28 Decernber 2007

34 Significant accounting polictes

The separate financial statemants of the Company are presented as requrad by the Companes Act 1985 As permitted by that Act,
the separats financial statements have been prapared in accordance with Internatonal Financial Reporting Standards

The financ:al statements have been prepared on the hustoncal cost basis The prncipal accounting pohcies adopted are the same as those

set out i nota 3 10 tha consolidated tinancial statements

35 {Loss) profit attnbutable to CSR plc

Tha loss for the financ:al year dealt with in the financial statements of the parant Company, CSR ple, was $7,637,000 (2008 proft $95,000)

As permitied by s230 of the Compames Act 1985, no separate ncome statement is presentad in respect of the parent Company

(Loss) profit i3 stated after charging (craditing)

2007 2008
$ 00D $'000
Ns! Ioreign exchange 1oss (gain) 3m (373}
Autitors’ remuneration for audit senaces 82 85
The Company had 1 employes dunng 2007 {2006 1) .
The drectors’ ramuneration in both years was bome by Cambndge Siicon Radio Urmuted Detads of the directors’ remuneration 1S given
onpages47 to 57
38 Investment incomea
2007 2006
$000 $ 000
Incoma from bank deposits 4,503 3.895
37 Finance costs
2007 2008
$000 $ 000
Interest payabia on acquisition [oan notes 100 -
Urvwinding of discount on defermed consideration 1,802 -
Intarest on ntercompany balance _ 6,749 -
Forexgn exchange gains 2.122) 29)
6,329 29
38 Taxation
2007 2003
$ 000 $000
Total tax charge - -
Caorporation tax is cakculated at 309% (2006 309%) of the estimated assessabla profit for the year
The charge for the year can be reconaled to {oss) profd as follows
2007 2007 2006 2008
$ 000 % $ 000 %
(Loss) profit before tax {7.637) 1000 95 1000
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2006 30%) {2,291} {300) 29 300
Group rekef surrendered (clammed) to (from) other group comparies for i consideration 2,291 300 (29}

Tax expense and effective tax rate for the penod -

300
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Forthe 52weeks ended 28 December 2007

Continued
39 Subsidianes
Detats of the Company’'s subsidiarias at 28 December 2007 are as folows
Placaof Proporson of Propormonof
NOONpOratan ownirshp volng Mathod used
{txr rogstratony et o hold 10 acoourt for
Name and cparhon % % wwostmont
Direct ownership
Carnbndge Stican Racko Limded ) UK 100 100  Acquston
UbiNetics VPT Limsted UK 100 100 Acquisition
Cambndga Positioning Systems Limited UK 100 100 Acqusdion
NorgNav Technalogies Aktiebolag Sweden 100 100 Acquistion
Indirect ownershp
Cambndge Sticon Radio Inc LsSA 100 100 Acquistion
CSR China (Shanghai} Co Limited _ China 100 100 Acqustion
CSREKK Japan 100 100 Acquisition
CSR Korea Limited Korea 100 100 Acquisition
CSR Sweden AB _ Swaden 100 100  Acquisiticn
Cambridga Stheon Radic Sart France 100 100 Acquisiion
Cambndge Stcon Radio (UK) Limted ) . UK 100 100 Acquismion
Cambndge Sicon Radio Holdings Inc Delawara 100 100 Acquisdion
Cianty Technologies, Inc Mchigan 100 100 Acquistion
CSR (Incte) Private Limited . Indha 100 100 Acquisihon
UbiNetics Wiralass Technologias (Shenzen) Comparny Limited .China 100 100 Acquistion
UtxNetes {Cayman istands) Ltd Cayman Islands 100 100 Acquisiion
UbiNetics {Hong Kang} Linited Hong Kong 100 100 Acquisition
UbsNetics (North Amenca) Inc Delaware 100 100 Acquistion
UbiNetics (IP} Lirnied UK 100 100 Acqursmon
UtxNetics 3G Limited UK 100 100 Acquisttion
UbiNetics Module Limited UK 100 100 Acquistion
UtnNatics Technology bimited UK 100 100 ACQUISTTION
UbiNetics Designs brmited UK 100 100 Acquestion
Coverge Umited . = UK 100 100 Acqustion
CPS Lmied, UK 100 100 Acqustion
NordNav Finans Aktiebolag Swedan 100 100 Acquisttion
Investments i subsidiary undertakings
2007 2008
Cost and net book value $00 5000
Al the beginning of the penod 61314 53,478
Acquiston of subsichanes 103,966 -
Capttal coninbutions ansing from IFRIC 11 charges 9,275 7.836
At the end of the pancd 174,555 61,314
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40 Financial assets

2007 2008
Other recervables $000 $000
Prepayments and accrued ncome 432 ass8
Amauts recevable from other Group undertalangs 19,881 -

20,313 388

The drectors consider that the carrying amount of other recenvables approxmates ther far value

Amounts recenvabla from other Group undartakings are nerher past dua or mparred as management cons:ders that the CSR Employee Benefit
Trust has sutficient assets to fulli ts future obligations

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash compnse cash held by the Company and short tarm bank deposts with an eaginal maturtty of three months or less
The camying amouni of thesa assets approximates therr far vahue

Treasury deposits
Treasury daposts represent bank deposits with an ongenal maturity of over three months

41 Financial kabilihies

207 2006
Trade and other payables $000 $000
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 199,049 59,372
Accruzls and defermed income } - i} 44 -
Other payablas 2065 -

201,158 59,372

The ctreciors consider thal the camying amount of trade and other payablas approximates therr tair value

Other payables

Other payables refate 1o loan notes issued to the shareholders of Cambrkige Positioning Systems Limited as part of the consideration for the
company on acquisition (note 27)

42 Contingent consideration

2007 2006
$000 $ 000
Amounts payable within one year 25,988 -

The contingent consideration relates 10 miestona payments for the acquisiion of NordNav Technologies AB (note 27) The consideration is due
10 be sefflad in two Instalments which will ba payabla by 28 December 2008 if certan miastone cniena are met The contingant consideration 1s
discounted al arate of 6 15% reflecting the expecied bomowing rate for @ simular ioan Nstrument

43 Reserves

5000
Balance at 30 December 2005 . 939
Nat profit for the penod a5
Balance at 26 December 20068 L. 1,034
Net loss for the penod {7,637)
Balance at 28 Decamnber 2007 {6,603

The mavemants on the other reserves are disclosed In nate 26 1o the consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the 52weeks ended 28 December 2007
Continued

44 Notes to the cash flow statement

2007 2006

$ 000 $000

Operating loss from continuing operations beng operating cash flows before movemnents nworlang capaal (5,812) (3.829)
(increase) decreass n recenvables {19.970} 181
Increasa n payables 137.393 26.145
Cash generated by operations baing net cash from operating actties 111,611 22,497

Cashandcashaqualents(mmarepresemedasasmgedassofassetonthafaoed1hebalanoeshaet)compnsawshatbankand other
short term teghly lquid mvestments wath & matunty of three months or iess

45 Financial instruments

Capital nsk management

The Company manages is capital to ensura thal a strong capital base s mantaned to susiain the future growth and development of the Group
The capital structure of the Company consists of dabt in the form of unsecured loan noles and contingan! consideration {disclosed N notes

41 and 42}, cash and cash equwvalenis, treasury deposits and equity atiributable to equity holders of the parent, compnsing ssusd caprtat,
reserves and retained earmings as disclosad innote 43

There are no externally imposed caprtal requirameants on the Company

Categones of financial instruments ‘
2007 2008

$000 $000
Financial assots
Loans and recawvabies (including cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposts) 157,378 95,388
Fmanctal habilities
Amortised cost 227,146 59,372

At tha reporting date there are no loans and recavables designated at far vaiue through profit and loss
The camyng amount reflectad above represents the Comparny’s Maximuim exposure to credit nsk for such loans and recavablas

Financial nsk management objectives
The Group Treasury lunction prowdas sanices 1o the Company, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets
and monrtors and manages the financial nsks relating to the operations of tha Company

The man nsks the Company 1S exposed to are tha curency nsk component of market nsk, Gredit nsk, end hquidity nsk

Foreign currency nsk management

“The Company does not saek to manage the currency nsk compaonent of market nsk as these risks are managed on a Group lovel
The Company does not gnier into any financia! denvative contracts The Company does not enter intg, or trada financial nstruments,
including dervative financial nsirurments, for speculative purpeses

Forexgn currency sensitivity analys:s
The sensitvty analysts below has been datemined based on the exposure of the Comparly to foreign currency movemants for ds
non-danvative financal nstrurents at the balance sheet date

it the US dollar had strengthened by 10% agamnst GBP stering, the Company’s
» Joss for the 52 week penod ended 28 December 2007 would have decreased by $1.267,000 The profit for the 52 week penod ended
29 December 2006 would hava decraased by $442,000 In both pencds, this i maniy attnbutable to tha Company’s exposure to foregn
axchange movemants on Stering denominated monetary assets and habrhties,
= thera 1$ N mpact on other equity reserves (2006 $nd)

A 10% weakening of the US dotar against GBP stering would have had the equal but oppogita aftact, on the bass thal all the other variables
remam constant

in management's opinion, this 1s a reasonably possibie change m currency rates given current market conditions Thes analys's assumes all
other vanables, in particular interest rates and other foreign currencies, rermnamn constant The analysis 1s parformed on the same basis for 2006

Interest rate nsk management

The company has no significant direct exposures to fluctuations minterest rates cther than those on interest bearng ¢ash balances

Tha mayonty of cash balances are held at fxed rates of interest and the effective rate of nterest on those Cash balances in the penod was
5 16% {2008 5 00%)
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45 Fmancial mstruments (continued)

Credit nsk managemen!

Cradht nsk reters 10 tha nsk that counterparties wid defautt on ther contractual obsgations resutting n financxal loss to the Company

For cash and cash equivalents and treasury teposits, the Company only transacts with entihes that are equivatent to nvestrent grade and

above and Group treasury pohoy dictates that less than 20% of the total balance on cash and cash equivalents and traasury deposits will be
deposted with countsrparties who have a Moody's credit rating of less than Aal Other financial assets consist of amounts recenvable from
related parties The Company's expasure to sigrificant concantration of credit nsk on recervables from related parties 1s detaited n note 46

Liquedity nsk management

Uthmate responsibiity for the hquidity nsk management of the Company rests with the Board of Drrectors which manages the hquicity
requremants of the Company in tarms of short, medum and long-term lunding reGuirements The Company manages bquidity nsk wa the
Group's Treasury function using sources of financmg from other Group entities and Investing excess bquitity The Company manages excess
resarves by continuously montanng forecast and actual cash fiows and matching matunty profies of tnancial assets and hiabithes

The foliowang tables detal tha Company's remarrming contraciual matunty for its non-darvative inancial habikties The tables have been drawn
up based on the earkest date on which the Company can be regurrad to pay The table indudes both interest and pnncipal cash fiows

2007 Less twn 0ne Morg than
month § 2 monthy 2 Amontns 2 8montha i months Total
$ 000 $000 $000 5000 $000 $ 000
Contingent consderation N - 9,625 - - 17,500 27,125
Unsecured ioan notes issuad on acoasthon - 1,865 - 257 ’ - 2,122
Amounts owed to subsktary undertakings - - - - 199,049 199,049
- 11,490 - 257 216,549 228,296

2006 Less thanone More than
month 1 Z2montha 2 3momnths J dmonths G months Total
$'000 $ 000 C §00 $ 000 5000 $000
Amounts owed 10 subsidary undentakings . - - - - 59,372 59,372

Management do not expect amounts owed 1o subsichary undertalangs to be repard i the next operating cycle

Farr vaiue of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of financial assets and llabdties recorded at amoriised cost in the financia! statements approxamate therr fair valuas

46 Related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and its subsichanas, which are retated parties, are disclosed below
2007 2008
$ 000 $000
Cambndge Silicon Radio Limited
—Funding receved from Cambndge Sikcon Radho Lrmited 118,778 13,716
~ Sannces recenvead frorn Cambntige Silcon Radio LUmined 14,149 12,596
—Interest charged onniercompany balance 6,749 -
CSR Employes Bengfit Trust
—Funding prowded {19,881} -
Balancas between the Company and i1s subsidianes, which &re related parties, are disclosed below
2007 2008
S000 $000
Cambndge Siicon Radio Limited . ) (199.049) (59,372)
CSR Employoo Beneht Trust 19,881 -~

|
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

2000 2004 2005 2006 2007

$0m $ 000 S 000 5000 Somo
Results
Turmnover 67,622 253,148 488,531 704,685 848,622
Lindertyng cperating floss) profit* (2,407 58,457 112,851 151,056 171,707
Opsratng (loss) profit {2,407 58,457 111,936 148,995 150,098
{Loss) profit betore tax (1,816 58,980 114,388 164,397 155,599
Taxaton 4,540 2,579 £31,210) 143,200) {42.795)
Profit tor the financial year 2024 61,559 B3.156 14,197 112,804
Assets employad
Non-currant assats 8,603 20,937 118,883 140,442 249,298
Net current assets ) 27,546 137,314 160,133 269,000 267.717
Non-curant habdties - {1,160 {1.979) (3,233 {8,350)
Long tem provsions [756) {1.606) - - -
Net assets 35,393 155,485 277,037 406,209 508,663
Koy statistics ] S L] s ]
Earmings per shara 003 053 067 086 086
Undertyng diluted earmings per share” 003 048 063 083 094
Diduted earmings per share Q03 Q48 Q62 082 083

‘Excluding the amortisation of acquired ntangible assets and, in 2007, the patent dispute settlement of $15 O million

The amounts disclosed for 2003 are stated on the basis of UK GAAP becauss it s nof practcable to restata amounts for penods pnor
to the date of transiton 1o IFRS :

Thea pnncipal diferances batween UK GAAP and IFRS that resuited i a restatement of the 2004 financal statements on transition were
as {ollows

* A charga was recogrised i respect of share opbons falling under the scope of IFRS 2,

* The deferred tax asset was increased as a result of the additional tax banefit in the year from the recording of share-based
payment chargas,

« Compuner software was rectassified on the balance sheet 50 as 10 be intangible assets,
* Amounts weare reclassified on the balance sheet between treasury deposits and cash and cash equivalents,
* Tax kabiiles were shown separately on the balance sheet,
» Lizbiites related (o the purchase of intangible beences under payment plans were reclassified as finance leases,
* Prowisions were split between those greater than one year and less than one year
The only penod affacted by the transition was 2004, 2005 was pressnted under (FRS

Detaded disclosures tor the effect of the transtion to IFRS were given in the 2005 financial statements
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SHARE AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

CSRplc
Urut 400
Cambndge Science Park
Miton Road
Cambndge
CB4 0WH
Registered m England and Wales number 4187348
WAWW CST COm
Adwvisors
Auditors Delortte 8 Touche LLP
Corporate brokers JPMorgan Cazenove Lmited, UBS Limded
Saolicitors Slaughter and May
Bank Uloyds TSB Bank plo
Share nformanon at 13 March 2008
Shares outstanding "132,307,545
Tracing symbol CSR _
Country of ragister Great Bntan
Market London Stock Exchange
SECOL 3414738
Regstrar Equeriti
Aspect Housa, Spancer Reoad, Lancing,
Wast Sussex BNGS 60A
Shareholder information
R % ofissued
ordnary share
Draciosed holding! capaal
The BlackRock Group i 19,494,019 14 73%
Barclays PLC . 15,893,621 1209%
Schroders Pic 13,566,408 1025%
Legal & General Group PLC
and its subsidianes - 7,108,357 _ 537%
Aberforth Partners LLP 6,687,110 505%
Capntal Group International Inc
and its subsidianes 4,985,757 A77%
SR Global Fund LP 4,264,325 I22%
151 13 March 2008
Basad on notAcatons (o the Company i acoordence with ihe Camperies Act 1985
Share capital structure
Nerrbior of % aga ol total
Hokdng sharehoiders sharchoklors
1-1,000 659 4353
1,001 - 5,000 341 2252
5,001 - 10,000 130 85g
10,001 - 50,00¢ 186 1228
50,001 - 100,000 €3 416
100,001 — 250,000 53 350
Over 250,000 82 542
Total 1,514 100 00
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GLOSSARY OF INDUSTRYTERMS

98 CSR ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2007

snalogue & connuoLs presantaion of phenomena

such &3 sound gt and Wouch ara Ansiogue

fhware that s wiiten
ipouflcaly o address areal warkd probiom o (ask

tmaeburld desonbing that port of a rado

bassband processar that pan of achp whch s
dasgnod tormplament i 8 chgrtal forrmet the sigonthms:
protocots and IogG néqLIred to nptement for gxampta
a standand such as the Blustooth wirslass standard

bt nund of nfarmabon B computasonal quamiy that can
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kbt or M

bifl of matenats 2 kst of tho ndmdual parts {or matensl)
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Bl h Tk the & 1 dotarmmed
wm%mmwmwumam
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usaAs planar wanssiors (o make chips that consumna
relatvaly kow power ard permet a tugh lovel of miagration

chip short iy & rMICrOc  sameconductorn devics
of sitagrated crou

chipset the term chipset s cormmonly used (o refer to
2 sat of spocmisad chins that work togather on a host
platforn suchas the matherboerd of a PC

co-gaIst/co-gxistence maans the abdity of two Systems
10 opernte nt paralul wat hout witerfonng with tha other

COMMRINICELIONS Protocol sack commurncabons
software whwenmrequred together with tha baseband
processor and other subsystams o mpiement & wraless
communcaons standand

conpectivity enabimg two sRctronc doweas
o comsmuricate with each other and transter data
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converged phaones phonas capabla of
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ftware software that s
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8 customer-gefined probiem or task

DSP Dwytal Signal Processor adewcs which snables
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dongned-mn whare an CDM or OEM adopis wio s
PrDduct cespn A sokrbon provicod by o third party Suppher

design win CSA records a dexgn wan whan & product
usiNg ono of s I 5 bacomes Bluatooth quakhed

e another word for chp often used to refer to the
chips whist (hey are stil an integral part of the sAcon
weofer or whera thay have boon cut from the wafer
butere &5 yet unpackaged

digrtal the regresantation of data by a sanes of s
or diacreto values such s Os end 1a

dongle an dectront dovics that i usually plugged
o the USB port of a computar n order 1o roviis
adced tunctionakty

downlood (o recanve data from a remote or cerdral
systom A download 1§ any 4o that is otfored for
downloadng o that has boen downloaced

EDR Enharxcad Data Fate s an extonson of the
Blstooth standard snabing faster communication

of larger files (wdeos and music) Dy & rate of up to- 3 brmes
faster than comvantonal methods

smbedded solution a system n which Bl processng
18 carned out on chwp wrthout 1ha neod for an extamal
host processor

end products prooucts Fom a manufacturer which ane
0 ther tnal form and ready for the user examplas NCluds
PCa end motilo phones.

fab short for shoon fabneation fachty manufactunng plent
o foundry

{ablens short ior fabncatonfess A businass macel used
N the sermconductor whera the manufacture

nwaustry
for fabncabon) of IC § 1s subcontractad to-a foundry

fabl ch company that
mnmmmem
1o rrarufacturs shoon cheps B3 oppoeaed (o fabncgton
{acites ownad directly

hrmware eoftware which ritariaces with and typecally
configures and menages the hardwaren a system

flash memory alectronc mermary whina tha contents
{usuatly an mpobcations programy may be programmed
podr 10 use and whech retuns its contents siespacive

©f Bpphad power

FM frequency modulation o techrique of broadcastng
riacha Signals which moduiates {aduusts) the pech of the
radtowmiomnmunmtemawamad sgral

foundry- & semconducton manutactunng sxe that makes
mograted crosis

QHz gga Hartz

GPS Global Sysiem e satelne based
A NDARALCN System that afows recenng Jewcas 10
detemmne an eccurats locetion on tha sLrface of the plangt

GSM/OPRS (SM (Global Syster for Mobika
Communcahons) the mast common digdal mobie
sandard GPRS iGenaral Packet Radko Senvce) a dgrtel
mobda standard desgned 10 send ArK recene voce
and data such as emad information from the web and
which 15 able 1o transirwi data et fughes rzias than the
GSM stancard



hardware salution 8 solution whera data ismamputated
by & senes of gates end ragrstens whose funcion s not
maodiad fhvough programmable nstnacbons

hoxt software software ruvkng onthe system iwhech
the Sance 13 ombedded

IC or integrated circun & semwconductor dewce

conssing of many thousands or mikons of nisrconneciad

transstors and cther componants

150 Intermatonat Standards Organesaion the mtomations
resporshia

management syslems computers dala communcatony

and meny other fisids

IS0 8000 a senes of ntomahonal standards for quakty

PAN Pocsonsl Area Netweork a short chstance wiraless
NGtwork SpacIAcally desagnec to support portable and
MObAS COMEXILNG Covces:

PC personal computer

PDA personal digrtal assistant & pockeat szed
personal computer

Persomsl Newgation Device or PND s a portables
AACIromS product which Combnas  positionsng capabiity
{such as GPS} and nawgabon funchons and enables the
user to find out whers they are locatad and gat drections
o move fron one placa Lo ancther

pachage the package of a sarmconductor @ the
Pphysical and plecincal nteracs betwoon the chp
and the systemin wiwch & opecates

8 N bUSINGSS P ratfiad by the IS0
begrring i 1987 Certhicaton of 150 9000 aomplznca duct qualin 1he approval of @ product
1SMpontant for safing many types of Jeods and sercas OfprucessfumebymODMurOEM

ncluding data communications equipment and servoas

internet protocols tha CoMmMUMCINONS protocols
used over tha asmet

kb3 1kbsis A of 1024 bis per second

low latency refars o Lha penod of delay (usuaty
measured i miksacondshraqured for the conversion
between anaiog and digital representabons of the sound
data Devces such as oxTgaaers can Only process cigial
datz Thus the analog data it receves on mcrophona

o INg-n npxits must be convertad to digust data. After
processing of data the processad data must be converisd
back to an anaicg s:gnal belom 1t can ba output to
spaakars and played back Low tatency thus meens

& lower penod of delay for thes process to tekae place

Mb or Mega Byte 1024 timea 1024 bytes whexo
1byta s equalto 6 s

memory &y dewce that can storg data n machine
raadabis format which may nciuce RAM ROM and Rash

mcrocontrofler oftan datinad as beng a mcreprocessar
fogether wath its maenory and & means of alicwing nput
end cuiput

mecroprocessar a computer wth its entra AU
contained on onaintegraled circut

modem A Cévice Inal snables slecironc Bcapment
to transmt and recane dala over i natwaork

mono-headset amobie headset whch connects to
8 mobie phona POA MPA player or other devica using
Bluaoth and sitsn one ear of the user

motherboard the pnncipal ponted crout board
embeddod within an plecrone aroduct

MP3 afigforrat whch comprasses or 'Shamics’ vaica
end misst tes lor transter betwean one dactronic dowce
to ancther whis! retanvng CD quakty audo

nan-celluler /non cellular device saused by CSR
MOENS &N SACTONC Cavca whch Lsas Bustooth but
5 MO 3 Colkutar demce:

NFC or Near Fiekd Communication & 8 sShan-range
hugh frequency wrelass communication jechnology which
enibios the eachanga of data botwean OFICos OV B
distance of about 4 centvnatres It apphcaton includes
SECUrA PAYTENE TANSACUONS USING the GLISoMers mobie
phong or transfer of les for mampla photo smages from
adgtalcameratoa PC

equpment for anothar company who wall 1 turm sefl ths
‘o tha end user

OEM or Ongnal Equipment Manutacturer
amanutactures that sells pgumpment 1 reta
and wholasale outiats

profide a sel of spacihicatons dafned by the SO ared
at facitaung communscabon botwoaon classas of
Bustooth enablad devices axamples inchude the
headset and hands free profies

protocol & mathod by which wo cissimdar systems
AN communcate

puth o fix used n conuncoon with FND 19 represent
the act of malkng an ad hoc estimats of a usars locaton
s to gbtan alocabon fix

RAM rancom acoass mamory

RF rado frequency requencias of sleclromagnauc waves
between epproxiiataly 3 kHz and 300 GHz

ROM read only mamory

radio modulation gynamec mecfiganon of the
characzenstics of  mcho (slectromagnenc) wave i ordes
to comey nlormaton

SI3 the Blugtooth Specal interest Group

sampling the process of shppng smal quantbes ofa
now |C to & customer in order (o atow the customer o183l
the IC s peoduct pnor (o adopbon of that KO nio te
cusiomarns fanshac product

somiconductor a matanal typcaly crystainag

that can ba sltered 10 aiow elecingat curment [0 iow or
not Now N @ PETIOM COMIMON SaMICONAUCIONS 2a shoon
genmanum and galurt: ereamde and the term is 2lso used
o apply to IC s mada from these matenats

sihcon a semconductng matenal used ta make wafers
waclaly usad n the seneconductor ndustry &3 tha besc
matesal for ntegraned cRTuS

short ronge Bluotooth s prncpatly used for
COMMuNICating over rangas of up to 10 metrgs

sruffer software that es combened with hardwara for
montonng data and voics rafic on a network ovor the air

skype 1= a soffware program that pliows users 10 make
talaphone calls over thentemet

starec headaet 3 mobée headset which connects to
& rmobie phane, POA MP3 piayer O other divee using
Blustooth b Sits on Lot ears of the user

S0C Systornon chp s a tochnglogy tha takes
2l the necassary elactrone cuTists snd perts fora
complate system and niagrates them Ko 8 singla
arcut (Sticon chp)

softwarg solubion & SolNoN whrd INSTUCLIONS and
daia ara read froen mamary (or mamones) and then the
NstUChons rrtemreted and axacutad by & MCroprocessor
to modky Lhe data n the imtendad way

software stack softwara recuwad 10 mplement
the Blustooth standsard

tape oul N SRCTCONCS desyniope out s the naf

stage of tha damgn Cyda of integrated Crouns or prerod
arcurt boards the pont &t whech the deacnphon of &
curcut 13 sant for manutactus Tho roats ¢f the temmare
traced back 1o earty ways of prrmed arcut board desgn
when the entarped (for fegher precision) artwork of PCBs
was manually taped ol of 188 &k adhesme ooversd
PC8 (ootpnnis

tote! addressable market the szoof a potential market
for 8 gen product normally assessed n potantal tnencal
walup of the number of umts of B product wh:ch coutd be
sold 10 thet market

tranststor the basic buddng block ot modam

Ultrs Low Power {ULP} Bluetooth 1adesigned to
work 508 by-uice with end complement Bluetooth

It oporates 11 2 4 GHz ISM bind Devices usng ULP
Bluatooth will be smaller arkd more eneegy efficant than
ther Bluatooth countorparts

unl A M bk A

UMA, —aleo knawn
a3 GAN Genenc Actess Matwork} 3 the technoogy
that snables GSM vaice and GPRS data sennces

{0 be prowded owdr urboansad rado wderfacas such
asYW-Fi

urbian canyon 18 a budt up urben enwonment smiar

10 & natural canyon which ntemupis rado sgnas

It & caused by streats cutting through donsa blocks of

structures especially skyscrapacs or other tall buldings

USB Unworsal Songl Bus an nterfacs batwoen o
computar and add on devices

UWB Ulra wadeband awareless iechnology lor
ransmatung lange arnounts of drgital data over a

wada spectrurn of frequency bands wath very low power
or 8 short distance

YolP Vocs over Intemat Protocol The technology Lsed
10 ransmil voce Conversations aver the packst based
protocol al tha hean of the ntemat

Wi-Fi W Fishort o wirelass fidelty (alao known as IEEE
802 11p/0/g)is an 1155 Mbs raw racho bit rate data cantng
WITBIESS COmmuUINCRbon standard typecally associated wath
warelcas computer natwarks at home and in the office and
pubkc spaces

water adisc made of asamoonducting matendt such
assheon usually batwsen 150mm (67 sad 300mm (12 )
¥ dharnater in which ntagrated CCULE &8 manufactred
& waler may contan sevedl thousand ndnacual
egeated crouts

WLCSP Waler Level Chip Scale Packaging

Tha tachnalagy of packagng & chep at the wafer level
nstead of tha traddional procoss of assembiing the
packaga after the waler has baon diced 1o ndrdug!
chups {s0a CSP)

wroless modem g moderm thal acoesses
& wirplass network

yeld whan used n connecton with manufaciumng
tharatio of tha number of usable products to the otel
manber of products on a waler
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CSR SSUBSIOIARIES, BRANCHES AND OFFICES

Unirted Kingdom
Cambndge Sicon Racho Limsted
Uit 400

Cambndge Science Park
Mdton Road

Cambndge

CB4 OWH

UK

Tl +44 1223692000
Fax +44 1223 692001
WWw CSF com

Churchill House
Cambncige Business Park
Cowley Road

Cambndgs

CBaowz

UK

Tel +44 1223 692000
Fax +44 1223 692001
WWW CSI COM

Selwyn House
Cambndge Busness Park
Cowiey Road

Cambrdge

cB4aOWZ

UK

Tol +44 1223592000
Fax +44 1223 692001
wWww CSF Com

St John's House

St John's Innovation Park
Cowtey Road
Cambndge

CB4OWS

UK

Tel +44 1223 692000
Fax +44 1223 692001
WWwW CSr com

Otfica 17

The Stables
Welingore

bincein

Lincs

LINS OMX

UK

Tel +44 1522 810088
WWAW CSI COMm

Abbey Busness Centre
Abbey Housa

83 Princes Strest
Edinburgh

Mid Lothuan

EH2 2ER

UK

Tel +44 1317180850
Fax +44 131 7180851
WWW CSr com
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China

CB8R (Shangha) Co , Ltd
Rm 2201-05

Platinum Buidding

No 233 Taicang Road
Lwan Distoct
Shangha

PR C 200020

Tel +8621 61352100
Fax +862161352192
WWW CSF Com

Denmark

CSR Denmark
NOWI Science Park
Nigls Jermes Ve 10
9220 Aalbhorg East
Denmark

Tal +4589 324 100
Fax +4599324 101
www CSr com

France

Cambndge Siticon Raciio SARL
Les Daux Arcs
Batment 8

1800 route des Crétes
Sophea Antipolis
(08560 Valbonna
Franca

Tel +33489737000
Fax +33489737 001
WWW CSF COm

Incia

CSRInda PviLtd
11th Floor

Tower 'C'

IBC Knowledge Park
No 4/1 Bannerghatta Main Road
Bangalore 560 029
Karnataka

Incha

Tel +918026183000
Fax +91 80 2518 3001
WWW CSTr com

Japan

CSRKK

9F Kopmachi KS Squara
5-3-3 Kopmach
Chiyoda-tu

Tokyo 102-0083

Japan

Tel +8135276 2911
Fax +8135276 2915
WAWW CST COm

South Korea

Cambndge Sthcon Radio Korea Ltd
15F Weast Wing POSCO Center
892 Daichu-Dong

Gangnam-Gu

Saoul 135-777

South Korea

Tel +82 264 442000

Fax +82 264 442 001

Www CSr com

Cambndga Sicon Radio Korea Ltd
IF Sinwon Bulding

275-28 Hwangsang-Dong

Gumi 730-932

South Korea

Ta +82544768877

Fax +82544 768680

WWW CST COM

Sweaden

NorddNav Technologas AB
Stadsgarden 10

5-11845

Stockhoim

Swedan

Tel +46 8390000

Fax +46 841247 40

WwWwW CSr eom

CSR Swaden AB
Emdatavagen 16
822369

Lund

Sweden

Tet +46 46 288 1600
Fax +46 46 288 1601
WWwW CST oM

Tawan

CSA Tawan

6F No 407 Rusy Kuang Road
Nerhu

Taper 11492

Tawan

ROC

TEL +8862 26502000

FAX +8862 26502099
Www CSr Com

CSR Tawan

11F, No 148 Jhongshan Road
Chungh

Taoyuan 32041

Tawan

ROC

Tel +886 34267 000

Fax +886 34267 001

www C8r Com

USA

Cambndge Sticon Radio, inc
2425N Central Expressway
Surte 1000

Tel +1 2145404300
Fax +1 972 231 1440
WWW CSr com

Clanty Technologras, Inc
1740 Opdyka Court
Aubuen Hils

Detront

Mcchugan 48326

USA

Tel +1248 409 1400
Fax +1 248 409 1401
WWW csr COom




Forward Looking Statements

The Annual Raport contans certam forward kooking statements Statements contaming the words ‘bebeves”, ‘ntends’, ‘expacts’, ‘antcpates’, :
and other words of ssnilar mearing ere forward lookung  These statements are made by the directors in good faith, based on the mformation .
avatahla to them up to the e of tha approval of ths report By therr nature, forward locking statemants involve nsks and uncertamties ‘
because they relata {0 events and dapend on arcurnstances that will or may occur n the future Actual results may differ from those expressed
nsuch slatements, dependng on avanety of factors Thasa factors nchuda consumer and market acceptance of our products and the
products that use our products, decreases n the demand for our products. excess mventory fevels at our cusiomers, declings m avarage
sefing pricas of our products, cancellation of exsting orders or the fadure 10 secura naw orders, our fadura to introduce new products and to
mplement new technologes on a trmely bas:s, our fadure to anticpate changing customer product requirements, fluctuabons n manufactunng
and assembly and test yields, our fafura to deliver products 1o customers on a tmely bass, disruption in the supply of waters or assembly or
testng services the timung of significant orders, ncreasad expenses associated with new product inroductions, masks, of process changes,
the commencemant of, or developmants with respect to, any future kigaton, the cychicality of the sermiconductor industry, and overal
economic conditons CSR undertakes no cbhigation to update the forward looleng statements contaned in the annual report or any other
forward lootang statements it may make
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